

# Habitats Regulations Assessment Screening Report

May 2012

Page left intentionally blank

# Contents

Summary	4
Introduction	
The Purpose and Objectives of the Copland LDF Core Strategy	
Methodology	
Borrowdale Woodland Complex SAC	21
Clints Quarry SAC	27
Drigg Coast SAC	
Duddon Mosses SAC	
Lake District High Fells SAC	
Morecambe Bay SAC	
North Pennine Dales Meadows SAC	
River Derwent and Bassenthwaite Lake SAC	63
River Ehen SAC	
Roudsea Wood and Mosses SAC	
Subberthwaite, Blawith & Torver Low Commons SAC	
Wast Water SAC	
Yewbarrow Woods SAC	
Duddon Estuary SPA & Ramsar Site	
Morecambe Bay SPA & Ramsar Site	
Esthwaite Water Ramsar Site	
Conclusion	

#### Summary

Copeland has a number of internationally important biodiversity sites that are protected by European legislation. They form part of a Europe wide network of important habitats and species called Natura 2000. When preparing a plan for the area, in this case the LDF, the Council must ensure that the proposals therein will not have a negative effect on the integrity of any of these sites. The Habitats Regulations Assessment is a tool that was introduced by the Conservation (Natural Habitats, etc.) Regulations 1994 to help to make this assessment. This report documents the assessment of the proposals within the pre-submission drafts of the Copeland LDF Core Strategy and Development Management Policies DPDs.

# Table 1 – Biodiversity sites of international significance within the Copeland Plan area and within20km of the plan area boundary

Name of Site	Designation	Within Copeland Plan Area /
		Within 20km of Copeland
Borrowdale Woodland Complex	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Clints Quarry (Moota)	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Drigg Coast	SAC	Within Copeland Plan Area
Duddon Mosses	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Lake District High Fells	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Morecambe Bay	SAC	Within Copeland Plan Area
North Pennine Dales Meadows	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
River Derwent and Bassenthwaite Lake	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
River Ehen	SAC	Within Copeland Plan Area
Roudsea Wood and Mosses	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Subberthwaite, Blawith & Torver Low Commons	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Wast Water	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Yewbarrow Woods	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Morecambe Bay	SPA	Within 20km of Copeland
Duddon Estuary	SPA	Within Copeland Plan Area
Esthwaite Water	Ramsar Site	Within 20km of Copeland
Duddon Estuary	Ramsar Site	Within Copeland Plan Area
Morecambe Bay	Ramsar Site	Within 20km of Copeland

#### Summary of the Assessment:

**Borrowdale Woodland Complex SAC** – The most likely significant negative impact would be from transport related air pollution (a part of the site is quite close to the A591). A further HRA will be needed during the preparation of the Site Allocations DPD and it is suggested that in relation to this site, the assessment should consider whether any development in the plan area will increase the amount of traffic on the section of the A591 nearest the site. Transport modelling will be carried out as part of the preparation of the Site Allocations DPD and this will provide the necessary information. Core Strategy policy is to minimise the need for private travel by concentrating most

new development in the largest settlements where jobs and facilities are within walking distance and where there is access to public transport. Regarding the prevention of introduction of nonnative, invasive species, wording has been added to policy DM26 that allows conditions on planning permissions stating that all species used in landscaping schemes must be non-invasive. **Clints Quarry SAC** – The important feature on this site is a large population of Great Created Newts. The maintenance of the water table and therefore the breeding ponds is the main requirement for their continued survival here. There are no plans to source water resources from upstream of the site. The site is close to three of West Cumbria's busiest roads i.e. A66, A591 and A595 and an increase in traffic along these roads could increase the acid deposition in the breeding ponds and on the adjacent foraging land (the young of Great Crested Newts are sensitive to acidification of their habitat). It will be important that the HRA Screening Reports that accompany the Site Allocations DPD, and the major infrastructure planning applications, deal with the potential risk of an increase in traffic on these sections of road and a corresponding increase in acid deposition.

Drigg Coast SAC-This is a sand dune environment including some migrating dunes. Major impact considered are:development directly behind the site; changes in the temperature and salinity of the coastal waters; the storage of nuclear waste close to the site boundary; trampling through recreational use; and increased nitrogen deposition. The Core Strategy restricts the majority of development in the plan area to Whitehaven and the three main towns. The nearest settlement that will be subject to some limited housing development is the Local Centre of Seascale. The HRA of the Site Allocations DPD will need to consider those sites in Seascale that are being proposed as allocations and whether they pose a barrier to the migration of the dunes. Policy ENV3F allows the restriction of access to important biodiversity sites if it is felt that visitors are damaging features through trampling or other means. The A595 is the closest main road to the site and could be subject to an increasing amount of traffic (and therefore air pollution leading to nitrogen deposition) if new nuclear development goes ahead. This issue will need to be addressed in the HRA accompanying the planning application for the nuclear new build development and will be highlighted in the Local Impact Report prepared and submitted by Copeland Borough Council. The concern about the storage of nuclear waste at the Drigg waste facility is a matter for Cumbria County Council.Regarding the prevention of non-native, invasive species, wording has been added to policy DM26 that allows conditions on planning permissions stating that all species used in landscaping schemes must be non-invasive.

**Duddon Mosses SAC** – This site is made up of two different bog habitats and it is important that a high water table is maintained. There are no plans to source drinking water from any part of South Copeland so there should be no impact arising from the Copeland LDF in this respect. Another important aspect of the site is its low nutrient status. It is crucial that the site does not become polluted with untreated sewage or suffers increased nitrogen deposition. United Utilities reported that there are no problems with the capacity of the treatment works at Millom and that the housing growth proposed in the Core Strategy can be accommodated. Nitrogen deposition arises from traffic pollution as well as agriculture, so it will be imperative that the issue of increased traffic on the A roads close to the site (A595, A5092, A5093, A5084, A593) is taken into account in the HRAs accompanying the Site Allocations DPD and the nuclear new build and infrastructure planning applications. Transport modelling forms part of the preparation of Site Allocations DPD and this will provide the data needed to make the assessment. In the meantime, there are policies in the Core Strategy that encourage a greater amount of green infrastructure and sustainable transport options.

Lake District High Fells SAC - This site is in several parts and covers a large area. The main issues are the levels of nitrogen and acid deposition which are currently above the critical loads for all the different types of habitat on this site. Levels of NH<sub>3</sub> are also very close to the critical levels for some of the habitats i.e. those where bryophytes are present. There are a number of moderately busy A roads running between some of the sites (A66, A591 and slightly further away, the A595). Increases in traffic along these roads, arising from proposals in the Site Allocations DPD and in applications submitted by the nuclear industry, will have to be taken into account in the HRAs accompanying them. There are policies in the Core Strategy that encourage green infrastructure and sustainable transport options. It is considered that this document does all that it can at a very strategic level. The topography of the land between the plan area and the different parts of the site would prevent any untreated sewage water from polluting the site. United Utilities abstract water from Ennerdale Water but a high water table is not a condition required to support the integrity of the site. (It does have implications for the River Ehen site – see below). Regarding the prevention of introduction of non-invasive species, policy DM26 allows conditions to be put on planning permission stating that all species used in landscaping schemes must be non-invasive. Trampling is an important issue when considering policies that encourage more people into any given area. ENV3F does allow for the restriction of access to land where that would lead to trampling and disturbance of sensitive habitats and species. This should significantly lessen the risk of damage where the sites are monitored for damage and the policy applied.

Morecambe Bay SAC – This is a large estuarine site and proposed leisure and tourism uses mean that there is potential for increased visitor pressure here. For the part of the site that is in the Copeland plan area, ENV3F allows restriction of access where there is risk of harm through trampling etc. Tidal and wave energy developments could have a significant negative impact but these will be considered to be Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects and therefore Copeland will not be the deciding authority. The levels of SO<sub>2</sub>, NH<sub>3</sub>, ozone, acid deposition and NO<sup>2</sup> sampled at the site do not cause any concern – they are well within the critical limits. However, there are issues with the levels of nitrogen deposition which are currently above the critical loads for over half the different habitats present (see Appendix 1 for details). Motor vehicles are an anthropogenic source of nitrogen and there are a number of A roads in the vicinity (A595, A593, A590, A5084, A5093, A5092). Increased traffic as a result of any planned developments or site allocations will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and any Major Infrastructure Planning Applications. A project is currently underway in the Millom area to help to increase the capacity of the WwTW there and therefore prevent untreated water entering the Duddon Estuary part of the site. United Utilities have reported that the works will be able to accommodate the Core Strategy's planned growth for the area.

North Pennine Dales Meadows SAC–This site is made up of a large number of small scattered meadows, only two of which are with 20km of the Copeland plan area boundary. The levels of SO<sub>2</sub>, NH<sub>3</sub>, ozone, acid deposition and NO<sup>T</sup> sampled at these locations do not cause any concern. However, there are issues with the levels of nitrogen deposition, which are currently above the critical loads for at least one of the habitats present (see Appendix 1 for details). One of the anthropogenic sources of nitrogen is motor vehicle emissions. Sandybeck is close to the moderately busy A5086 and Wilson Place Meadow is close to the A593 and A591. The HRA Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and the nuclear industry's planning applications will have to consider whether traffic will increase significantly on these roads as a result of these developments. In the

meantime there are policies in the Core Strategy that encourage a greater amount of green infrastructure and sustainable transport options to mitigate any effect. Due to the terrain between the sites and the plan area it would be highly unlikely that wastewater from Copeland would contaminate the site. Wastewater getting on to the site would not harm it in any case. A drop in the water table is not mentioned a being a risk to the integrity of the sites.

River Derwent and Bassenthwaite LakeSAC - As this is an aquatic environment, there was no data available for air pollutants. The site has a number of fish species that are listed as qualifying features. Acid deposition can have a negative effect on the fish in the early stages in their lives. Motor vehicle emissions are a contributing factor. Therefore, the potential for increased traffic on the A66, A595 and A591 arising from potential developments will have to be considered in the HRA Screening Reports accompanying the Site Allocations DPD and the nuclear and grid planning applications. The topography between the areas where there is concern about the capacity of the treatment works i.e. Whitehaven and Cleator Moor, and the site would not allow sewage contamination to occur. Drinking water for Copeland is sourced from Ennerdale Water and a number of new boreholes that have been recently drilled south of Egremont. There are no plans to take water from the SAC in the future. Invasive species are seen as a potential problem. Policy DM26 states that care should be taken that landscaping schemes do not include invasive, non-native species. Consideration is given to an increase in tourism in the borough as this may encourage more tourists to a part of the borough where they could disturb otters and engage in angling activities. Policy ENV3F does allow for the restriction of access to land where that would lead to disturbance of sensitive habitats and species.

**River Ehen SAC** - As this is an aquatic environment there was no critical load/level data available for air pollutants for this habitat. The site hosts Freshwater Pearl Mussels and Atlantic Salmon. Salmon young are sensitive to acid deposition. Acid deposition is known to arise from road traffic amongst other things. The A5086 runs very close to the SAC at its western end. The potential for an increase in traffic will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and planning applications for any nuclear or other major development. Freshwater Pearl Mussels are sensitive to eutrophication arising from untreated sewage and agricultural runoff. Cleator Moor Treatment Works is currently operating at restricted capacity and will not return to full capacity until the maintenance works are completed there in 2013 (after which time it will be able to accommodate the planned growth in the area it serves. Ennerdale Bridge Treatment Works is not able to accommodate the planned growth at Ennerdale Bridge and Kirkland. (United Utilities has asked that developers consult them prior to submitting a planning application regarding the particular point of connection to the sewer network. There may be issues that make the development less financially viable). Core Strategy policy ST4Astates that development that demands additional infrastructure 'will be permitted if the relevant infrastructure is either in place to ensure that it will be provided when and where required.'Ennerdale Water (from which the River Ehen flows) is the main source of drinking water in Copeland. It will be important that overabstraction does not occur here. United Utilities has drilled boreholes just south of Egremont to help meet the growing demand for drinking water. Teaching customers to use water more efficiently will also help to reduce the demand in future. Regarding the prevention of introduction of non-invasive species –policy DM26 states that all species used in landscaping schemes must use plants that are non-invasive. Trampling is an important issue when considering policies that encourage more people into any given area. ENV3F does, however, allow for the restriction of access to land where that would lead to trampling and disturbance of sensitive habitats and species. This should significantly lessen the risk of damage. Development causing an obstruction to the flow of water in the River Ehen would be considered to be a direct threat to the integrity of the site and policy DM25 would be used to refuse permission where the benefits of the development did not clearly outweigh the risk of damage to this very important site.

**Roudsea Wood and Mosses SAC -** The site is a mix of bog and woodland habitat. The main issues for the site are the prevention of increased air pollution, eutrophication and erosion through trampling. The levels of SO<sub>2</sub> and NO<sup>2</sup> sampled at the site are well within the critical limits. However, there are issues with the levels of nitrogen deposition and, with particular regards to the bog habitats, the readings for acid deposition are significantly above the critical load. The levels of ammonia are also very close to the critical levels for the bog habitats. The A590 runs close to the north of the site. The potential for an increase in traffic on this stretch of road and the other nearby A roads will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and planning applications for any nuclear or other major development. United Utilities reports that there will be no problem accommodating the planned growth in the South Copeland locality i.e. Millom and Haverigg so eutrophication from raw sewage is unlikely to be an issue. The topography between the plan area and the site would make this very difficult in any case.

Subberthwaite, Blawith and Torver Low Commons SAC – This site has gualified for its SAC status because of the high quality of the bog habitats within the site boundary. Factors that could impact on the integrity of the site are: erosion from trampling, atmospheric pollution, eutrophication and lowering of the water table. The Core Strategy does have a policy that can limit access to sites that are at risk from trampling but the SAC falls outside the plan area and will depend on the Lake District National Park LDF for this protection. With regards to air pollution, the levels of SO<sub>2</sub>, ozone and NOI sampled at are well within the critical limits. However, there are issues with the levels of nitrogen and acid deposition that are both significantly above the critical loads for this type of habitat (see Appendix 1 for details). The levels of ammonia are also very close to the critical levels for the bog habitats. The main roads in the area are the A595, A590, A593, A5092 and A5084. The potential for an increase in traffic will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and planning applications for any nuclear or other major development. The site is unlikely to be affected by eutrophication arising from the plan area as United Utilities have reported that the Millom Wastewater Treatment Works will be able to accommodate the planned growth in the area. There are no plans to abstract drinking water from South Copeland sources so this would not be the cause of any drop in the water table in this area.

**Wast Water SAC**–This site is valuable as a clear water lake of low nutrient status. As this is an aquatic environment there is no critical load/level data available for air pollutants for this habitat. Current readings for several pollutants are available in Appendix 1. Arctic Charr(salmonid fish) are sensitive to acidification of the water and this arises as a result of acid and nitrogen deposition, both of which are constituents of vehicle emissions. The main roads in the area are the A595 and A591. Both are quite a distance from the site but air pollutants can travel significant distances. The majority of nitrogen and acid deposition in Cumbria occurs as the result of air pollutants generated in the dense urban areas to the south of the region. However, more locally, the potential for an increase in traffic will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and planning applications for any nuclear or other major development. In the

meantime, there are policies in the Core Strategy that encourage a greater amount of green infrastructure and sustainable transport options. With regards to the damage that could be caused by wastewater, the topography between the site and the plan area would not allow the site to become contaminated with raw sewage generated in the west. The nuclear generating plant at Sellafield used water abstracted from the site for cooling purposes. It is not clear whether this will be the case with regards to the Moorside nuclear new build project. The HRA that accompanies the planning application for this proposal will need to address this issue.

Yewbarrow Woods SAC-As the name suggests, this is a woodland habitat with a mix of Yew, Juniper and Oak. The main area of concern is the amount of grazing that allowed on the site and the introduction of invasive, non-native species. Planning cannot control grazing activities but can put controls on the type of planting allowed in landscaping schemes in the plan area. Policy DM26 in the Development Management Policies document states that all species used in landscaping schemes must use plants that are non-invasive.

Duddon Estuary SPA and Ramsar Site—This estuarine site is an important bird habitat and also hosts Natterjack Toads. Increased air pollution is not so critical for this designation as the qualifying features are bird species and they are less sensitive to most air pollutants. The exceptions are acid deposition and some organic pesticides (that are no longer in use but persist in the environment e.g. DDT). The acid deposition rate for Morecambe Bay (another SPA close to the site) is 1.76 keq/ha/year. Natterjack toads, a qualifying feature for Ramsar designation, are affected by acidification during the larval stage. One of the many anthropogenic sources of acidification is vehicle emissions. There are a number of A roads near to the site - A590, A595, A5093, A5092 and A593. The potential for an increase in traffic will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and planning applications for any nuclear or other major development. Regarding pollution from wastewater, United Utilities state that they expect that the Millom Treatment Works will be able to accommodate the planned growth in South Copeland. Works are currently being carried out to improve the capacity of this treatment works (a new pipe is being installed to increase flow into the treatment works) and it is intended that this will improve the guality of the treated water flowing into the Duddon Estuary. The introduction of invasive nonnative species does pose a threat. Policy DM26 in the Development Management Policies document states that all species used in landscaping schemes must use plants that are non-invasive. Trampling and disturbance to species is also a threat and is dealt with in Core Strategy policy ENV3F, restricting access to and usage of land where that would lead to trampling and disturbance of sensitive habitats and species.

**Morecambe Bay SPA and Ramsar Site**—This is a very large estuarine site that hosts internationally significant populations of migratory birds. Air pollution is not so critical for this designation as the qualifying features are the various bird species and they are less sensitive to most air pollutants. The exceptions are acid deposition and some organic pesticides (that are no longer in use but persist in the environment e.g. DDT). Great Crested Newts are also present and they are sensitive to acidification. As this is an aquatic environment there are no critical loads and levels data for the various air pollutants. Current levels/loads readings are available in Appendix 1. One of the many anthropogenic sources of acidification is vehicle emissions. There are a number of A roads near to the site. These are A590, A595, A5093, A5092 and A593. The potential for an increase in traffic will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and

planning applications for any nuclear or other major development. In the meantime, there are policies in the Core Strategy that encourage a greater amount of green infrastructure and sustainable transport options. Concerns have been expressed about untreated wastewater flowing into the bay. United Utilities has reported that the Wastewater Treatment Plant at Millom will be able to accommodate the planned growth in South Copeland. Any untreated water originating within the plan area would flow into the Duddon Estuary and not Morecambe Bay in any case. The introduction of invasive non-native species does pose a threat. Policy DM26 in the Development Management Policies document states that all species used in landscaping schemes must use plants that are non-invasive.Trampling is an important issue when considering policies that encourage more people into any given area. This is dealt with in Core Strategy policy ENV3F, which allows for the restriction of access to and usage of land where that would lead to trampling and disturbance of sensitive habitats and species.

**Esthwaite Water Ramsar Site** - This is an aquatic site that hosts the only population of the plant, Slender naiad, in England and Wales. Atmospheric nitrogen can cause eutrophication and any increase in nitrogen deposition would exacerbate the existing problem. Slender naiad is sensitive to eutrophication and acidification of the lake water so there will be a need to ensure than minimal nitrogen and acid deposition arises from the plan area. Atmospheric acid and nitrogen are constituents of vehicle emissions. The main roads in the area are the A591, A590, A593 and A592. The potential for an increase in traffic on these roads will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and planning applications for any nuclear or other major development. Policies in the Core Strategy encourage a greater amount of green infrastructure and sustainable transport options. The wastewater treatment works in Millom is said to be able to accommodate the growth anticipated in the Core Strategy. In addition, contamination with raw sewage from the plan is unlikely to occur due to the topography between the plan are and the site.

#### Conclusion

This screening report does not identify any risks to the integrity of Natura 2000 or Ramsar sites. There may be concerns about the particular location of specific developments and these will be dealt with at a later stage of LDF preparation i.e. during the preparation of the Site Allocations DPD. These issues are mainly around an increase in traffic emissions and specific stretches of road have been identified as those that will be subject to modelling when the information on specific housing sites and their capacities becomes available.

The following pieces of text have been added to the Core Strategy as a result of the findings of this Screening Report and on the advice of Natural England:

#### Supporting text for Policy ST2 – Spatial Development Strategy

Where sites are to be allocated for housing, each site will be subject to modelling in terms of the amount of additional traffic and air pollution generated in order that the Council satisfy the requirements of Part 6 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. This modelling will be carried out during the preparation of the Site Allocations DPD.

#### Supporting text for policy ST4 – Providing Infrastructure

This applies principally to utilities where, for example, a problem in the supply of water or treatment of waste water particularly, could have detrimental impacts on European biodiversity sites both within Copeland and beyond the borough boundary.

#### Supporting text for Policy ER1 – Planning for the Nuclear Sector

The European Site most likely to be affected by the operation of a new nuclear energy generating is the nearby Drigg Coast Special Area for Conservation (SAC). This site may be sensitive to changes in water temperature and salinity, the result of using seawater for cooling purposes. It will be very important that these potential impacts are considered fully in the Habitats Regulations Assessment that accompanies the planning application for the nuclear energy proposal.

The following text has been added to the Development Management Policies DPD as a result of the findings of this Screening Report and on the advice of Natural England:

# Supporting text for Policy DM25 – Protecting Nature Conservation Sites, Habitats and Protected Species

Any development that would lead to an adverse impact on the integrity of a Natura 2000 or Ramsar site, either alone or in combination with other plans or projects would not be in conformity with Core Strategy. If it cannot be ascertained that there would be no adverse effect the project will have to be refused or pass the statutory tests of "no alternatives" *and* the "imperative reasons of overriding public interest" set out in Regulation 62 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. If the plan or proposal does satisfy *both* these tests then any necessary mitigation and compensation measures will have to be secured in accordance with Regulation 66.

### Introduction

There are 3 different designations for sites of international biodiversity importance. These are Special Areas for Conservation (SACs), Special Protection Areas (SPAs) and Ramsar Sites. SACs are described by Natural England as 'areas which have been given special protection under the European Union's Habitats Directive'. Article 3 of the Habitats Directive requires the establishment of a European network of important high-quality conservation sites that will make a significant contribution to conserving the 189 habitat types and 788 species identified in Annexes I and II of the Directive (as amended). The listed habitat types and species are those considered to be most in need of conservation at a European level (excluding birds). According to the JNCC website, of the Annex I habitat types, 78 are believed to occur in the UK. Of the Annex II species, 43 are native to, and normally resident in, the UK.

SPAs are areas which have been identified as being of international importance for the breeding, feeding, wintering or the migration of rare and vulnerable species of birds found within European Union countries. They are European designated sites, classified under the 'Birds Directive 1979'.

Together the SACs and SPAs make up a European network of sites referred to as Natura 2000. Natura 2000 is the centrepiece of EU nature & biodiversity policy. The aim of the network is to assure the long-term survival of Europe's most valuable and threatened species and habitats.

Ramsar Sites are not part of the Natura 2000 network but are treated in a similar way to SACs and SPAs in terms of their importance and the protection they provide. They are wetlands of international importance, designated under the Ramsar Convention (an international agreement signed in Ramsar, Iran, in 1971). The initial emphasis was on selecting sites of importance to water birds within the UK, and consequently many Ramsar sites are also Special Protection Areas (SPAs).

Table 1 lists the international sites that are present in the Copeland plan are and those that are within 20km of the Copeland boundary.

Name of Site	Designation	Within Copeland Plan Area /
		Within 20km of Copeland
Borrowdale Woodland Complex	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Clints Quarry (Moota)	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Drigg Coast	SAC	Within Copeland Plan Area
Duddon Mosses	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Lake District High Fells	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Morecambe Bay	SAC	Within Copeland Plan Area
North Pennine Dales Meadows	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
River Derwent and Bassenthwaite Lake	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
River Ehen	SAC	Within Copeland Plan Area
Roudsea Wood and Mosses	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Subberthwaite, Blawith & Torver Low Commons	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Wast Water	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Yewbarrow Woods	SAC	Within 20km of Copeland
Morecambe Bay	SPA	Within 20km of Copeland
Duddon Estuary	SPA	Within Copeland Plan Area

#### Table 1

Esthwaite Water	Ramsar Site	Within 20km of Copeland
Duddon Estuary	Ramsar Site	Within Copeland Plan Area
Morecambe Bay	Ramsar Site	Within 20km of Copeland

Maps showing the location of these sites are included in the document.

#### **The Legislation**

The Habitats Directive (Council Directive 92/43/EEC) was adopted in 1992 and applies to the UK and to its Overseas Territory of Gibraltar. The main aim of the Habitats Directive is to promote the maintenance of biodiversity by requiring Member States to take measures to maintain or restore natural habitats and wild species listed on the Annexes to the Directive at a favourable conservation status, introducing robust protection for those habitats and species of European importance. The Conservation (Natural Habitats, etc.) Regulations 1994 transposed the Habitats Directive into national law. The Regulations came into force on 30 October 1994, and have been subsequently amended several times. They apply to land and to territorial waters out to 12 nautical miles from the coast. The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 consolidate all the various amendments made to the 1994 Regulations in respect of England and Wales.

The Birds Directive (2009/147/EEC) provides a framework for the conservation and management of, and human interactions with, wild birds in Europe. It sets broad objectives for a wide range of activities, although the precise legal mechanisms for their achievement are at the discretion of each Member State (in the UK delivery is via several different statutes). The Directive applies to the UK and to its overseas territory of Gibraltar. The main aim of the Directive is the maintenance of the populations of all wild bird species across their natural range (Article 2). In the UK, the provisions of the Birds Directive are implemented through the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), the Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.) Regulations 2010 (as amended); the Offshore Marine Conservation (Natural Habitats &c.) Regulations 2007 as well as other legislation related to the uses of land and sea.

Articles 6 (3) and 6 (4) of the Habitats Directive require a HRA to be undertaken on proposed plans or projects which are not necessary for the management of the site but which are likely to have a significant effect on one or more Natura 2000 sites either individually, or in combination with other plans and projects.Determining whether an effect is 'significant' is undertaken in relation to the designated interest features and conservation objectives of the Natura 2000 sites. If an impact on any conservation objective is assessed as being adverse then it should be treated as significant. Where information is limited the precautionary principle applies and significant effects should be assumed until evidence exists to the contrary.

#### **The Habitats Regulations Assessment**

A Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) is the assessment of the impacts of implementing a plan or policy on a Natura 2000 Site. Its purpose is to consider the impacts of a land use plan against the conservation objectives of a site and to ascertain whether it would adversely affect the *integrity* of the site either on its own or in combination with the land use plans of other nearby planning authorities. Site integrity is defined as "the site's coherence, ecological structure and function across its whole area that enables it to sustain the habitat, complex of habitats and/or the levels of

populations of species for which it was classified" Where significant negative effects are identified, alternative options should be examined to avoid any potential damaging effects.

Carrying out a HRA is not only a statutory duty but is also beneficial to the policy process as a means of identifying and addressing early on in the process any adverse effects that the draft policies and proposals may have. Unlike the Sustainability Appraisal (SA) process, the HRA requires that decisions on the content of the Plan be based on its findings. Therefore, it goes beyond the material consideration of SA to be weighed in decisions on planning policies and proposals.

The HRA process incorporates the following stages:

#### Stage 1 – Screening

This identifies the likely impacts upon a Natura 2000 site of a project or plan, either alone or in combination with other projects or plans, and considers whether these impacts are likely to be significant. 'In combination' is taken to refer to *the sum of influences acting on sites from all plans and projects in the context of prevailing environmental conditions*.

#### Stage 2 - Appropriate Assessment (AA)

Where significant impacts are likely this stage determines in more detail the impact on the integrity of the site of the project or plan, 'in combination' with other projects or plans, with respect to the site's structure, function and conservation objectives. The Assessment should be carried out by a competent body. Where there are adverse impacts, assess the potential mitigation of those impacts. Where there aren't, then the project or plan can proceed as it is. This stage only needs to take place where likely significant impacts are identified in the screening phase.

#### Stage 3 - Assessment of alternative solutions

Where significant negative effects are identified at the AA stage alternative options should be examined to avoid any potential damaging effects to the integrity of the site.

#### Stage 4 - Assessment where adverse impacts remain

This is an assessment of compensatory measures where, if the development is assessed to be for Imperative Reasons of Overriding Public Interest (IROPI), it is deemed that the project or plan should proceed. In this case the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government should be notified and they will inform the European Commission about the compensatory measures adopted.

This document forms Stage 1 of the Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA) process and contributes to the fulfilment of the Council's statutory duty as regards the Birds Directive and the Habitats Directive. It is a screening report concerned with reaching an opinion as to whether the Plan needs to go forward for further, more detailed Assessment of impacts.

#### The Purpose and Objectives of the Copland LDF Core Strategy

The Copeland Local Development Framework will replace the Adopted Local Plan 2001-2016 and will run up to the end of the plan period in 2027. The Core Strategy is the first and most strategic of the documents that will be produced by the Council during the preparation of the LDF. This Assessment is based upon the Submission Drafts of both the Core Strategy DPD and Development Management Policies DPD, dated January 2012.

The purpose of the Copland LDF Core Strategy can is summed up very concisely in the LDF Vision:

'By 2027, Copeland will be an economically and socially sustainable, well-connected and environmentally responsible place of choice.

Economically sustainable: a place that boasts a highly-skilled workforce and a varied and sustainable economic base that builds on opportunities, including those presented by the low-carbon and renewable energy sectors, knowledge-based industries and tourist attractions;

Socially sustainable: a place that meets the needs of the whole community, where geography is not a barrier to achievement, and where housing quality and availability, social infrastructure, health and well-being, equality and social mobility are improved.

Well-connected: a place that has enhanced transport networks providing improved access to sustainable modes of transport, both within and between its key settlements and out towards neighbouring areas;

Environmentally responsible: a place that adapts to climate change and minimises its carbon footprint, makes the most of its unique coastal location and abundant natural resources whilst protecting and enhancing its green infrastructure, landscapes, heritage and biodiversity.'

This Vision was the basis for the 19 objectives of the Core Strategy listed here

- 1. Support future renewable and low carbon energy generating capacity in Copeland in line with Britain's Energy Coast: A Masterplan for West Cumbria.
- 2. Promote the diversification of the borough's rural and urban economic base to enable a prosperous mixed economy, including creative and knowledge based industries, specialist engineering and the energy sector, building on Copeland's nuclear skills base, and tourism, exploiting heritage, the potential of the unspoiled coast and the quiet of the western lakes.
- 3. Provide a wide range of modern, high-quality employment sites and premises and promote the creation of a high-end knowledge based employment cluster at West Lakes Science and Technology Park.
- 4. Promote the vitality and viability of town and local centres, taking advantage of the built heritage that exists in Copeland's towns and villages (notably Whitehaven and Egremont) to enhance the shopping experience for residents and visitors.

- Support the Nuclear Skills Academy, higher education at Westlakes, and the borough's other educational establishments in improving educational attainment and skills to meet business needs.
- 6. Focus major development in Whitehaven, and encourage complementary and additional development in Cleator Moor, Millom and Egremont and local centres where opportunities exist, in line with strategic infrastructure provision.
- 7. Enable a 'balanced housing market' ensuring that all housing is of good quality, affordable, responds to differing needs from deprived industrial communities to the more prosperous rural areas, and is provided in places where people want to live.
- 8. Ensure that settlements are sustainable and meet the range of needs of their communities by, as far as possible, protecting the facilities that are already present and supporting appropriate new provision, especially in Millom which is the main settlement serving the more remote locality of South Copeland .
- 9. Ensure that all new development meets high standards in terms of energy efficiency, provision for biodiversity, safety, security and accessibility, relates well to existing development, enhances the public realm and develops quality places reflecting their distinctive west and south west Cumbrian character.
- 10. Support the increased sustainability of communities in rural environments varying from former mining settlements in the north and south, to the villages of mid Copeland.
- 11. Reduce the need to travel by supporting improved telephone and rural broadband access.
- 12. Improve access to employment, services, education/training facilities and the leisure opportunities of the coast and Lakeland fringe, by foot, cycle and public transport.
- Develop and maintain safe, efficient, high quality, modern and integrated transport networks with good internal links and connections to key routes, including the West Coast Main Line via both Carlisle and Barrow, and the M6 via both the A66 and A590.
- 14. Adapt to the impacts of climate change by minimising development in flood risk areas and by improving the extent of tree cover and connectivity of wildlife corridors.
- 15. Promote recycling and waste minimisation.
- 16. Protect and enhance all landscapes in the borough, as well as the St Bees Heritage Coast site.
- 17. Protect and enhance the many places and buildings of historical, cultural and archaeological importance and their settings.
- 18. Protect and enhance the rich biodiversity both within and outside of the borough's many nationally and internationally designated sites, ensuring that habitats are extended, connected by effective wildlife corridors and that lost habitats are restored.

19. Safeguard and where possible enhance the natural resources in the borough whilst addressing the impacts of mining, iron working, nuclear energy and other former land uses.

The majority of the LDF land allocations will be made in the Site Allocations Development Plan Document which will be the subject of a later HRA. However, Figure 1 shows the broad locations of some of the major development that is expected to happen in the plan area during the period up to 2027.

Fig. 1 - Core Strategy Key Diagram



### Methodology

#### The approach to Stage 1 was to:

- 1. Make a list of the Natura 2000 sites that are within the plan area and within 20km of the Copeland plan area boundary (see table 1);
- 2. Collate information about the sites, including the reasons for their designation and their vulnerabilities and pressures;
- 3. Identify any potential significant impacts, on each of the sites, arising from the policies in the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies documents.
- Identify if there are likely to be any significant impacts if the policies are taken in combination with the policies in the documents of other neighbouring authorites and planning bodies.

In this document, each internationally designated site is considered in turn, for its vulnerability to negative impacts potentially arising from policies within the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies documents. In addition to this, consideration is given to whether other policies within the documents go any way to mitigating or eliminating the risk to these sites. An assessment is then made as to whether any significant harm is likely to occur. The effects of plans and policies put forward by other authorities are also considered for the 'in combination' part of the assessment.

#### The Evidence Base

Reasons for designating the site i.e. features of interest - data from Natura 2000 Data Forms

 <u>http://jncc.defra.gov.uk/ProtectedSites</u>

Ramsar Information Sheets http://ramsar.wetlands.org/Database/Searchforsites/tabid/765/Default.aspx)

• Conservation objectives

(Data from Natura 2000 Data Formsand Ramsar Information Sheets)

• Key environmental conditions and processes that support site integrity

(Data from Annex I Habitat Accounts and Annex II Species Accounts – accessed through Natural England's websites)

 Critical and current loads/levels for common air pollutants (provided by the Air Pollution Information System – accessed through their website: <u>www.apis.ac.uk</u>)

- Heavy metals deposition monitoring data collected at Cockley Beck in the Lake District available through the DEFRA website -<u>http://pollutantdeposition.defra.gov.uk/network\_results&siteID=HM8&network=Heavy%20</u> <u>Metals</u>
- Present and future capacity of Wastewater Treatment Works information provided by United Utilities
- Present and future water resource supply/demand United Utilities' Water Resource Management Plan
- Traffic counts for major roads near to designated sites information supplied by Cumbria Highways.

Borrowdale Woodland Complex SAC



Name	Borrowdale Woodland Complex
Designation	SAC
Area (ha)	667.83
Qualifying	Western acidic oak woodland
features	•Plants in crevices on acid rocks
	•Bog woodland
SSSIs within the	Lodore-Troutdale Woods SSSI

site.	Seatoller Wood, Sourmilk Gill and Seathwaite Graphite Mine SSSI
	Stonethwaite Woods SSSI
	Johnny Wood SSSI
	Scales Wood SSSI
Commonto on	Great Wood SSSI
Comments on	Borrowdale has the most extensive block of western old sessile oak woods in
Concernation	northern England. The woods are especially fich in bryophytes and lichens and
Lonservation	In recent decades, there has been very little natural regeneration of native
vulnerabilities	woodland tree species to ensure the long-term survival of the woodlands due
vanierabilities	to grazing pressures from domestic livestock. However, very low levels of
	grazing are important to maintain the rich and diverse bryonhyte flora. This
	issue should be addressed through the Environmentally Sensitive Area
	Woodland Grant Scheme and agreement of Site Management Statements.
Kev	Conditions <b>not</b> within Copeland's control:
Environmental	• High water table and maintenance of suitable hydrology
Conditions to	Base-noor soils
Support Site	Control of grazing
Integrity	
	Conditions within Copeland's control
	• Minimal air pollution – bryophytes and lichens are sensitive (particularly to
	support Dioxide that destroys chlorophyll in the algal part of the lichen and
	Control of investive non-notive engeing and any disease outbrooks
Air Quality Issues	• Control of invasive non-native species and any disease outbreaks
All Quality issues	concern (they are well within the critical limite , see Appendix 1). However
	there are issues with the levels of nitrogen and acid denosition which are
	currently above the critical loads for the three different types of habitat on this
	site (The atmospheric nitrogen and sulphur that cause acid rain can travel for
	large distances before being deposited in areas of high rain fall i.e. the source of
	these pollutants is likely to be urban areas to the south of Cumbria.)
	Major roads close to the site – A591 is close to the northernmost part of the
	site. This section of the road runs from Keswick to Windermere and there is no
	reason to suspect that traffic along this road will increase as a result of the
	policies in the LDF. (Most traffic coming into the borough from the M6 will use
	the A66.)
Water Resource	<i>Wastewater</i> : There are issues with the Wastewater Treatment Works (WwTW)
and Wastewater	capacity at Whitehaven and Cleator Moor. However, due to the topography
Treatment Issues	between these areas and the Borrowdale SAC, it is very unlikely that any
	wastewater would reach this site in a flooding incident. See map on page 12.
	Water Resources: This site will be unaffected by any change in drinking water
	sourcing in the plan area.
Possible Impacts	The flow of water through the site is towards the borough and not away from it
Arising from Plan	so therefore any increase in water pollution arising from development in the
	Copeland Plan area will not affect this site.
	Significant negative impacts:
	- The site lies outside of the plan area and to the east of the developed part of
	the borough and therefore, with the prevailing westerly wind any increase in
	traffic could lead to an increase in air pollution moving towards the site.
	- Careless planting schemes could lead to invasive and non-native plant
	species being introduced to the landscape and these could creep towards

	the site over time.
<u>Source</u>	Increased amount of development in the plan area leading to more energy use
Pathway(s)Impact	and vehicular traffic.
	Pollution in air travelling on the wind to the site
	Negative impact on bryophytes and lichens
	Increased amount of development in the plan area some of which will have
	planting schemes
	Creeping of non-native species across land towards the sensitive site.
	Competition with sensitive species leading to decline or extinction on the site.
Policies that could	Air quality is the main issue as regards the impact of the LDF – Policies that
potentially have a	could have a negative impact on air quality are:
negative impact	<b>ST1</b> – Support for energy, economic and housing growth as well as community
-0	facilities and leisure uses.
	<b>ST2</b> – Increased amount of development
	<b>ST3</b> – Support for new nuclear development on the site adjacent to Sellafield
	(i.e. further away from the Drigg coast site)
	<b>ER1</b> – Construction phase of NNB will generate carbon emissions
	ER3 – Construction of Energy Coast Infrastructure will generate emissions
	ER4 – potential for increased air pollution if land uses include B2
	ER7 – Increased amount of development
	<b>ER8</b> – Providing more car parking in the town centre could encourage more
	people to drive in rather than use public transport.
	ER10 – Expand tourism outside the LDNP.
	ER11 - Supporting new and expanding employment sectors. Supporting the
	development of commercial units.
	SS1 – Increased amount of housing development
	SS2 – Increased amount of housing development (additional 230-300 dwellings
	per year)
	SS3 - Increased amount of housing development
	T1 – Road improvements that could encourage car use.
	<b>ENV2</b> - Maximise opportunities along the undeveloped for tourism and outdoor
	recreation. Support energy generating developments that require a coastal
	location
	<b>DM26</b> - Landscaping schemes will have to be submitted with all development
	proposals.
Policies that	ST1 - Ensure development minimises air pollution, minimise the need to travel
eradicate/lessen	<b>S14</b> - Policy will allow LPA to ask for measures to be put in place to protect air
the risk posed	quality where this might be compromised in the operation of the development.
	<b>ER3</b> – Ensure that any new energy transmission intrastructure minimises
	<b>FPE</b> Additional planting around existing industrial estates is likely to have a
	ers – Auditional planting around existing industrial estates is likely to have a
	<b>FPQ</b> - Protection of services within smaller centres will limit the amount of car
	travel to larger centres to access essential services
	<b>SS5</b> – Protecting and enhancing green infrastructure will improve air quality
	<b>T1</b> – improved public transport network
	$\mathbf{T2}$ – reducing the need to travel through supporting the provision of high
	quality broadband connections
	<b>ENV1</b> – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air
	quality
	<b>ENV3</b> - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact

	<ul> <li>on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 — On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - The planting of a community forest would positively impact on the air quality in and beyond Copeland.</li> <li>DM11 – Encouraging developers to achieve high standards of energy efficiency</li> <li>DM12 – Provision of public green space in residential areas</li> <li>DM24 – Protection and expansion of habitats i.e. green spaces leading to better air quality.</li> <li>DM25 –All development proposals must take into account any likely significant effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough and within a 20km radius of the borough boundary as well as those that are hydrologically linked to the development plan area.</li> <li>DM26 - Landscaping schemes will have to be submitted with all development proposals</li> </ul>
Is There a Risk of	New nuclear development and the construction of some energy related
a Significant Effect?	infrastructure could have a negative impact on this site. However, the Council will not be the planning authority for nationally significant infrastructure development. An appropriate assessment will have to be carried out at planning application stage with consideration given to the matter in the Local Impact Report. A significant amount of housing development will take place over the plan period but the sites for that development have not been allocated yet. The Council will prepare for a Site Allocations DPD and this document will be accompanied by its own HRA Screening Report. Focussing development around Whitehaven and the three Key Service Centres will reduce the need to travel far to access employment and services and therefore should help to keep traffic related emissions to a minimum. With regards to an increased amount of employment development, the same applies. There are a significant number of policies within the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies DPD that highlight the importance of minimising carbon emissions and increasing the amount and quality of green infrastructure which will help to control air pollution. Regarding the prevention of introduction of non-native, invasive species – wording has been added to policy DM26 that allows conditions on planning permissions that state that all species used in landscaping schemes must use plants that are non-invasive.
Possible Impacts	Allerdale LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – additional 267-350 dwellings
Arising from Other Plans and Projects	<ul> <li>per year (equating to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period). Some limited housing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in more sustainable locations i.e. Workington, Maryport, Aspatria, Cockermouth, Wigton etc.</li> <li>Lake District National Park Core Strategy – 900 additional dwellings in the period to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 30% in clusters and the open countryside). There will be an additional 9.2ha of employment land and it is acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional nationally significant visitor attractions.</li> <li>Lake District National Park Site Allocations Preferred Options – All</li> </ul>
	employment land allocated will be in the Rural Service Centres. Borrowdale Woodland SAC falls into the North West Distinctive Area which will

	accommodate 25% of all development in the LDNP
	Carlisle IDE Core Strategy Issues and Ontions – Currently no policy direction
	offered Carlisle has been designated as a growth point though so it can be
	reasonably expected that there will be a significant amount of additional
	housing and employment development over the plan period
	Edan Adapted Core Strategy - Eocus new build housing in Key and Local Service
	Contros whilet allowing for mosting accontial pools in smaller settlements. The
	Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The
	plan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additional dwellings per annum to
	2025 (over 3100 units in total). Sona of employment land will be made available
	to 2025.
	Barrow Port Area Action Plan – 925 additional dwellings in the Action Plan Area
	to 2021. Additional leisure facilities including marina and boat servicing area,
	Waterfront hotel, Water sports centre and very limited amount of retail.
	Improving access to the operational port from road and sea to support new
	opportunities to increase the proportion of freight moved by sea. Development
	of Waterfront Business Park as a major new business and employment location
	(24.5ha site).
	South Lakeland LDF Core Strategy – 55% of new housing and employment
	development will be in the Principal Service Centres, 13% in Key Service
	Centres, 21% in Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and
	hamlets. Housing target is 469 additional dwellings per year equating to nearly
	6100 to 2025. 21ha of employment development to be accommodated in
	Kendal to 2025, 12ha to be accommodated in Ulverston and Furness but overall
	4 ha of employment land will be allocated per annum between 2010 and 2025
	equating to 60ha over the plan period.
	Cumbria Local Transport Plan 3 – Support for the upgrading of the A595, A590,
	A5094 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth in the
	low carbon energy sector. Increased bus services in rural areas. Improvement to
	the Cumbria West Coast Railway. Carlisle Northern Development Route will be
	completed in 2012.
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste LDF Core Strategy – no regional waste facilities to
	be located in Cumbria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the
	south of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with a
	preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of facility,
	for example, a Household Waste Recycling Centre and a Transfer/Bulking
	Station. This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core Strategy Policy for
	minimising "waste miles".
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste Site Allocations DPD – Allocates sites for mineral
	working and waste facilities. The HRA for this document stated that there were
	13 sites in the whole of the county that would require an Appropriate
	Assessment at project stage but that the policies themselves were unlikely to
	have negative effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The mitigation
	measures that are considered likely to be needed are common place and could
	form the conditions of the planning application.
Is there risk of a	Possibly – all of the above are planning for an increased amount of
significant effect	development which will lead to a greater amount of disnersed air pollution
in combination?	However, the levels of some air pollutants are well within the critical
	loads/limits (see Annendix 1) and the level of development described above
	could not be expected to treble and guadruple the amount of air pollution.
	senarate HRA Screening Report will be produced during the preparation of the
	Site Allocations DPD that will take into account increases in traffic along the
	Site Anotations Dr D that will take into account increases in traffic along the

main roads in West Cumbria and beyond. (This modelling cannot be done until
the allocated sites and their capacities are known).

**Clints Quarry SAC** 



Name	Clints Quarry
Designation	SAC
Area (ha)	12.03
Qualifying	Great Crested Newt
features	
SSSIs within the	Clints Quarry (Moota)
Site	

Comments on	Contains several pools that support a large great crested newt population that
Nature	has shown evidence of recruitment in recent years
Conservation	The great crested newt population has developed since quarrying ceased in the
Importance and	1980s. The site has been relatively undisturbed since. Water levels in the ponds
vulnerabilities	are largely dependent on rainfall which has been low in recent years.
Kev	Conditions <b>not</b> within Copeland's control:
Environmental	• Suitable foraging and refuge habitat within 500m of the pond
Conditions to	• 75% nonds deep enough to retain water throughout February to mid-August at
Support Site	least one year in every three
Integrity	No barriers to movement between nends
incegney	Controlled chading of nonds by troos
	• Controlled shading of polids by trees
	• Absence of fish in at least 50% ponds
	Conditions within Copeland's control:
	<ul> <li>In a wider context, great crested newts require good connectivity of landscape</li> </ul>
	features (ponds, hedges etc.) as they often live as metapopulations in a
	number of ponds
	<ul> <li>Relatively unpolluted water of roughly neutral pH</li> </ul>
Air Pollution	Juvenile Great Crested Newts are sensitive to acid deposition and whilst no
lssues	critical load data is available a reading has been taken. (See Appendix 1)one of
	the sources of acid deposition is vehicle emissions. The site is close to three of
	West Cumbria's busiest roads i.e. A66, A591 and A595 and an increase in traffic
	along these roads could increase the acid deposition in the breeding ponds and
	on the adjacent foraging land. It will be important that the HRAs that are
	carried out for the Site Allocations DPD and the major infrastructure planning
	applications address the potential risk of an increase in traffic on these sections
	of road and a corresponding increase in acid deposition.
Water Resource	<i>Wastewater</i> - The water flowing into the ponds on this site comes from the
and Wastewater	immediate surrounding area. The catchment area for local streams and WwTW
Treatment Issues	is completely outside the plan area and therefore this site will be unaffected by
	sewage pollution from the plan area in a flooding incident.
	Water Resources - There are no plans to source drinking water for the plan area
	from upstream of this site.
Possible Impacts	The flow of water through the site is towards the borough and not away from it
Arising from Plan	so therefore any increase in water pollution arising from development in the
	Copeland Plan area will not affect this site
	The newts that live on this site are unlikely to require good habitat connectivity
	in Copeland as they very rarely move more than 1-2km from their breeding
	nond and in fact usually stay much closer than this. None of the policies in the
	Coneland I DE will impact on this SAC
Source	Pollution in water from increased amount of development
Pathway	Only through air as water flows from the site towards the plan area
Imnact	Unlikely to be any impact arising from the Coneland LDE Core Strategy
Policies that	
could notentially	
have a negative	
imnact	
Policies that	Ν/Δ
oradicato /loscon	
the rick period	
la There a Diali a f	It is not available that there will be a significant impact. However, a faith with A
is There a Risk of	it is not expected that there will be a significant impact. However, a further HRA

a Significant Effect?	Screening Report will be produced for the LDF Site Allocations DPD. Traffic modelling will be carried out as part of this work and the data will be used to assess whether any increase in traffic will lead to increased acid deposition.
Possible Impacts Arising from Other Plans and Projects	N/A
Is there risk of a significant effect in combination?	N/A

### Drigg Coast SAC



Name	Drigg Coast
Designation	SAC
Area (ha)	1397.44
Qualifying	• Estuaries

features	Coastal dune heathland
	• Dunes with creeping willow
	Intertidal mudflats and sandflats
	<ul> <li>Glasswort and other annuals colonising mud and sand</li> </ul>
	Atlantic salt meadows
	Shifting dunes
	Shifting dunes with marram
	Dune grassland
	Humid dune slacks
SSSIs within the	Drigg Coast
Site	
Comments on	Within the site are some of the least-disturbed transitions to terrestrial babitats
Nature	of any estuary found in the IIK
Conservation	The estuary and sand dunes systems are still relatively 'natural' and there is no
Importance and	threat at present of any development that may affect estuarine processes. Much
vulnerabilities	of the sand dune area is under Countryside Stewardship Agreements or as a
Vullierabilities	Cumbrian Wildlife Trust Reserve. The vulnerability of the marine site will be
	further identified through Natural England's work to develop and promote the
	necessary conservation measures for LIK marine SACs. Natural England has
	developed guidance on setting and reviewing conservation objectives identified
	key human activities which may affect Anney Land Anney II interests identified
	the necessary survey management and monitoring systems, and increased the
	awareness of those most closely involved in the use and management of marine
	SACs. Natural England's advice under Regulation 33 has been issued and a brief
	management scheme statement drafted.
Kev	Conditions <i>not</i> within Copeland's control:
Environmental	Maintain morphological equilibrium of the estuary including sedimentation
Conditions to	natterns
Support Site	Avoidance of nutrient enrichment
Integrity	Appropriate grazing of saltmarsh communities
	Control of bracken/scrub
	Maintain minimal impact of fishing bait digging and dredging
	No increase in organic matter in sediments
	High enough water table for dune slacks
	Conditions within Copeland's control:
	<ul> <li>No physical constraints to natural migration of mobile habitats such as dunes</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Avoidance of damaging levels of erosion from human activities</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>No physical constraints to managed realignment if required in response to</li> </ul>
	coastal squeeze
	<ul> <li>Maintain temperature and salinity levels within natural range (this would be</li> </ul>
	related to new nuclear development and although land use planning would
	not be controlled by Copeland).
	Avoidance of pollution
	Control of invasive and/or non-native species
Air Quality Issues	The levels of $NH_3$ , $SO_2$ , acid deposition and $NO\mathbb{P}$ sampled at the site do not cause
	any concern. However, there are issues with the levels of nitrogen deposition
	which are currently above the critical loads for at least one of the habitats on
	the site (Dunes with Salix repens ssp. Argentea (Salicion arenariae – 2170)). The
	A595 runs quite close to the site and is one of the main roads in the West
	Cumbria area. There could be some deterioration in air quality if traffic increases

	on this road which it may do if nuclear new build goes ahead. It will be very important that any HRA of the planning applications for new nuclear development and the associated infrastructure take account of this as a potential negative impact. (Copeland Borough Council will not be the deciding authority for these planning applications but will highlight the issues that need to be covered in the relevant HRAs during the preparation of the Local Impact Report). The LDF Site Allocations DPD will allocate sites for housing,
	employment etc. Traffic modelling will be carried out as part of the preparation of this document. The data from this modelling will be used to inform the HRA Screening Report that accompanies the Site Allocations document.
Water Resource	<i>Wastewater</i> : The closest WwTW to this site is at Seascale. United Utilities have
and Wastewater	reported that this facility is not experiencing any capacity problems and will be
Treatment Issues	able to cope with the planned growth in Seascale.
	Water resources: This site will not be subject to water abstraction or affected by
Possible Impacts	•Improved road access to the coast could increase recreational access and
Arising from Plan	increase opportunities for litter and fuel pollution as well as erosion.
	•Concerns regarding the potential impact of radioactive waste storage in the vicinity of the site.
	•Concerns over nuclear cooling water potentially being discharged into the sea affecting temperature and salinity (?) – Although this is a concern it would be
	permission for nuclear new build and this will not be dealt with by Copeland
	• Development on or immediately behind the coast could constrain managed
	realignment and prevent the natural movement of dunes.
	• Careless planting schemes could lead to invasive and non-native plant
	species being introduced to the landscape and these could creep towards the site over time.
Source	• More road traffic due to improved road access leading to more air pollution,
Pathway	littering and erosionthrough trampling
Impact	• More housing and employment development leading to more air, ground and
	water pollution generally.
	• <u>Storage of radioactive material</u> potentially leading to <i>contamination</i> and
	possible genetic mutations
	<u>Nuclear cooling water</u> potentially being <i>pumped into the sed</i> leading to
	<ul> <li>Development immediately behind the coast loading to the need to stop the</li> </ul>
	• <u>Development</u> inimediately behind the coast leading to the need to <b>stop the</b>
	• Increased amount of development in the plan area some of which will have
	nlanting schemes
	Creening of non-native species across land towards the sensitive site
	Competition with sensitive species leading to decline or extinction on the
	site.
Policies that	Policies that could have a negative impact on this SAC are:
could potentially	<b>ST1</b> – Support for energy, economic and housing growth as well as community
have a negative	facilities and leisure uses.
impact	ST2 – Support for nuclear and renewable energy generating developments on
	the coast as well as the essential infrastructure to support it.
	<b>ST3</b> – Support for new nuclear development on the site adjacent to Sellafield
	(i.e. further away from the Drigg coast site)

	<ul> <li>ER1 – Major nuclear energy expansion on the site north of Sellafield is supported in principle. The Council will establish if there is community support and a full safety case for a high level waste repository. Construction of both will generate carbon emissions and could produce other air and ground pollution.</li> <li>ER2 – Renewable energy developments at locations which best maximise generation.</li> <li>ER3 - Construction of Energy Coast Infrastructure will generate emissions</li> <li>ER4 – potential for increased air pollution if land uses include B2</li> <li>ER7 - Increased amount of development</li> <li>ER8 - Providing more car parking in the town centre could encourage more people to drive rather than use public transport.</li> <li>ER10 – Expand tourism outside the LDNP.</li> <li>SS1 – Increased amount of housing development</li> <li>SS3 - Increased amount of housing development</li> <li>T1 – Road improvements that could encourage car use</li> </ul>
	<b>ENV2</b> – Maximise opportunities along the undeveloped for tourism and outdoor recreation. Support energy generating developments that require a coastal
	DM26 - Landscaping schemes will have to be submitted with all development proposals.
Policies that eradicate/lessen the risk posed	<ul> <li>ST1 - Ensure development minimises air pollution, minimise the need to travel</li> <li>ST4 - development proposals should provide, or contribute to the provision of environmental requirements either on or off site.</li> <li>ER2 - Support and facilitate new renewable energy generating at locations which minimise environmental impacts within acceptable limits (what are the acceptable limits?)</li> <li>ER3 - Ensure that any new energy transmission infrastructure minimises potential impacts on biodiversity.</li> <li>ER5 - Additional planting around existing industrial estates is likely to have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ER9 - Protection of services within smaller centres will limit the amount of car travel to larger centres to access essential services.</li> <li>ER10 - Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where these can be accommodated without adverse environmental impacts.</li> <li>SS5 - Protecting and enhancing green infrastructure will improve air quality</li> <li>ENV1 - Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality</li> <li>ENV2 - Support the management of more of the undeveloped coast for biodiversity. Support developments that require a coastal location along the undeveloped coast provided that the potential impacts on biodiversity are carefully assessed against and compensated for.</li> <li>ENV3 - The Council will seek to improve the condition of internationally designated sites, ensure that development protects and enhances biodiversity interest, restrict access and usage where appropriate in order to conserve an area's biodiversity value.</li> <li>ENV5 - On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on air quality. ENV5 - On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on air quality. ENV5</li> </ul>

	in and beyond Copeland.
	<b>DM1</b> – Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. Particular attention would be given to whether the residual impacts of the proposed development would be acceptable. The
	Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scaled and phased package of
	community benefits to mitigate the environmental impacts of the development.
	<b>DM11</b> – Encouraging developers to achieve high standards of energy efficiency
	DM12 – Provision of public green space in residential areas
	DM24 - All development should protect the biodiversity value of land and
	buildings and minimise fragmentation of habitats. Maximise opportunities for
	conservation, restoration, enhancement and connection of habitats. All
	development proposals must take into account internationally important sites
	within the borough and within 20km of the borough boundary as well as those
	that are hydrologically linked to the borough.
	<b>DM25</b> –All development proposals must take into account any likely significant
	effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough and
	within a 20km radius of the borough boundary as well as those that are
	nydrologically linked to the development plan area.
	<b>Divize</b> - Landscaping schemes will have to be submitted with all development
ls Thora a Rick of	Now nuclear development and the construction of some operative related
a Significant	infrastructure could have a negative impact on this site. However, the Council
Effect?	will not be the planning authority for this type of development. An appropriate
	assessment will have to be carried out at planning application stage with
	consideration given to the matter in the Local Impact Report.
	A significant amount of housing development will take place over the plan
	period but the preferred sites for that development have not been allocated yet.
	This work will form part of the preparation for the Site Allocations DPD and this
	document will be accompanied by its own HRA Screening Report. Focussing
	development around Whitehaven and the three Key Service Centres will reduce
	the need to travel far to access employment and services and therefore keep
	traffic related emissions to a minimum. With regards to an increased amount of
	employment development, the same applies.
	There are a significant number of policies within the Core Strategy and
	Development Management Policies DPD that highlight the importance of
	minimising carbon emissions and increasing the amount and quality of green infrastructure, which will belo to control air pollution
	Regarding the prevention of introduction of non-invasive species – there is
	probably scope for adding some words to the policy DM26 that allow conditions
	to be put on planning permissions that states that all species used in landscaping
	schemes must use plants that are native to that particular landscape.
	Trampling is an important issue when considering policies that encourage more
	people into any given area. ENV3F does, however, allow for planners to add
	conditions that will restrict access and usage of land where that would lead to
	trampling and disturbance of sensitive habitats and species. This should
	significantly lessen the risk of damage.
Possible Impacts	Proposals within West Cumbria Masterplan – Development of the Westlakes
Arising from	Research Institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the
Other Plans and	National Nuclear Skills Academy at Lillyhall, the Dalton Institute (lab facilities)at
Projects	vestiakes, further investment in the employment sites at Leconfield and

	Bridgend. A 'health campus' on the current hospital site and new University of
	Cumbria facilities at Lillyhall. New National Nuclear Laboratory headquarters in
	West Cumbria.
	North West RSS - Drigg coast falls within North West coast area of search for a
	regional park and a planned North West Coastal Trail. There is potential for
	increased visitor pressure.
	Allerdale LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – additional 267-350 dwellings
	per year (equating to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period). Some
	limited housing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in more
	sustainable locations i.e. Workington, Maryport, Aspatria, Cockermouth, Wigton
	etc.
	Lake District National Park Core Strategy – 900 additional dwellings in the
	period to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 30% in clusters
	and the open countryside). There will be an additional 9.2ha of employment
	land and it is acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional
	nationally significant visitor attractions.
	Lake District National Park Site Allocations Preferred Options – All employment
	land allocated will be in the Rural Service Centres. The Drigg Coast SAC falls into
	the West Distinctive Area which will accommodate 10% of all development in
	the LDNP.
	Carlisle LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – Currently no policy direction
	offered. Carlisle has been designated as a growth point though so it can be
	reasonably expected that there will be a significant amount of additional
	housing and employment development over the plan period.
	Eden Adopted Core Strategy – Focus new build housing in Key and Local Service
	Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The
	plan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additional dwellings per annum to 2025
	(over 3100 units in total). 50ha of employment land will be made available to
	2025.
	Barrow Port Area Action Plan – 925 additional dwellings in the Action Plan Area
	to 2021. Additional leisure facilities including marina and boat servicing area,
	Waterfront hotel, Water sports centre and very limited amount of retail.
	Improving access to the operational port from road and sea to support new
	opportunities to increase the proportion of freight moved by sea. Development
	of Waterfront Business Park as a major new business and employment location
	(24.5ha site).
	South Lakeland LDF Core Strategy – 55% of new housing and employment
	development will be in the Principal Service Centres, 13% in Key Service Centres,
	21% in Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and hamlets.
	Housing target is 469 additional dwellings per year equating to nearly 6100 to
	2025. 21na of employment development to be accommodated in Kendal to
	2025, 12na to be accommodated in Ulverston and Furness but overall 4 ha of
	employment land will be allocated per annum between 2010 and 2025 equating
	to buna over the plan period.
	<b>Cumpria Local Transport Plan 3</b> – Support for the upgrading of the A595, A590,
	A5094 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth in the
	iow carbon energy sector. Increased bus services in rural areas. Improvement to
	the cumpria west coast kallway. Carlisle Northern Development Route will be
	completed in 2012.
	<b>Cumpria Winerais and Waste LDF Core Strategy</b> – no regional waste facilities to
1	be located in cumpria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the
	south of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with a
--------------------	-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
	preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of facility,
	for example, a Household Waste Recycling Centre and a Transfer/Bulking
	Station. This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core Strategy Policy for
	minimising "waste miles".
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste Site Allocations DPD – Allocates sites for mineral
	working and waste facilities. The HRA for this document stated that there were
	13 sites in the whole of the county that would require an Appropriate
	Assessment at project stage but that the policies themselves were unlikely to
	have negative effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The mitigation
	measures that are considered likely to be needed are common place and could
	form the conditions of the planning application.
	Shoreline Management Plan 2 – Allowing natural erosion of cliffs between
	Selker and Stubb Place and limited intervention between Stubb Place and
	Eskmeals Dunes. This will allow continued natural coastal evolution and roll-
	back of the dunes but will manage risk to assets. Short term measures will be
	taken to allow continued use of the road at Stubb Place whilst a long term
	solution is sought. The line will be held at Ravenglass by maintaining and
	improving existing seawalls and embankments. North of Seascale the cliffs will
	be allowed to erode.
Is there risk of a	There is a risk of significant effects in combination but the information available
significant effect	at the moment is limited. A separate HRA Screening report will accompany the
in combination?	Site Allocations DPD.

### **Duddon Mosses SAC**



Name	Duddon Mosses
Designation	SAC
Area (ha)	313.07

Qualifying	Active raised bogs
features	Degraded raised bog
SSSIS within the	Duddon Mosses
Comments on Nature Conservation Importance and vulnerabilities	In the southern part of the complex, where there are transitions from saltmarsh to bog, the vegetation is rich in the rare golden bog-moss. Pockets in the degraded areas include raised bog plants such as bog-mosses with good prospects for regeneration provided the hydrology is repaired. Past drainage for peat extraction has lowered the water table and allowed scrub to spread across the mosses. The majority of landowners have management agreements with Natural England to allow restoration work. A programme of
	scrub removal and ditch-blocking is being undertaken, with positive results.
Key Environmental Conditions to	<ul> <li>Conditions <i>not</i> within Copeland's control:</li> <li>Restoration of sufficient water table (involving ditch blocking)</li> <li>Scrub and bracken control</li> </ul>
Integrity	Conditions within Copeland's control: • Maintain nutrient poor status • Absence of atmospheric pollution
Air Quality Issues	The levels of SO <sub>2</sub> , ozone and NO <sup>I</sup> sampled at the site do not cause any concern. However, there are issues with the levels of NH <sub>3</sub> , nitrogen deposition and acid deposition which are currently above the critical loads for the two types of habitat on this site. There are a number of A roads close to the site (A595, A5092, A5093, A5084, A593). It will be important that the HRA of the Site Allocations DPD and the nuclear new build and infrastructure planning applications take the impact of increased traffic on these roads into account.
Water Resource	Wastewater: The Millom waste water treatment works can accommodate the
and Wastewater Treatment Issues	planned growth in the Millom area. Consequently there is unlikely to be any pollution arising from untreated wastewater getting onto the site. <i>Water Resources:</i> There are currently no plans to source drinking water from
	South Copeland.
Possible Impacts Arising from Plan	<ul> <li>Increased tourist vehicular traffic impacting on air quality – the prevailing wind is westerly/ south westerly so increases in traffic in the Millom area could have a detrimental effect.</li> </ul>
<u>Source</u> Pathway Impact	Increased tourism and access could lead to increased traffic movement in the South Copeland/Mid Copeland area resulting in <b>more air pollution</b> that would travel on the <i>prevailing wind towards the site</i> .
Policies that could potentially have a negative impact	The following policies could increase the amount of atmospheric pollution and therefore impact negatively on this SAC: ST1 – Support for energy, economic and housing growth as well as community facilities and leisure uses. ST2 – Increased amount of development ST3–Support for new nuclear development on the site adjacent to Sellafield (i.e. further away from the Drigg coast site than the current site.) ER1 – Construction phase of NNB will generate carbon emissions ER3 – Construction of Energy Coast Infrastructure will generate emissions ER4 – potential for increased air pollution if land uses include B2 ER7 – Increased amount of development ER8 – Providing more car parking in the town centre could encourage more
	people to drive rather than use public transport.

	ER10 – Expand tourism outside the LDNP.
	<b>ER11</b> - Supporting new and expanding employment sectors. Supporting the
	development of commercial units.
	<b>SS1</b> – Increased amount of housing development
	SS2 – Increased amount of housing development
	SS3 - Increased amount of housing development
	<b>T1</b> – Road improvements that could encourage car use.
	<b>ENV2 -</b> Maximise opportunities along the undeveloped coast for tourism and
	outdoor recreation and support energy generating developments that require a
	coastal location.
Policies that	<b>ST1</b> - Ensure development minimises air pollution minimise the need to travel
eradicate/lessen	<b>ST4</b> - Policy will allow I PA to ask for measures to be put in place to protect air
the risk nosed	quality where this might be compromised in the operation of the development
	<b>FR3</b> – Ensure that any new energy transmission infrastructure minimises
	notential impacts on hiodiversity
	<b>EPE</b> – Additional planting around existing industrial estates is likely to have a
	nositive impact on air quality
	<b>FPO</b> Protection of convices within smaller control will limit the amount of car
	travel to larger contros to access essential services
	<b>SSE</b> – Protecting and enhancing groon infrastructure will improve air quality
	<b>T1</b> – improved public transport network
	$\mathbf{T} = \text{improved public transport network.}$
	hroadband connections
	<b>ENV1</b> – Dianting treas to control flood rick will have a positive impact on air
	envi – Planting trees to control nood risk will have a positive impact on all
	<b>ENV2</b> Protecting and extending woodland babitat will have a positive impact
	on air quality
	<b>ENVE</b> On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the
	development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape
	Encouraging groop infractructure will have a positive impact on air quality
	<b>ENUCE</b> The planting of a community forest would positively impact on the air
	eivo - The planting of a community forest would positively impact on the an
	<b>DM11</b> Encouraging developers to achieve high standards of opergy officiency
	<b>DM11</b> – Encouraging developers to achieve high standards of energy enciency
	<b>DW12</b> – Provision of public green space in residential areas
	<b>DW24</b> – Protection and expansion of habitats i.e. green spaces leading to better
	ali quality.
	<b>Divizs</b> –All development proposals must take into account any likely significant
	effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough and
	within a 20km radius of the borough boundary as well as those that are
	<b>DV12C</b> Londsoning schemes will have to be submitted with all development
	<b>Divizo</b> - Landscaping schemes will have to be submitted with all development
la Thora a Dick of	proposals.
a Significant	nere is the risk of a greater amount of diffuse air pollution. However there are
	policies in the Core Strategy that encourage a greater amount of green
Enectr	decument dees all that it can at a yory strategic level. Until more information is
Thomas in a mining of	uocument uoes all that it can at a very strategic level. Until more information is
i nere is a risk of	available i.e. at site allocations or project stage it will be very difficult to carry
an increase in	out an appropriate assessment. A separate HKA screening report will be
aittuse air	produced as part of the preparation of the Site Allocations DPD.
pollution.	
Possible Impacts	<ul> <li>Development at Barrow-in-Furness, Duddon-in-Furness, Ulverston and</li> </ul>

Arising from	especially Millom could increase traffic on the A5092 with potential air quality
Other Plans and	implications.
Projects	• Any improvements to the A5092 risk hydrological, water quality and air quality
	effects, especially during construction.
	• Duddon Mosses fall within North West coast area of search for a regional park
	and a planned North West Coastal Trail. Dependent on selection of area, and
	proposed uses (e.g. leisure, tourism) there is potential for increased visitor
	pressure. The Cumbria Coastal Way already passes through the site.
	Proposals within West Cumbria Masterplan – Development of the Westlakes
	Research Institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the
	National Nuclear Skills Academy at Lillyhall, the Dalton Institute (lab facilities)at
	Westlakes, further investment in the employment sites at Leconfield and
	Bridgend. A 'health campus' on the current hospital site and new University of
	Cumbria facilities at Lillynali. New National Nuclear Laboratory neadquarters in
	North West RSS - Drigg coast falls within North West coast area of search for a
	regional park and a planned North West Coastal Trail. There is notential for
	increased visitor pressure
	Allerdale LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – additional 267-350 dwellings
	per vear (equating to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period). Some
	limited housing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in more
	sustainable locations i.e. Workington, Maryport, Aspatria, Cockermouth, Wigton
	etc.
	Lake District National Park Core Strategy - 900 additional dwellings in the
	period to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 30% in clusters
	and the open countryside). There will be an additional 9.2ha of employment
	land and it is acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional
	nationally significant visitor attractions.
	Lake District National Park Site Allocations Preferred Options – All employment
	and allocated will be in the Rural Service Centres. Duddon Mosses SAC fails into
	the LDNP
	Carlisle I DF Core Strategy Issues and Options – Currently no policy direction
	offered. Carlisle has been designated as a growth point though so it can be
	reasonably expected that there will be a significant amount of additional
	housing and employment development over the plan period.
	Eden Adopted Core Strategy – Focus new build housing in Key and Local Service
	Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The
	plan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additional dwellings per annum to 2025
	(over 3100 units in total). 50ha of employment land will be made available to
	2025.
	Barrow Port Area Action Plan – 925 additional dwellings in the Action Plan Area
	to 2021. Additional leisure facilities including marina and boat servicing area,
	Waterfront hotel, Water sports centre and very limited amount of retail.
	improving access to the operational port from road and sea to support new
	opportunities to increase the proportion of freight moved by sea. Development
	(24 Sha site)
	South Lakeland LDF Core Strategy – 55% of new housing and employment
	development will be in the Principal Service Centres, 13% in Key Service Centres
	21% in Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and hamlets.

	Housing target is 469 additional dwellings per year equating to nearly 6100 to 2025, 21ha of employment development to be accommodated in Kendal to
	2025, 12ha to be accommodated in Ulverston and Furness but overall 4 ha of
	employment land will be allocated per annum between 2010 and 2025 equating
	to 60ha over the plan period.
	Cumbria Local Transport Plan 3 – Support for the upgrading of the A595, A590,
	A5094 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth in the
	low carbon energy sector. Increased bus services in rural areas. Improvement to
	the Cumbria West Coast Railway. Carlisle Northern Development Route will be
	completed in 2012.
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste LDF Core Strategy – no regional waste facilities to
	be located in Cumbria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the
	south of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with a
	preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of facility,
	for example, a Household Waste Recycling Centre and a Transfer/Bulking
	Station. This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core Strategy Policy for
	minimising "waste miles".
	<b>Cumbria Minerals and Waste Site Allocations DPD</b> – Allocates sites for mineral
	working and waste facilities. The HRA for this document stated that there were
	13 sites in the whole of the county that would require an Appropriate
	Assessment at project stage but that the policies themselves were unlikely to
	nave negative effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The mitigation
	form the conditions of the planning condition
	Shareling Management Plan 2 In the Dudden Ectuary area the approach is to
	maintain the line, where there are access to protect, and to let the shore
	continue to erode where there are limited assets
ls thoro risk of a	As all of the above plans are planning for a greater amount of development in
significant effect	each of the plan areas it is likely that there could be a significant effect on the
in combination?	integrity of the site. A separate HRA screening report will be prepared in
	tandem with the Site Allocations DPD

# Lake District High Fells SAC



Name	Lake District High Fells
Designation	SAC
Area (ha)	26999.36
Qualifying features	<ul> <li>Clear-water lakes or lochs with aquatic vegetation and poor to moderate nutrient levels</li> </ul>

	<ul> <li>Control of invasive and non-native species and disease outbreaks</li> </ul>
	• Avoidance of damaging levels of erosion from trampling, vehicles etc.
Air Quality Issues	The levels of SO <sub>2</sub> , ozone and NOE sampled at the site do not cause any concern. However, there are issues with the levels of nitrogen and acid deposition which are currently above the critical loads for the three different types of habitat on this site. Levels of NH <sub>3</sub> are very close to the critical levels for some of the habitats i.e. those where bryophytes are present. (See appendix 1 for details). This site is in several parts and covers a large area. There are a number of moderately busy A roads running between some of the sites (A66, A591 and slightly further away, the A595). Increases in traffic along these roads arising from proposals in the Site Allocations DPD and in applications submitted by the nuclear industry, will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports accompanying these plans.
and Wastewater	different parts of the site would prevent any untreated sewage water from
Treatment Issues	polluting the site.
	<i>Water resources:</i> United Utilities abstract water from Ennerdale Water but a
	high water table is not a condition required to support the integrity of the site.
Possible Impacts	Anthropomorphic sediment input into the lakes originating from the plan area is
Arising from Plan	unlikely due to the direction of flow of water towards the sea.
	Potentially significant negative effects
	<ul> <li>Water contamination can result from rain water falling through air contaminated with car fumes or industrial emissions and therefore any increase in these particulates could cause an increase in water pollution. An increase in housing and employment development anywhere in the borough could contribute to an increase in air pollution over the Lake District High Fells.</li> <li>Careless planting schemes could lead to invasive plant species being introduced to the landscape and these could creen towards the site over</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Improved public transport access to the Lake District National Park has</li> </ul>
	potential to increase tourism and recreational use of the area and therefore trampling.
Source	Increased access to the LDNP will increase number of tourists and therefore
Pathway(s)Impact	increased erosionfrom trampling and vehicular traffic.
(\$)	<u>Increased amount of development</u> leading to greater air pollutants which could travel on the prevailing wind towards the site. Bain falling through polluted air
	could lead to a small amount of water pollution affecting the health of
	important species.
	Increased amount of development in the plan area some of which will have
	planting schemes
	Creeping of non-native species across land towards the sensitive site.
	Competition with sensitive species leading to decline or extinction on the site.
Policies that could	<b>ST1</b> – Support energy, economic and housing development as well as services
potentially have a	and recreational facilities.
negative impact	<b>SI2</b> - facilitate growth in the local economy and associated growth in demand
	secontial infractructure
	ST3 – In pursuit of economic regeneration and growth
	<b>ER1</b> – Support for nuclear new build – whilst the operational phase should be
	reasonably clean with regards to emissions, the construction phase has the

	potential to have a negative impact.
	ER2 – Support for renewable energy developments
	ER3 – Identify sites for NNB construction workers accommodation, encourage
	development of new educational facilities.
	<b>ER4</b> – Allocating land for economic development over the plan period at a rate
	exceeding the take up rate of the past.
	<b>ER7</b> – Supporting the continued growth of Whitehaven. Encourage evening and
	night time uses.
	<b>ER8</b> – Enhancing the retail function of the town centre and improving the
	tourism offer. Developments should provide parking both for the development
	and the town centre. More parking could encourage more people to drive
	rather than take public transport. Conversion of vacant floors over shops into
	residential accommodation. Redrawing the town centre boundary to reflect the
	anticipated growth and development in the area.
	<b>ER9</b> – Town centre improvements will be encouraged in the Key Service Centres
	to attract more visitors.
	<b>ER10</b> – Expand tourism outside the Lake District boundaries.
	<b>ER11</b> – Supporting new and expanding employment sectors. Supporting the
	development of commercial units.
	<b>SS1</b> – Allocation of housing sites, renovation and improvement of existing
	housing stock, demolition and redevelopment schemes.
	<b>SS2</b> – Housing allocations to meet a baseline requirement of 230-300 dwellings
	per year.
	SS4 - Encouraging the provision of good quality services and facilities
	T1 – Transport improvements including new Pow Beck Spine Road, new Eastern
	relief road, improvements to A595 and A5086. Better connections will be
	sought to the A66, M6, A595 etc. Parking strategy will set out guidance for
	incorporating car parking in new developments.
	<b>ENV2</b> – Support for energy generating developments which require a coastal
	location along the undeveloped coast.
	<b>ENV4</b> – Supporting proposals for heritage led regeneration.
	<b>DM26</b> - Landscaping schemes will have to be submitted with all development
	proposals.
Policies that	<b>ST1</b> – Protect and enhance sites of nature conservation and biodiversity value.
eradicate/lessen	Encourage creation of new areas of green infrastructure. Ensure development
the risk posed	minimises air, ground and water pollution.
	<b>ST2</b> – Growth should be concentrated in the settlements focussing the largest
	scale development in sustainable locations.
	<b>ST4</b> - Development proposals should provide, or contribute to the provision of
	environmental requirements on or off site.
	<b>ER1</b> – The Council will work with partners to identify whether a high-level waste
	repository can be justified and that there are no negative impacts on, inter alia,
	the environment. The Council will seek to ensure that all investment in the
	nuclear sector is accompanied by financial or in-kind contributions to mitigate
	any potentially detrimental impacts.
	Enz - support for renewable energy generating developments at locations
	which minimise environmental impacts so that they are within acceptable
	<b>ED2</b> – Encure that any new operation infractructure minimizes notential impacts on
	hiodiversity
	<b>FR6</b> – Presumption in favour of employment sites in sustainable locations
	<b>End</b> is resumption in rayour of employment sites in sustainable locations.

<b>ER10 -</b> Wherever possible tourism providers will be required to ensure	e that
accommodation and attractions are well connected to other tourist	
destinations and amenities narticularly by public transport walking a	nd cycling
Locate new tourist accommodation facilities and attractions where the	naro is
proven capacity for additional vicitors to be accommodated without a	duorso
proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without a	uverse
<b>11</b> - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise	
accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle a	nd public
transport.	
T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity thro	ugh
existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough	will be
supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need	to travel.
<b>ENV1</b> – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact	on air
quality	
<b>ENV3</b> - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive	e impact
on air quality	
<b>ENV5</b> – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the second seco	the
development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape	the
Encouraging groop infrastructure will have a positive impact on air gu	ality
Encouraging green initiasti ucture with have a positive impact on all que	ancy.
<b>ENVO</b> - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and V	westor
Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help	p to lower
the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.	
<b>DM1</b> - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioact	ive
material should include a strategy for the long term management and	safety of
the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should l	be fully
involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council w	vill seek an
appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benef	fits to
minimise the environmental impacts of the nuclear development.	
<b>DM2</b> – Renewable energy development will have no adverse impact o	on
biodiversity. Proposals should be developed with key stakeholders (w	hich will
include biodiversity organisations).	
<b>DM5</b> – Proposals for any new nuclear facilities should be submitted w	ith long
term management plans that will minimise any harmful effects	
<b>DM22</b> - Where necessary the notential transport implications of develo	lonment
will be required to be supported by a Transport Assessment and a Tra	vol Plan to
will be required to be supported by a transport Assessment and a tra	
manage any significant transport implications.	
<b>DIVIZS</b> - All development proposals must take into account any likely s	ignificant
effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough	and
within a 20km radius of the borough boundary as well as those that a	re
hydrologically linked to the development plan area.	
DM26 - Landscaping schemes will have to be submitted with all developments of the submitted with	opment
proposals.	
Is There a Risk of There is the risk of a greater amount of diffuse air pollution. However	r there are
a Significant policies in the Core Strategy that encourage a greater amount of gree	n
Effect? infrastructure and sustainable transport options. It is considered that	this
document does all that it can at a very strategic level. Until more info	rmation is
available i.e. at site allocations or project stage it will be very difficult	to carry
out an appropriate assessment.	
Regarding the prevention of introduction of non-invasive species – the	ere is
probably scope for adding some words to the policy DM26 that allow	conditions
to be put on planning permissions that states that all species used in	

	landscaping schemes must use plants that are native to that particular
	landscape.
	Trampling is an important issue when considering policies that encourage more
	people into any given area. ENV3F does, however, allow for planners to add
	conditions that will restrict access and usage of land where that would lead to
	trampling and disturbance of sensitive habitats and species. This should
	significantly lessen the risk of damage.
	A separate HRA screening report will be produced as part of the preparation of
	the Site Allocations DPD.
Possible Impacts	Policy W6 of the RSS advocates tourism development adjacent to National parks
Arising from	and AONBs – this applies to part of this site and could lead to increased visitor
Other Plans and	pressure.
Proiects	Proposals within West Cumbria Masterplan – Development of the Westlakes
- ,	Research Institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the
	National Nuclear Skills Academy at Lillyhall, the Dalton Institute (lab facilities)at
	Westlakes further investment in the employment sites at Leconfield and
	Bridgend A 'health campus' on the current hospital site and new University of
	Cumbria facilities at Lillyball. New National Nuclear Laboratory beadquarters in
	West Cumbria
	Allerdale LDE Core Strategy Issues and Ontions additional 267 250 dwallings
	Alleruale LDF Core strategy issues and Options – additional 207-550 dwellings
	per year (equaling to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period). Some
	imited nousing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in more
	Sustainable locations i.e. Workington, Maryport, Aspatria, Cockermouth,
	wigton etc.
	Lake District National Park Core Strategy – 900 additional dwellings in the
	period to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 30% in clusters
	and the open countryside). There will be an additional 9.2ha of employment
	land and it is acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional
	nationally significant visitor attractions.
	Lake District National Park Site Allocations Preferred Options – All
	employment land allocated will be in the Rural Service Centres. Lake District
	High Fells SAC falls into the North West Distinctive Area which will
	accommodate 25% of all development.
	Carlisle LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – Currently no policy direction
	offered. Carlisle has been designated as a growth point though so it can be
	reasonably expected that there will be a significant amount of additional
	housing and employment development over the plan period.
	Eden Adopted Core Strategy – Focus new build housing in Key and Local Service
	Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The
	plan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additional dwellings per annum to
	2025 (over 3100 units in total). 50ha of employment land will be made available
	to 2025.
	Barrow Port Area Action Plan – 925 additional dwellings in the Action Plan Area
	to 2021. Additional leisure facilities including marina and boat servicing area.
	Waterfront hotel, Water sports centre and very limited amount of retail.
	Improving access to the operational port from road and sea to support new
	opportunities to increase the proportion of freight moved by sea. Development
	of Waterfront Business Park as a major new business and employment location
	(24.5ha site).
	South Lakeland LDF Core Strategy – 55% of new housing and employment
	development will be in the Principal Service Centres, 13% in Key Service

	Centres, 21% in Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and
	hamlets. Housing target is 469 additional dwellings per year equating to nearly
	6100 to 2025. 21ha of employment development to be accommodated in
	Kendal to 2025, 12ha to be accommodated in Ulverston and Furness but overall
	4 ha of employment land will be allocated per annum between 2010 and 2025
	equating to 60ha over the plan period.
	<b>Cumbria Local Transport Plan 3</b> – Support for the upgrading of the A595, A590,
	A5094 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth in the
	low carbon energy sector. Increased bus services in rural areas. Improvement to
	the Cumbria West Coast Railway. Carlisle Northern Development Route will be
	completed in 2012.
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste LDF Core Strategy – no regional waste facilities to
	be located in Cumbria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the
	south of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with a
	preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of facility,
	for example, a Household Waste Recycling Centre and a Transfer/Bulking
	Station. This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core Strategy Policy for
	minimising "waste miles".
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste Site Allocations DPD – Allocates sites for mineral
	working and waste facilities. The HRA for this document stated that there were
	13 sites in the whole of the county that would require an Appropriate
	Assessment at project stage but that the policies themselves were unlikely to
	have negative effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The mitigation
	measures that are considered likely to be needed are common place and could
	form the conditions of the planning application.
Is there risk of a	As all of the above plans are planning for a greater amount of development in
significant effect	each of the plan areas it is likely that there could be a significant effect on the
in combination?	integrity of the site. A separate HRA screening report will be prepared in
	tandem with the Site Allocations DPD.

Morecambe Bay SAC



Name	Morecambe Bay
Designation	SAC

Area (ha)	61506.22
Qualifying	• Estuaries
features	<ul> <li>Intertidal mudflats and sandflats</li> </ul>
	Shallow inlets and bays
	<ul> <li>Coastal shingle vegetation outside the reach of waves</li> </ul>
	• Glasswort and other annuals colonising mud and sand
	• Atlantic salt meadows
	<ul> <li>Shifting dunes with marram</li> </ul>
	• Dune grassland*
	• Humid dune slacks
	• Subtidal sandbanks
	●Lagoons*
	• Reefs
	• Shifting dunes
	• Coastal dune heathland*
	• Dunes with creeping willow
	Great crested newt
SSSIs within the	Duddon Estuary
site	South Walney and Piel Channel Flats
	Morecambe Bay
Comments on	• This is the largest single area of continuous intertidal mudflats and sandflats in
Nature	the UK and the best example of muddy sandflats on the west coast. At low tide
Conservation	vast areas of intertidal sandflats are exposed, with small areas of mudflat,
Importance and	particularly in the upper reaches of the associated estuaries.
site	<ul> <li>Morecambe Bay supports exceptionally large beds of mussels on exposed</li> </ul>
vulnerabilities.	'scars' of boulder and cobble. There is a rich community of sponges and other
	associated fauna on tide-swept pebbles and cobbles at the southern end of
	Walney Channel
	• Sandscale Haws at the entrance to the Duddon Estuary supports the largest
	area of dune grassland in Cumbria. Several uncommon species including marsh
	helleborine, dune helleborine and coralroot orchid occur in the dune slacks
	•Breeding colonies of great-created newts are known from several ponds,
	foraging widely over foreshore, yellow dunes, dune-heath and scrub.
	There are a wide range of pressures on Morecambe Bay but the site is relatively
	robust and many of these pressures have only slight or local effects on its
	interests. The interests depend largely upon the coastal processes operating
	within the Bay, which have been affected historically by human activities
	including coastal protection and flood defence works. Opportunities to reverse
	coastal squeeze are being explored. The saltmarsh is traditionally grazed and is
	generally in favourable condition for its bird interest. Most of the saltmarsh is
	traditionally grazed and is utilised by breeding, wintering and migrating birds for
	recaing, roosting and nesting purposes. Positive management is being secured
	Chrough NGO reserve management plans, English Nature's Site Management
	Statements and Coastal Wildlife Enhancement Scheme, the European Marine
	the Duddon Estuary and Morecambe Pay Partnershing. These aim for
	sustainable use of the site, taking account of other notantial threats including
	commercial fisheries aggregate extraction gas exploration recreation and
	other activities
Kev	Conditions <b>not</b> within Copeland's control:
кеу	Conditions <i>not</i> within Copeland's control:

Environmental	Maintain morphological equilibrium of the estuary, including sedimentation
Conditions to	patterns
Support Site	<ul> <li>Appropriate grazing of saltmarsh communities</li> </ul>
Integrity	<ul> <li>Maintain minimal impact of fishing, bait digging and dredging</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>High enough water table for dune slacks</li> </ul>
	Control of bracken/scrub
	<ul> <li>GCN require suitable foraging and refuge habitat; some ponds with water throughout the breeding/tadpole development season</li> </ul>
	Conditionswithin Copeland's control:
	<ul> <li>No physical constraints to natural migration of mobile habitats such as dunes</li> <li>Avoidance of pollution</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Avoidance of nutrient enrichment</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Avoidance of damaging levels of erosion from human activities</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>No increase in organic matter in sediments</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>No physical constraints to managed realignment if required in response to coastal squeeze</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Control of invasive and/or non-native species</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>ponds with relatively unpolluted water of roughly neutral pH;</li> </ul>
Air Quality Issues	The levels of SO <sub>2</sub> , NH <sub>3</sub> , ozone, acid deposition and NO <sup>2</sup> sampled at the site do
	not cause any concern – they are well within the critical limits. However, there
	are issues with the levels of nitrogen deposition which are currently above the
	critical loads for over half the different habitats present (see Appendix 1 for
	details). There are a number of A roads in the vicinity (A595, A593, A590, A5084,
	A5093, A5092). Increased traffic as a result of any planned developments or site
	allocations will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports for
	any the Site Allocations DPD and Major Infrastructure Planning Applications.
Water Resource	Wastewater – A project is currently underway in the Millom area to help to
and Wastewater	increase the capacity of the WwTW there and therefore prevent untreated
Treatment Issues	water entering the Duddon Estuary part of the site. United Utilities have
	reported that the works will be able to accommodate the Core Strategy's
	planned growth for the area.
	Water Resources - There are currently no plans to source drinking water from
	South Copeland.
Possible impacts	• The nominated site for nuclear activity is Sellafield and therefore cooling water
arising from the	will be piped out some distance away from the Morecambe Bay site i.e.
plan	changes to temperature and salinity at this distance should be minimal.
	Potentially significant negative effects:
	<ul> <li>Proposed leisure and tourism uses mean that there is potential for increased visitor pressure.</li> </ul>
	• Tidal and wave energy developments could have a significant negative impact.
	• Flood defence measures
	• Air, water and ground pollution
	<ul> <li>Introduction of non-native plant species in landscaping schemes</li> </ul>
	Water contamination can result from rain water falling through air
	contaminated with car fumes or industrial emissions and therefore any
	increase in these particulates/gases could cause an increase in water pollution.
	An increase in housing and employment development anywhere in the
	borough could contribute to an increase in air pollution over the site.
Source	Extra housing leading to an increase in amount of sewage

Pathway	Existing Wastewater treatment plants discharging untreated sewage into
Impact	Morecambe Bay
	Decline in water quality posing risk to plant and animal species and
	contaminating land.
	Encouraging more tourists to the area will increase the amount of vehicular
	traffic and people walking on and near to the site.
	Physical damage to plants and habitats, erosion, litter accumulation etc.
	Increased tourism and access could lead to increased traffic movement in the
	South Copeland/Mid Copeland area resulting in more air pollution that would
	travel on the prevailing wind towards the site.
	Rain falling through polluted air could lead to a small amount of water pollution
	possibly affecting the health of important species.
	Increased amount of development in the plan area some of which will have
	planting schemes
	Creeping of non-native species across land towards the sensitive site.
	Competition with sensitive species leading to decline or extinction on the site.
	Development immediately behind the coast leading to the need to <b>stop the</b>
	natural movement of the dunes
Policies that	The following policies could have a negative impact on the site:
could potentially	ST1 – Support energy, economic and housing development as well as services
have a negative	and recreational facilities.
impact	<b>ST2</b> - facilitate growth in the local economy and associated growth in demand
	for housing and services. Support for new nuclear generating capacity and
	essential infrastructure.
	<b>SI3</b> – In pursuit of economic regeneration and growth.
	reasonably clean with regards to emissions, the construction phase has the
	potential to have a negative impact.
	<b>ER2</b> – Support for renewable energy developments
	<b>ER3</b> – Identify sites for NNB construction workers accommodation, encourage
	development of new educational facilities.
	<b>ER4</b> – Allocating land for economic development over the plan period at a rate
	exceeding the take up rate of the past.
	<b>ER7</b> – Supporting the continued growth of Whitehaven. Encourage evening and
	night time uses.
	tourism offer. Developments should provide parking both for the development
	and the town centre, which could encourage more people to drive rather than
	take public transport. Conversion of vacant floors over shops into residential
	accommodation. Redrawing the town centre boundary to reflect the anticipated
	growth and development in the area.
	<b>ER9</b> – Town centre improvements will be encouraged in the Key Service Centres
	to attract more visitors.
	<b>ER10</b> – Expand tourism outside the Lake District boundaries.
	<b>ER11</b> – Supporting new and expanding employment sectors. Supporting the
	development of commercial units.
	housing stock demolition and redevelopment schemes
	<b>SS2</b> – Housing allocations to meet a baseline requirement of 230-300 dwellings
	per year.

	<b>SS4</b> - Encouraging the provision of good quality services and facilities
	<b>T1</b> – Transport improvements including new Pow Beck Spine Boad, new Eastern
	relief road improvements to A595 and A5086. Better connections will be sought
	to the AGE ME AEDE atc. Darking strategy will get out guidance for
	incorrection con partice in new developments
	incorporating car parking in new developments.
	<b>ENV1 -</b> Support for new flood defence measures to protect against both tidal
	and fluvial flooding in the borough, including appropriate land management as
	part of a catchment wide approach.
	<b>ENV2</b> – Support for energy generating developments which require a coastal
	location along the undeveloped coast.
	ENV4 – Supporting proposals for heritage led regeneration.
	ENV5 - Development proposals, where necessary, will be required to include
	landscaping schemes that retain existing landscape features, reinforce local
	landscape character and mitigate against any adverse visual impact.
Policies that	<b>ST1</b> – Protect and enhance sites of nature conservation and biodiversity value
eradicate/lessen	Encourage creation of new areas of green infrastructure. Ensure development
the risk nosed	minimises air ground and water nollution
the hisk posed	<b>ST2</b> – Growth should be concentrated in the settlements focussing the largest
	stale development in sustainable locations
	<b>Stale development in sustainable locations.</b>
	<b>S14 -</b> Development proposals should provide, or contribute to the provision of
	environmental requirements on or off site.
	<b>ER1</b> – The Council will work with partners to identify whether a high-level waste
	repository can be justified and that there are no negative impacts on, inter alia,
	the environment. The Council will seek to ensure that all investment in the
	nuclear sector is accompanied by financial or in-kind contributions to mitigate
	any potentially detrimental impacts.
	ER2 – Support for renewable energy generating developments at locations
	which minimise environmental impacts so that they are within acceptable limits.
	<b>ER3</b> – Ensure that any new energy infrastructure minimises potential impacts on
	biodiversity.
	<b>ER6</b> – Presumption in favour of employment sites in sustainable locations.
	<b>ER10</b> - Wherever possible tourism providers will be required to ensure that
	accommodation and attractions are well connected to other tourist destinations
	and amenities, particularly by public transport, walking and cycling. Locate new
	tourist accommodation facilities and attractions where there is proven capacity
	for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse environmental or
	amenity impacts
	<b>T1</b> The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility
	for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport
	Tor all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.
	12 - Developments which seek to extend of improve connectivity through
	existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be
	supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.
	<b>ENV1</b> – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air
	quality
	<b>ENV3</b> - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact
	on air quality.
	<b>ENV5</b> – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the
	development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.
	Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.
	ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of
	Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower

	the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.
	<b>DM1</b> - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive
	material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of
	the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully
	involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an
	appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to
	minimise the environmental impacts of the nuclear development.
	<b>DM2</b> – Renewable energy development will have no adverse impact on
	biodiversity. Proposals should be developed with key stakeholders (which will
	include biodiversity organisations).
	<b>DM5</b> – Proposals for any new nuclear facilities should be submitted with long
	term management plans that will minimise any harmful effects.
	<b>DM22</b> - Where necessary the potential transport implications of development
	will be required to be supported by a Transport Assessment and a Travel Plan to
	manage any significant transport implications.
	<b>DM25</b> - All development proposals must take into account any likely significant
	effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough and
	within a 20km radius of the borough boundary as well as those that are
	hydrologically linked to the development plan area.
	<b>DM26 -</b> Landscaping schemes will have to be submitted with all development
	proposals.
Is There a Risk of	Information given on the Natura 2000 form that was submitted as part of the
a Significant	designation process suggests that the site is very robust no doubt due to its size.
Effect?	There is the risk of a greater amount of diffuse air pollution over the site.
	However there are policies in the Core Strategy that encourage a greater
	amount of green infrastructure and sustainable transport options. It is
	considered that this document does all that it can at this very strategic level.
	Until more information is available i.e. at site allocations or project stage it will
	be very difficult to carry out an appropriate assessment.
	There is a risk that Wastewater Treatment Works will not be able to cope with
	the increased requirement but it is considered that policy ST4A deals adequately
	with this threat.
	Regarding the prevention of introduction of non-invasive species – there is
	probably scope for adding some words to the policy DM26 that allow conditions
	to be put on planning permissions that states that all species used in landscaping
	schemes must use plants that are native to that particular landscape.
	Trampling is an important issue when considering policies that encourage more
	people into any given area. ENV3F does, however, allow for planners to add
	conditions that will restrict access and usage of land where that would lead to
	trampling and disturbance of sensitive habitats and species. This should
	significantly lessen the risk of damage.
	A separate HRA screening report will be produced as part of the preparation of
	the Site Allocations DPD.
Possible Impacts	• Gas exploration.
Arising from	• Morecambe Bridge proposals
Other Plans and	<ul> <li>Channel widening at Fleetwood associated with port development</li> </ul>
Projects	• ABP cruise terminal
	• BAE Systems aircraft carrier development at Barrow
	<ul> <li>Underground gas storage at Wyre Estuary (disposal of brine)</li> </ul>
	Windfarm cabling
	• Gateway gas storage (offshore)

• Fleetwood Pier regeneration
• BNFL shipping movements
<ul> <li>Contamination from coastal collapse exposing estuarine waste sites</li> </ul>
• Shell Flats (Cirrus Array) windfarm, off Cleveleys
<ul> <li>Stronger regulation of cockle and mussel fisheries</li> </ul>
• Coastal access proposals
• Wildfowling
•2700 new homes planned for Barrow-in-Furness and 5500 new homes in Fylde.
Regeneration of waterfront Barrow is a priority. Lancaster is also a main
development locations; Ulverston, Grange-over-Sands, Milnthorpe and
Carnforth are Key Services Centres where development will also be focused.
• There are concerns over the ability for existing WwTW(s) discharging in to the
site to provide the increased capacity required to support the growth proposed
in the draft RSS.
<ul> <li>Morecambe Bay falls within North West coast area of search for a regional</li> </ul>
park and parts of Morecambe Bay are planned to be part of it. A planned
North West Coastal Trail would also pass nearby. Dependent on selection of
area, and proposed uses (e.g. leisure, tourism) there is potential for increased
visitor pressure.
<ul> <li>Completion of the Heysham to M6 link road will mean increased traffic, and</li> </ul>
potential development leading to risk of air pollution and water pollution
particularly to the River Lune during construction.
<ul> <li>Policy W6 advocates tourism development adjacent to National parks and</li> </ul>
AONBs – this applies to this site and could lead to increased visitor pressure.
<ul> <li>Port development at Fleetwood or Heysham and associated freight transport</li> </ul>
could create disturbance, land take, air and water pollution problems.
• Tidal and wave energy proposals.
• Coastal squeeze
Flood defence schemes
• Expansion of activity at Blackpool Airport is unlikely to have a significant effect
on the site.
• The planned North West Coastal Trail would pass nearby.
Proposals within west Cumbria Masterplan – Development of the Westlakes
Research Institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the
National Nuclear Skills Academy at Lillynail, the Dalton Institute (lab facilities)at
Bridgend A (bealth campus' on the current bespital site and new University of
Singeria. A field campus of the current hospital site and new Oniversity of Cumbris facilities at Lillyball. New National Nuclear Laboratory beadquarters in
West Cumbria
North West RSS - Drigg coast falls within North West coast area of search for a
regional park and a planned North West Coastal Trail. There is notential for
increased visitor pressure
Allerdale LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – additional 267-350 dwellings
per vear (equating to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period). Some
limited housing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in more
sustainable locations i.e. Workington, Marvport, Aspatria, Cockermouth, Wigton
etc.
Lake District National Park Core Strategy – 900 additional dwellings in the
period to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 30% in clusters
and the open countryside). There will be an additional 9.2ha of employment
land and it is acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional

	nationally significant visitor attractions.
	Lake District National Park Site Allocations Preferred Options – All employment
	land allocated will be in the Rural Service Centres
	Carlisle I DE Core Strategy Issues and Options – Currently no policy direction
	offered Carlisle has been designated as a growth point though so it can be
	reasonably expected that there will be a significant amount of additional
	housing and employment development over the plan period
	Eden Adented Care Strategy - Focus new build bousing in Key and Local Comice
	<b>Eden Adopted Core Strategy</b> – Focus new build housing in Key and Local Service
	Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The
	plan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additional dwellings per annum to 2025
	(over 3100 units in total). Sona of employment land will be made available to
	2025.
	Barrow Port Area Action Plan – 925 additional dwellings in the Action Plan Area
	to 2021. Additional leisure facilities including marina and boat servicing area,
	Waterfront hotel, Water sports centre and very limited amount of retail.
	Improving access to the operational port from road and sea to support new
	opportunities to increase the proportion of freight moved by sea. Development
	of Waterfront Business Park as a major new business and employment location
	(24.5ha site).
	South Lakeland LDF Core Strategy – 55% of new housing and employment
	development will be in the Principal Service Centres, 13% in Key Service Centres,
	21% in Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and hamlets.
	Housing target is 469 additional dwellings per year equating to nearly 6100 to
	2025. 21ha of employment development to be accommodated in Kendal to
	2025, 12ha to be accommodated in Ulverston and Furness but overall 4 ha of
	employment land will be allocated per annum between 2010 and 2025 equating
	to 60ha over the plan period.
	<b>Cumbria Local Transport Plan 3</b> – Support for the upgrading of the A595, A590,
	A5094 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth in the
	low carbon energy sector. Increased hus services in rural areas. Improvement to
	the Cumbria West Coast Railway, Carlisle Northern Development Route will be
	completed in 2012
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste IDE Core Strategy – no regional waste facilities to
	he located in Cumbria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the
	south of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with a
	preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of facility
	for example, a Household Waste Recycling Contro and a Transfer / Pulking
	Station This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core Strategy Policy for
	minimicing "waste miles"
	Cumbria Minorals and Waste Site Allocations DBD Allocates sites for minoral
	cumbrid willerais and waste site Anotations DPD – Anotates sites for initial an
	Working and waste racinities. The first for this document stated that there were
	13 Sites in the whole of the county that would require an Appropriate
	Assessment at project stage but that the policies themselves were unlikely to
	nave negative effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The mitigation
	measures that are considered likely to be needed are common place and could
	form the conditions of the planning application.
	<b>Shoreline Management Plan 2</b> – In the Duddon Estuary area the approach is to
	maintain the line, where there are assets to protect, and to let the shore
	continue to erode where there are limited assets.
Is there risk of a	Probably – a HRA screening report will accompany the Site Allocations DPD
significant effect	which will contain more information on which an assessment might be based.



# North Pennine Dales Meadows SAC

Name	North Pennine Dales Meadows (part)
Designation	SAC
Area (ha)	Sandybeck Meadow - 0.38ha and Wilson Place Meadows – 8.1ha
Qualifying	The site encompasses the major part of the remaining UK mountain hay
features	meadow resource in the UK and contains a wide range of rare and local meadow
	species including globeflower, several species of lady's-mantle, and spignel

SSSIs within the	Sandybeck Meadow
site	Wilson Place Meadow
Comments on	This SAC is made up of 15 SSSIs, only two of which are within 20km of the
Nature	Copeland plan area. These are:
Conservation	<ul> <li>Sandybeck - the only remaining area of traditionally managed grassland,</li> </ul>
Importance and	completely surrounded by improved agricultural land. The main grassland
vulnerabilities	community is dominated by sweet vernal-grass, crested dog's-tail and
	redfescue, but with an abundance of associated herbs including pignut, great
	burnet, yellow rattle, wood anemone, meadowsweet, betony, yarrow and
	ribwort plantain. Two more notable herbsfound in the community are common
	bistort Polygonumbistorta and greater butterfly-orchidPlatantherachlorantha.
	The major plant species of the wetter area are tufted hair-grass, reedcanary-
	grass, creeping bent, carnation sedge, meadowsweet, soft rush and jointed
	rush.
	Wilson Place Meadows - an important series of herb-rich grasslands found
	along, or near the floodplain of the River Brathay.No comparable example of
	traditionallymanaged haymeadow occurs in this area, the nearest being 23 km
	to the east. In a nationalcontext this is now a very rare habitat with an
	estimated three per cent, or less, left undamagedby modern farming
	techniques.
Кеу	Conditions <i>not</i> within Copeland's control:
Environmental	<ul> <li>low intensity management of haymeadows (low nutrient input, annual hay cut</li> </ul>
Conditions to	controlled aftermathgrazing)
Support Site	<ul> <li>Appropriate grazing of purple moor-grass meadows</li> </ul>
Integrity	Conditions within Copeland's control:
	• Avoidance of atmospheric pollution
Air Quality Issues	The levels of SO <sub>2</sub> , NH <sub>2</sub> , ozone, acid deposition and NO <sup>2</sup> sampled at the site do
	not cause any concern. However, there are issues with the levels of nitrogen
	deposition which are currently above the critical loads for at least one of the
	habitats present (see Appendix 1 for details). One of the anthropogenic sources
	of nitrogen is motor vehicle emissions. Sandybeck is close to the moderately
	busy A5086 and Wilson Place Meadow is close to the A593 and A591. The HRA
	Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and the nuclear industry's
	planning applications will have to consider whether traffic will increase
	significantly on these roads as a result of these developments.
Water Resource	Wastewater – due to the terrain between the sites and the plan area it would be
and Wastewater	highly unlikely that wastewater from Copeland would contaminate the site.
Treatment Issues	Wastewater getting on to the site would not harm it in any case.
	Water Resources – a drop in the water table is not mentioned a being a risk to
	the integrity of the sites.
Possible Impacts	<ul> <li>Increased tourist vehicular traffic impacting on air quality – the prevailing</li> </ul>
Arising from Plan	wind is westerly/ south westerly so increases in traffic in the Millom area could
	have a detrimental effect.
Source	Increased tourism and access could lead to increased traffic movement in the
Pathway	South Copeland/Mid Copeland area resulting in more air pollution that would
Impact	travel on the prevailing wind towards the site.
Policies that	The following policies could increase the amount of atmospheric pollution and
could potentially	therefore impact negatively on this SAC:
have a negative	<b>ST1</b> – Support for energy, economic and housing growth as well as community
impact	facilities and leisure uses.

	ST2 – Increased amount of development
	ST3–Support for new nuclear development on the site adjacent to Sellafield (i.e.
	further away from the Drigg coast site than the current site.)
	<b>ER1</b> – Construction phase of NNB will generate carbon emissions
	ER3 – Construction of Energy Coast Infrastructure will generate emissions
	<b>ER4</b> – potential for increased air pollution if land uses include B2
	ER7 – Increased amount of development
	<b>ER8</b> – Providing more car parking in the town centre could encourage more
	people to drive rather than use public transport.
	<b>ER10</b> – Expand tourism outside the LDNP.
	<b>ER11 -</b> Supporting new and expanding employment sectors. Supporting the
	development of commercial units.
	<b>SS1</b> – Increased amount of housing development
	<b>SS2</b> – Increased amount of housing development
	<b>SS3 -</b> Increased amount of housing development
	T1 - Road improvements that could encourage car use.
	<b>FNV2</b> - Maximise opportunities along the undeveloped coast for tourism and
	outdoor recreation and support energy generating developments that require a
	coastal location
Policies that	<b>ST1 -</b> Ensure development minimises air pollution minimise the need to travel
eradicate/lessen	<b>ST4</b> - Policy will allow I PA to ask for measures to be put in place to protect air
the risk nosed	quality where this might be compromised in the operation of the development
the hor posed	<b>FR3</b> – Ensure that any new energy transmission infrastructure minimises
	notential impacts on biodiversity
	<b>FR5</b> – Additional planting around existing industrial estates is likely to have a
	positive impact on air quality.
	<b>FR9 -</b> Protection of services within smaller centres will limit the amount of car
	travel to larger centres to access essential services
	<b>SS5</b> – Protecting and enhancing green infrastructure will improve air quality
	T1 - improved public transport network.
	T2 – reducing the need to travel through supporting the provision of high quality
	broadband connections
	<b>ENV1</b> – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air
	guality
	<b>ENV3</b> - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact
	on air guality.
	<b>ENV5</b> – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the
	development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.
	Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.
	<b>ENV6</b> - The planting of a community forest would positively impact on the air
	guality in and beyond Copeland.
	<b>DM11</b> – Encouraging developers to achieve high standards of energy efficiency
	<b>DM12</b> – Provision of public green space in residential areas
	<b>DM24</b> – Protection and expansion of habitats i.e. green spaces leading to better
	air quality.
	DM25 –All development proposals must take into account any likely significant
	effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough and
	within a 20km radius of the borough boundary as well as those that are
	hydrologically linked to the development plan area.
	<b>DM26</b> - Landscaping schemes will have to be submitted with all development
	proposals.

Is There a Risk of	There is the risk of a greater amount of diffuse air pollution. However there are
a Significant	policies in the Core Strategy that encourage a greater amount of green
Effect?	infrastructure and sustainable transport options. It is considered that this
	document does all that it can at a very strategic level. Until more information is
There is a risk of	available i.e. at site allocations or project stage it will be very difficult to carry
an increase in	out an appropriate assessment. A separate HRA screening report will be
diffuse air	produced as part of the preparation of the Site Allocations DPD.
pollution.	
Possible Impacts	• Development at Barrow-in-Furness, Duddon-in-Furness, Ulverston and
Arising from	especially Millom could increase traffic on the A5092 with potential air quality
Other Plans and	implications.
Projects	• Any improvements to the A5092 risk hydrological, water quality and air quality
	effects, especially during construction.
	• Duddon Mosses fall within North West coast area of search for a regional park
	and a planned North West Coastal Trail. Dependent on selection of area, and
	proposed uses (e.g. leisure, tourism) there is potential for increased visitor
	pressure. The Cumbria Coastal Way already passes through the site
	Proposals within West Cumbria Masterplan– Development of the Westlakes
	Research Institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the
	National Nuclear Skills Academy at Lillyhall, the Dalton Institute (lab facilities)at
	Westlakes, further investment in the employment sites at Leconfield and
	Bridgend A 'health campus' on the current hospital site and new University of
	Cumbria facilities at Lillyhall. New National Nuclear Laboratory headquarters in
	West Cumbria.
	<b>North West RSS -</b> Drigg coast falls within North West coast area of search for a
	regional park and a planned North West Coastal Trail. There is potential for
	increased visitor pressure.
	Allerdale LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – additional 267-350 dwellings
	per year (equating to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period). Some
	limited housing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in more
	sustainable locations i.e. Workington, Marvport, Aspatria, Cockermouth, Wigton
	etc.
	Lake District National Park Core Strategy – 900 additional dwellings in the
	period to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 30% in clusters
	and the open countryside). There will be an additional 9.2ha of employment
	land and it is acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional
	nationally significant visitor attractions.
	Lake District National Park Site Allocations Preferred Options – All employment
	land allocated will be in the Rural Service Centres. Duddon Mosses SAC falls into
	the South Distinctive Area which will accommodate 14% of all development in
	the LDNP.
	Carlisle LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – Currently no policy direction
	offered. Carlisle has been designated as a growth point though so it can be
	reasonably expected that there will be a significant amount of additional
	housing and employment development over the plan period.
	Eden Adopted Core Strategy – Focus new build housing in Kev and Local Service
	Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The
	plan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additional dwellings per annum to 2025
	(over 3100 units in total). 50ha of employment land will be made available to
	2025.
	Barrow Port Area Action Plan – 925 additional dwellings in the Action Plan Area

	to 2021 Additional leisure facilities including marina and hoat servicing area
	Waterfront batel Water enorth control and your limited emount of retail
	waterfront notel, water sports centre and very limited amount of retail.
	Improving access to the operational port from road and sea to support new
	opportunities to increase the proportion of freight moved by sea. Development
	of Waterfront Business Park as a major new business and employment location
	(24.5ha site).
	South Lakeland LDF Core Strategy – 55% of new housing and employment
	development will be in the Principal Service Centres, 13% in Key Service Centres,
	21% in Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and hamlets.
	Housing target is 469 additional dwellings per year equating to nearly 6100 to
	2025. 21ha of employment development to be accommodated in Kendal to
	2025, 12ha to be accommodated in Ulverston and Eurness but overall 4 ha of
	employment land will be allocated per annum between 2010 and 2025 equating
	to 60ha over the plan period
	<b>Cumbria Local Transport Plan 3</b> – Support for the upgrading of the A595, A590
	A5091 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth in the
	low carbon energy sector. Increased bus services in rural areas. Improvement to
	the Cumbria West Coast Pailway, Carlicle Northern Development Poute will be
	completed in 2012
	Compreted in 2012.
	cumpria winerals and waste LDF Core Strategy – no regional waste facilities to
	be located in cumbria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the
	south of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with a
	preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of facility,
	for example, a Household Waste Recycling Centre and a Transfer/Bulking
	Station. This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core Strategy Policy for
	minimising "waste miles".
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste Site Allocations DPD – Allocates sites for mineral
	working and waste facilities. The HRA for this document stated that there were
	13 sites in the whole of the county that would require an Appropriate
	Assessment at project stage but that the policies themselves were unlikely to
	have negative effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The mitigation
	measures that are considered likely to be needed are common place and could
	form the conditions of the planning application.
	Shoreline Management Plan 2 – In the Duddon Estuary area the approach is to
	maintain the line, where there are assets to protect, and to let the shore
	continue to erode where there are limited assets.
Is there risk of a	As all of the above plans are planning for a greater amount of development in
significant effect	each of the plan areas it is likely that there could be a significant effect on the
in combination?	integrity of the site. A separate HRA screening report will be prepared in
	tandem with the Site Allocations DPD.



## **River Derwent and Bassenthwaite Lake SAC**

Name	River Derwent and Bassenthwaite Lake
Designation	SAC

Area (ha)	1832.96
Qualifying	• Clear-water lakes or lochs with aquatic vegetation and poor to moderate
features	nutrient levels
	<ul> <li>Rivers with floating vegetation often dominated by water-crowfoot</li> </ul>
	Marsh fritillary butterfly
	• Sea lamprey
	Brook lamprey
	• River lamprey
	Atlantic salmon
	• Otter
	• Floating water-plantain
SSSIs within the	Bassenthwaite Lake
site	Braithwaite Moss
	River Derwent and Tributaries
Commonts on	Bullermere
Noturo	Bassenthwaite Lake is an example of a mesotrophic waterbody, an unusual     type in mountain proof. It is a large lake with an extensive satehment area and
Conservation	consequently is subject to rapid through flow of water and mederate putrient
Importance and	status
site	• Much of the shore is of shingle or gravel, but soft neat has accumulated
vulnerabilities	around Bowness Bay
	• The lake supports one of only two surviving UK populations of the vendace, the
	other population being at Derwent Water.
	• This site supports the largest area of appropriate marsh fritillary habitat in
	Cumbria.
	<ul> <li>Healthy populations of sea, brook and river lamprey, otter, floating water</li> </ul>
	plantain and Atlantic salmon are present.
	The wildlife of the River Derwent system is dependent upon the maintenance of
	high water quality, particularly its naturally low level of nutrients. There are
	problems with sewage, acidification (from rainfall) and pollution with synthetic
	pyrethroid sheep dips (leading to losses of insect life, the food of the Annex II
	fish species). Flow regimes and sedimentation patterns in the rivers are
	important, not least in providing suitable spawning grounds for fish. These are
	affected by flood defence works and abstraction for water supplies. The
	management of the land in the catchment is also important. Much of the land is
	heavily drained for agriculture or forestry, which results in increased run-off. As
	many of the surrounding hills are ecologically overgrazed, soil erosion can cause
	high sediment loads in the streams and river entering the lakes. Sediment and
	nutrients from such sources, as well as possibly point sources, nave affected
	plant communities in the lakes. Phosphorous stripping is being undertaken on
	part of the site, although it is expected that full recovery may take a decade of
Kev	Conditions <b>not</b> within Coneland's control
Environmental	• Avoidance of water pollution (e.g. sheen din)
Conditions to	• Maintenance of sufficient flow (the site is sensitive to changes in water flow
Support Site	with a pattern of rapid drawdown and rapid recovery)
Integrity	Maintenance of natural course of river
	• Avoidance of nutrient enrichment (tributaries are particularly sensitive to
	water quality issues e.g. River Marron is very close to acceptable phosphate
	limits)

	<ul> <li>Devil's bit scabious – the larval food plant of marsh fritillary.</li> </ul>
	• Marsh fritillary requires low intensity grazing (preferably ponies or cattle as sheep damage the host plant)
	• Avoidance of mowing and burning in areas of butterfly colonies
	• Maintenance of all populations of marsh fritillary – linked populations are critical for this species
	<ul> <li>Good weather conditions in flight period of butterfly</li> </ul>
	• Control of angling/netting
	• Clean gravel/hard rock substrate in some areas, silt and sand in others
	• Low suspended solids (less than 10 mg/l)
	• Sufficient bankside breeding, foraging and resting habitat for otters (e.g. cover.
	sites for holts)
	Maintenance of summer lake levels
	<ul> <li>Some areas of overhanging vegetation, cover and still water used by fish</li> </ul>
	Conditions within Copeland's control
	• Avoidance of disturbance to otter
	• Control of invasive +/or non-native species
	• No physical barriers to fish migration or otter movement
Air Quality Issues	As this is an aquatic environment there was no data available for air pollutants.
	The site has a number of fish species that are noted as qualifying features. Acid
	deposition can have a negative effect on the fish in the early stages in their lives.
	The reading for acidification on this site is 3.11 keq/ha/year.Motor vehicle
	emissions are a contributing factor. Therefore the potential for increased traffic
	on the A66, A595 and A591 arising from potential developments will have to be
	considered in the HRA Screening Reports accompanying the Site Allocations DPD
	and the nuclear and grid planning applications.
Water Resource	Wastewater: The topography between the areas where there is concern about
and Wastewater	the capacity of the treatment works i.e. Whitehaven and Cleator Moor and the
Treatment Issues	site would not allow sewage contamination occur.
	and a number of new bereholes that have been recently drilled south of
	Earement. There are no plans to take water from the SAC in the future
Possible Impacts	• Current over-abstraction could be exacerbated by need to provide water needs
Arising from Plan	of new homes (where does Coneland water come from? – Mostly Ennerdale
	and United Utilities decided to drill boreholes in the fields south of Egremont
	rather than abstract water from another lake.)
	• Due to the terrain between the plan area and Bassenthwaite Lake and the
	River Derwent it is unlikely that any waterborne pollutants would travel to this
	watercourse from the plan area. There is a small part of the River Marron in a
	very rural part of the plan area (near Asby) and any pollution is likely to be
	agricultural and not under the control of Copeland planning.
	• As no part of the SAC is in the Copeland Plan area Copeland will not be able to
	permit development that would disrupt the flow of the river in any way.
	• As no part of the SAC is in the Copeland Plan area Copeland will not be able to
	permit development that would disrupt the flow of the river in any way.
	Potentially significant negative impacts
	<ul> <li>Invasive species could be a problem if proper controls are not in place to</li> </ul>
	ensure that planting is of native, non-invasive species
	• An increase in tourism in the borough may encourage more tourists to this
1	area that is quite close to the borough boundary and this could disturb otters,

	lead to more fishing activity etc.
Source	Increased amount of development in the plan area some of which will have
Pathway	planting schemes
Impact	Creeping of non-native species across land towards the sensitive site.
	Competition with sensitive species leading to decline or extinction on the site.
	Encouraging more tourists to the area will increase the amount of vehicular
	traffic and people walking on and near to the site.
	Physical damage to habitats, erosion, litter accumulation, disturbance to
	otters etc.
Policies that	ER10 – Expand tourism outside the Lake District National Park boundaries
could potentially	SS1 - Promoting the renovation and improvement of the Borough's existing
have a negative	housing stock, and the enhancement of the surrounding residential
impact	environment.
	SS5 - Promoting the establishment, improvement and protection of green
	infrastructure networks connecting open spaces with each other and with the
	countryside.
	ENV5 - ensuring that the impact of the development on the landscape is
	minimised through adequate mitigation, preferably on-site
	<b>DM26</b> - Development proposals, where necessary, will be required to include
	landscaping schemes that retain existing landscape features, reinforce local
	landscape character and mitigate against any adverse visual impact.
Policies that	<b>ER10 -</b> Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there
eradicate/lessen	is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse
the risk posed	environmental or amenity impacts
	<b>ENV3</b> - Improve the condition of internationally, nationally and locally
	designated sites; Ensure that development incorporates measures to protect,
	ennance and build on any biodiversity interest; Boost the biodiversity value of
	existing wildlife corridors and create new corridors to develop a functional
	ECOlogical Network.
	and buildings: All development proposals should. Protect the biodiversity value of failu
	significant effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough
	and within a 20km radius of the horough houndary as well as those that are
	hydrologically linked to the development plan area
Is There a Risk of	Regarding the prevention of introduction of non-invasive species – there is
a Significant	probably scope for adding some words to the policy DM26 that allow conditions
Effect?	to be put on planning permissions that states that all species used in landscaping
	schemes must use plants that are native to that particular landscape.
	Trampling is an important issue when considering policies that encourage more
	people into any given area. ENV3F does, however, allow for planners to add
	conditions that will restrict access and usage of land where that would lead to
	trampling and disturbance of sensitive habitats and species. This should
	significantly lessen the risk of damage.
	There could be a risk that Wastewater Treatment Works will not be able to cope
	with the increased requirement but it is considered that policy ST4A deals
	adequately with this threat.
Possible Impacts	<ul> <li>Water resource needs will also result from development in other regions</li> </ul>
Arising from	<ul> <li>Tourists come from other regions</li> </ul>
Other Plans and	<ul> <li>Pressure for channel modifications associated with strengthened flood</li> </ul>
Projects	defences
	• Current over-abstraction could be exacerbated by need to provide water needs

of new homes, as well as regional casinos and airports.
• Risk of water quality issues from waste-water treatment works required to
support increased population in Keswick and Cockermouth, along with visitors
(already an issue), along with intermittent discharges resulting from limited
drainage catchment capacity.
• Workington, where the Derwent meets the sea, is earmarked for port and
town redevelopment. The works could affect flow and course of part of the
river with consequences for migratory fish
• Risk of development causing disturbance to contaminated land e.g. at
Cockermouth Workington around Derwent Water
• Risk of disturbance from any increase in recreational use of the river and/or
• Any improvements to the A66 could cause pollution to the river and
Passonthwaite Lake and could increase bridge crossings
Dassentinwaite Lake and could increase bridge clossings.
Proposals within west cumbria wasterplan – Development of the Westlakes
Research institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the
National Nuclear Skills Academy at Lillynall, the Dalton Institute (lab facilities)at
Westlakes, further investment in the employment sites at Leconfield and
Bridgend. A 'health campus' on the current hospital site and new University of
Cumbria facilities at Lillyhall. New National Nuclear Laboratory headquarters in
West Cumbria.
North West RSS - Drigg coast falls within North West coast area of search for a
regional park and a planned North West Coastal Trail. There is potential for
increased visitor pressure.
Allerdale LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – additional 267-350 dwellings
per year (equating to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period). Some
limited housing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in more
sustainable locations i.e. Workington, Maryport, Aspatria, Cockermouth, Wigton
etc.
Lake District National Park Core Strategy – 900 additional dwellings in the
period to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 30% in clusters
and the open countryside). There will be an additional 9.2ha of employment
land and it is acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional
nationally significant visitor attractions.
Lake District National Park Site Allocations Preferred Options – All employment
land allocated will be in the Rural Service Centres. River Derwent and
Bassenthwaite Lake SAC falls into the North West Distinctive Area which will
accommodate 25% of all development in the LDNP.
Carlisle LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – Currently no policy direction
offered. Carlisle has been designated as a growth point though so it can be
reasonably expected that there will be a significant amount of additional
housing and employment development over the plan period.
Eden Adopted Core Strategy – Focus new build housing in Key and Local Service
Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The
plan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additional dwellings per annum to 2025
(over 3100 units in total). 50ha of employment land will be made available to
2025
Barrow Port Area Action Plan – 925 additional dwellings in the Action Plan Area
to 2021 Additional leisure facilities including marina and hoat servicing area
Waterfront hotel Water sports centre and yory limited amount of retail
Improving access to the operational port from read and sea to support new
improving access to the operational port from road and sea to support new

		opportunities to increase the proportion of freight moved by sea. Development
		of Waterfront Business Park as a major new business and employment location
		(24.5ha site).
		South Lakeland LDF Core Strategy – 55% of new housing and employment
		development will be in the Principal Service Centres, 13% in Key Service Centres,
		21% in Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and hamlets.
		Housing target is 469 additional dwellings per year equating to nearly 6100 to
		2025. 21ha of employment development to be accommodated in Kendal to
		2025, 12ha to be accommodated in Ulverston and Furness but overall 4 ha of
		employment land will be allocated per annum between 2010 and 2025 equating
		to 60ha over the plan period.
		<b>Cumbria Local Transport Plan 3</b> – Support for the upgrading of the A595, A590,
		A5094 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth in the
		low carbon energy sector. Increased bus services in rural areas. Improvement to
		the Cumbria West Coast Railway. Carlisle Northern Development Route will be
		completed in 2012.
		Cumbria Minerals and Waste LDF Core Strategy – no regional waste facilities to
		be located in Cumbria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the
		south of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with a
		preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of facility,
		for example, a Household Waste Recycling Centre and a Transfer/Bulking
		Station. This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core Strategy Policy for
		minimising "waste miles".
		Cumbria Minerals and Waste Site Allocations DPD – Allocates sites for mineral
		working and waste facilities. The HRA for this document stated that there were
		13 sites in the whole of the county that would require an Appropriate
		Assessment at project stage but that the policies themselves were unlikely to
		have negative effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The mitigation
		measures that are considered likely to be needed are common place and could
		form the conditions of the planning application.
ĺ	Is there risk of a	As all of the above plans are planning for a greater amount of development in
	significant effect	each of the plan areas it is likely that there could be a significant effect on the
	in combination?	integrity of the site. A separate HRA screening report will be prepared in
		tandem with the Site Allocations DPD.

#### **River Ehen SAC**



Name	River Ehen
Designation	SAC
Area (ha)	24.39

Qualifying	• Freshwater pearl mussel
features	Atlantic salmon
SSSIs within the	River Ehen (Ennerdale Water to Keekle Confluence)
site	
Comments on Nature Conservation	The River Ehen supports the largest freshwater pearl mussel population in England. Exceptionally high densities (greater than 100 m2) are found at some locations, with population estimates for the entire river exceeding 100,000.
site vulnerabilities	The mussels are likely to be adversely affected by the apparent decline in salmonid fish populations and by major eutrophication of the river from sewage works and agricultural run-off.
	Water quality issues will be addressed through the review process under the Habitats Regulations and at a catchment level by local Environment Action Plans. Practices associated with sheep-dipping pose a potential threat at this site, and are currently under investigation. Further research is required to determine the
	extent of any problems arising from pearl fishing.
	Possible concerns over the flows within the river will also be addressed through
	reviews of abstraction licences where these are considered to be causing a
- K -	problem.
Key	Conditions <b>not</b> within Copeland's control
Conditions to	• Avoidance of water pollution (e.g. sheep up)
Support Site	• Controlled introductions of fish
Integrity	• Clean gravel/hard rock substrate in some areas silt and sand in others
υ,	
	Conditions within Copeland's control
	• Cool soft water well ovvgenated
	• Minimum disturbance to mussels by walking in river
	Maintenance of sufficient flow
	Maintenance of satural course of river
	Avoidance of nutrient enrichment
	• Control of invasive +/or non-native species
	• No physical barriers to fish migration
Air Quality	As this is an aquatic environment there was no critical load/level data available
Issues	for air pollutants for this habitat. The site hosts Atlantic Salmon and their young
	are sensitive to acid deposition. The reading for acidification on this site is
	1.37keq/ha/year. Acid deposition is known to arise from road traffic amongst
	other things. The A5086 runs very close to the SAC at its western end. The
	potential for an increase in traffic will have to be taken into account in the HRA
	Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and planning applications for any
Wator Posourco	Nuclear of other major development.
and Wastewater	capacity and will not return to full capacity until the maintenance works are
Treatment	completed there in 2013 Ennerdale Bridge Treatment Works is not able to
Issues	accommodate the planned growth at Ennerdale Bridge and Kirkland. (United
	Utilities has asked that developers consult them prior to submitting a planning
	application regarding the particular point of connection to the sewer network.
	They point out that it will not always be possible for this to be at the location
	which would create the shortest distance to the sewer. There may also need to
	be other infrastructure installed, such as holding tanks etc. and this may make the
	development less financially viable.

	Water Resources: There are no plans to abstract drinking water from the River
	Ehen or its catchment area.
Possible impacts	Potentially significant negative effects
arising from the	• West Cumbria is earmarked for major development in the Cumbria sub-regional
plan	plan. Whitehaven, Egremont and Cleator Moor are Key Services Centres.
	• The area south-east of Whitehaven is to be developed as a knowledge nucleus
	site with science park and tertiary education facilities.
	• Risk of over-abstraction from Ennerdale to provide water needs of new homes.
	• Risk of water quality issues from waste-water treatment works required to
	support increased population in Cleator Moor), along with intermittent
	discharges resulting from limited drainage catchment capacity.
	• Careless planting schemes could lead to invasive and non-native plant species
	being introduced to the landscape and these could creep towards the site over
	time.
Source	Manmade obstruction in river e.g. hydropower technology or flood defences
Pathway	Physical changes to the shape of the river effecting the hydrology and creating
Impact	obstructions for migrating fish
	Extra housing leading to an increase in amount of sewage
	Existing Wastewater treatment plants discharging semi treated or untreated
	sewage into the river
	Decline in water quality posing significant risk to mussels and migrating fish.
	Increased amount of development in the plan area some of which will have
	planting schemes
	Creeping of non-native species across land towards the sensitive site.
	Competition with sensitive species leading to decline or extinction on the site.
	Encouraging more tourists to the area will increase the number of people visiting
	the river and potentially fishing/walking in the river.
	Physical damage to mussels, litter accumulation etc.
Policies that	The following policies could have a negative impact on the SAC:
could	<b>ST1</b> - Support the development of energy infrastructure, related economic
potentially have	clusters, rural diversification and tourism. Encourage development that minimises
a negative	carbon emissions (i.e. renewable energy – could be hydroelectricity which could
impact	disrupt the flow of the river and present a physical barrier to migrating fish.)
	<b>ST2</b> - providing for and facilitating growth in the local economy, particularly in the
	energy sector, accompanied by net growth in jobs and an associated increase in
	demand for housing and services
	<b>S13</b> – Site adj. to Sellafield, regeneration sites in Whitehaven Cleator Moor,
	Egremont and Milliom are priorities for development. Developing the sites
	prioritised for development in the BECIVIP.
	<b>ER1</b> - Major nuclear energy-related expansion, including new generating capacity,
	at the selected preferred site immediately to the north of the Seliafield nuclear
	complex, is supported in principle. Accommodation of e any new reprocessing in
	the nuclear fuel cycle within existing Seliafield site boundaries will be supported
	<b>EP2</b> Identify notantial requirements for temporary accommodation according to the
	<b>END</b> - Identify potential requirements for temporary accommodation associated
	with the construction of auditional energy generating capacity and associated
	<b>FPA</b> - Allocating land for economic development over the plan period at a rate
	ahead of that implied by projecting past take up rates to allow a flevible
	aneau or that implied by projecting past take up rates, to allow a nextble

	<b>ER10</b> - Expand tourism outside the Lake District National Park boundaries. <b>ER11</b> - Supporting the development of commercial units which meet the needs of businesses, encourage start-ups and promote further expansion. Encouraging the further development of Research and Development and education and training facilities at the Westlakes Science & Technology Park. Enhancing inward investment and promoting the diversification of the Borough's economy, working with partners to support new and expanding employment sectors <b>SS1</b> - Allocating housing sites to meet local needs in locations attractive to house
	builders <b>SS2</b> - Allocating sufficient land for new housing development to meet identified requirements within the Borough. Allocations will be made in accordance with
	I. A baseline requirement, derived from projected household growth, of 230 dwellings per year
	<ul> <li>ii. Provision for growth 30% above that, to 300 dwellings per year.</li> <li>SS3 - Establishing a supply of sites suitable for executive and high quality family housing, focusing on Whitehaven and its fringes as a priority and also giving particular attention to the three smaller towns. Providing housing for specific groups where there is housing need, including temporary workforce, agricultural workers and key workers.</li> </ul>
	<b>SS4</b> - increasing the provision of local community facilities, such as community centres, local sport and public open space in Local Centres and villages identified as needing them
	<b>T1</b> - Priority will be given to improving the accessibility of the Borough's key development and regeneration sites, town and village centres, service,
	<b>ENV2</b> - Promote the developed coast as a destination for leisure, culture and tourism, with strong links to Whitehaven Harbour / town centre in the north and to Millom in the south. Maximise opportunities along the undeveloped coast for tourism and outdoor recreation through support for the North West Coastal Trail and Colourful Coast projects
	<b>ENV6</b> - Identifying opportunities to provide or improve access to the countryside on routes and gateways from settlements and to secure the implementation of improvement measures with key partners and developers.
	<b>DM26</b> - Development proposals, where necessary, will be required to include landscaping schemes that retain existing landscape features, reinforce local landscape character and mitigate against any adverse visual impact.
Policies that eradicate/lessen the risk posed	<b>ST1 -</b> Focus development on sites that are at least risk from flooding (thereby cutting down on the amount of pollution and nutrients that enter the river). Protect and enhance areas, sites, species and features of nature conservation and biodiversity value, landscapes and the undeveloped coast. Ensure development minimises air, ground and water pollution.
	<b>ST4</b> - Development proposals should provide, or contribute to the provision of environmental requirements either on or off site, as is reasonable and necessary to support and mitigate the impact of the development
	the nuclear sector is accompanied by appropriate financial or in kind contributions to mitigate any potentially detrimental impacts of development. ER3 - Ensure that any new energy transmission infrastructure minimises potential impacts on the Porcurat's biodiversity. Evolore potential locations for
	accommodation which minimise potential impacts and where sites can be fully
	restored with uses that benefit the Borough;
------------------	-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
	<b>ER10 -</b> Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there
	is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse
	environmental impacts.
	T1 – improved public transport network.
	T2 – reducing the need to travel through supporting the provision of high quality
	broadband connections
	ENV1 - Permitting new build development only on sites located outside areas at
	risk of flooding. Ensuring that new development does not contribute to increased
	surface water run-off through measures such as sustainable drainage systems,
	where these are practical. Where they are not this should be achieved by
	improvements to drainage capacity.
	ENV2 - Support energy generating developments that require a coastal location
	along the undeveloped coast, provided that the potential impacts on biodiversity
	is carefully assessed against the benefits. Where negative impacts are likely these
	must be mitigated against and compensated for
	<b>ENV3 -</b> Improve the condition of internationally, nationally and locally designated
	sites: Restrict access and usage where appropriate and necessary in order to
	conserve an area's biodiversity value. Protect and strengthen populations of
	priority or other protected species.
	<b>DM1</b> - Proposals involving the use, storage or processing of radioactive material
	should include a strategy for the construction and the long term management
	and safety of the site including the management of radioactive material
	<b>DM2</b> – Proposals for renewable energy development must not have unaccentable
	impacts on hindiversity
	<b>DM5</b> - Proposals for any new facilities are submitted with long term management
	plans to set out how operations will be co-ordinated to minimise any harmful
	effects
	<b>DM11</b> – Developments that ensure that surface water is managed appropriately
	with the inclusion of sustainable drainage systems where possible will be
	supported (subject to other planning considerations of course)
	<b>DM22</b> – Where necessary the notential transport implications of development
	will be required to be supported by a Transport Assessment and a Travel Plan to
	manage any significant transport implications
	<b>DM24</b> - Development will not be permitted where it is found that there is an
	unaccentable risk of flooding or the development would increase the risk of
	flooding elsewhere.
	<b>DM25</b> - All development proposals must take into account any likely significant
	effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough and within
	a 20km radius of the borough boundary as well as those that are hydrologically
	linked to the development plan area
Is There a Risk	Regarding the prevention of introduction of non-invasive species – there is
of a Significant	probably scope for adding some words to the policy DM26 that allow conditions
Effect?	to be nut on planning permissions that states that all species used in landscaning
Lincol.	schemes must use plants that are native to that narticular landscape
	There is a risk that Wastewater Treatment Works will not be able to cope with
	the increased requirement but it is considered that policy STAA deals adequately
	with this threat
	Trampling is an important issue when considering policies that encourage more
	neonle into any given area ENV3E does however allow for planners to add
	conditions that will restrict access and usage of land where that would load to
	conditions that will restrict access and usage of land where that would ledd to

	trampling and disturbance of sensitive habitats and species. This should
	significantly lessen the risk of damage.
	Development causing an obstruction to the flow of water in the River Ehen would
	be considered to be a direct threat to the integrity of the site and policy DM25
	would be used to refuse permission where the benefits of the development did
	not clearly outweigh the risk of damage to this very important site.
Possible	Proposals within West Cumbria Masterplan – Development of the Westlakes
Impacts Arising	Research Institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the
from Other	National Nuclear Skills Academy at Lillyhall, the Dalton Institute (lab facilities)at
Plans and	Westlakes, further investment in the employment sites at Leconfield and
Projects	Bridgend. A 'health campus' on the current hospital site and new University of
_	Cumbria facilities at Lillyhall. New National Nuclear Laboratory headquarters in
	West Cumbria.
	North West RSS - Drigg coast falls within North West coast area of search for a
	regional park and a planned North West Coastal Trail. There is potential for
	increased visitor pressure.
	Allerdale LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – additional 267-350 dwellings
	per year (equating to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period). Some
	limited housing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in more
	sustainable locations i.e. Workington, Maryport, Aspatria, Cockermouth, Wigton
	etc.
	Lake District National Park Core Strategy – 900 additional dwellings in the period
	to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 30% in clusters and the
	open countryside). There will be an additional 9.2ha of employment land and it is
	acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional nationally significant
	visitor attractions
	Lake District National Park Site Allocations Preferred Options – All employment
	land allocated will be in the Rural Service Centres River Ehen SAC falls into the
	West Distinctive Area which will accommodate 25% of all development in the
	LDNP.
	Carlisle LDE Core Strategy Issues and Options – Currently no policy direction
	offered. Carlisle has been designated as a growth point though so it can be
	reasonably expected that there will be a significant amount of additional housing
	and employment development over the plan period.
	Eden Adopted Core Strategy – Focus new build housing in Key and Local Service
	Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The
	plan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additional dwellings per annum to 2025
	(over 3100 units in total). 50ha of employment land will be made available to
	2025
	Barrow Port Area Action Plan – 925 additional dwellings in the Action Plan Area
	to 2021 Additional leisure facilities including marina and hoat servicing area
	Waterfront hotel Water sports centre and very limited amount of retail
	Improving access to the operational port from road and sea to support new
	onnortunities to increase the proportion of freight moved by sea. Development
	of Waterfront Business Park as a major new husiness and employment location
	(24 Sha site)
	South Lakeland LDE Core Strategy - 55% of new housing and employment
	development will be in the Principal Service Centres 13% in Key Service Contros
	21% in Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and hamlets. Housing
	target is 169 additional dwellings per year equating to poarly 6100 to 2025. 21ba
	of employment development to be accommodated in Kendal to 2025, 12ba to be
	or employment development to be accommodated in Kendal to 2025, 12Ha to be

	accommodated in Ulverston and Furness but overall 4 ha of employment land will
	be allocated per annum between 2010 and 2025 equating to 60ha over the plan
	period.
	Cumbria Local Transport Plan 3 – Support for the upgrading of the A595, A590,
	A5094 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth in the low
	carbon energy sector. Increased bus services in rural areas. Improvement to the
	Cumbria West Coast Railway. Carlisle Northern Development Route will be
	completed in 2012.
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste LDF Core Strategy – no regional waste facilities to
	be located in Cumbria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the south
	of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with a
	preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of facility, for
	example, a Household Waste Recycling Centre and a Transfer/Bulking Station.
	This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core Strategy Policy for minimising
	"waste miles".
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste Site Allocations DPD – Allocates sites for mineral
	working and waste facilities. The HRA for this document stated that there were
	13 sites in the whole of the county that would require an Appropriate Assessment
	at project stage but that the policies themselves were unlikely to have negative
	effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The mitigation measures that are
	considered likely to be needed are common place and could form the conditions
	of the planning application.
Is there risk of a	The site is partly in Copeland and partly in the LDNP. There may be some
significant effect	potential for pollution arising from either plan. A separate HRA Screening Report
in combination?	will accompany the Copeland Site Allocations DPD.

### Roudsea Wood and Mosses SAC



Name	Roudsea Wood and Mosses
Designation	SAC
Area (ha)	470.45
Qualifying	<ul> <li>Active raised bogs*</li> </ul>
features	Degraded raised bog

	<ul> <li>Mixed woodland on base-rich soils associated with rocky slopes*</li> </ul>
	Yew-dominated woodland*
SSSIs within the site	Roudsea Wood and Mosses
Comments on Nature Conservation Importance and site vulnerabilities	<ul> <li>Roudsea consists of a complex of raised bogs on the northern shore of Morecambe Bay. Although the majority of the complex has undergone extensive drainage in the past, with domestic peat-cutting around the margins, drainage was abandoned many years ago and much of the area has recovered to a considerable degree. A number of scarce plant species occur including the rare large yellow-sedge.</li> <li>Less than 20% of the site is classified as degraded raised bog.</li> <li>The rare fingered sedge is present in the mixed woodland on base-rich soils associated with rocky slopes.</li> </ul>
	In the latter part of the 20th century, coppicing of the woodland ceased and lower water tables on the bogs, caused by drainage for peat-cutting, had allowed scrub to spread across them. Most of the site is now managed as a National Nature Reserve. Woodland management is carried out and much scrub has been cleared from Deer Dike Moss and ditches blocked to allow regeneration of the bog vegetation. Management of the southern bog, recently added to the National Nature Reserve, has been addressed in the management plan.
Кеу	Conditions <i>not</i> within Copeland's control
Environmental	Appropriate grazing
Conditions to	No burning
Support Site	Maintenance of water levels and hydrological conditions
Integrity	<ul> <li>High rainfall and low evapotranspiration</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Bracken and scrub control on bog</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Appropriate woodland management</li> </ul>
	Conditions within Copeland's control
	Absence of nutrient enrichment
	Absence of atmospheric pollution
	<ul> <li>Avoidance of erosion resulting from trampling, vehicles etc.</li> </ul>
Air Quality Issues	The levels of SO <sub>2</sub> and NO <sup>2</sup> sampled at the site do not cause any concern.
	However, there are issues with the levels of nitrogen deposition and with
	regards to the bog habitats, the readings for acid deposition are significantly
	above the critical load. The levels of ammonia are also very close to the critical
	levels for the bog areas. The A590 runs close to the north of the site. The
	potential for an increase in traffic will have to be taken into account in the HRA
	Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and planning applications for any
	nuclear or other major development.
Water Resource	<i>Wastewater:</i> United Utilities reports that there will be no problems
and Wastewater	accommodating the planned growth in the South Copeland locality i.e. Millom
rreatment issues	dilu naveligg. Water Pesources: There are currently no plans to source drinking water from
	South Copeland
Possible impacts	With regards to nutrient enrichment – it is considered that the terrain between
arising from the	the SAC site and Coneland plan area would make the contamination of the site
nlan	with raw sewage originating in Copeland very difficult
	Potentially significant negative effects

	• West Cumbria is earmarked for major development in the Cumbria sub-
	regional plan. Whitehaven, Egremont and Cleator Moor are Key Services
	Centres.
	• increased courism and potentially a larger population using the area for leisure could lead to erosion issues
Sourco	Encouraging more tourists to the area will increase the amount of vehicular
<u>Source</u> Pathway	traffic and people walking on and pear to the site
Impact	<u>trainc and people waiking on and near to the site.</u>
impact	sensitive species etc.
	More development increased tourism and access could lead to increased traffic
	<u>movement</u> in the south Copeland/Mild Copeland area resulting in <b>more air</b>
Delision that	<b>pollution</b> that would travel on the prevailing wind towards the site.
Policies that	The issues identified here would generally be exacerbated by an increased
could potentially	population, more development, increased venicular travel and more visitors and
have a negative	residents using the site and surrounding area for leisure purposes. Therefore
Impact	the following policies may have a negative impact on this site:
	<b>ST1</b> – supporting growth in terms of housing, employment, services and tourism.
	<b>512 -</b> providing for and facilitating growth in the local economy, particularly in
	increase in demand for housing and services
	<b>ST2</b> – Site adj. to Sellafield, regeneration sites in Whitehaven Cleator Moor
	Farement and Millom are priorities for development. Developing the sites
	prioritised for development in the BECMP
	<b>FR1</b> - Major nuclear energy-related expansion including new generating
	capacity at the selected preferred site immediately to the north of the Sellafield
	nuclear complex, is supported in principle. Accommodation of e any new
	reprocessing in the nuclear fuel cycle within existing Sellafield site boundaries
	will be supported in principle subject to a full and satisfactory safety case.
	ER3 - Identify potential requirements for temporary accommodation associated
	with the construction of additional energy generating capacity and associated
	infrastructure
	ER4 - Allocating land for economic development over the plan period at a rate
	ahead of that implied by projecting past take up rates, to allow a flexible
	response to emerging demand.
	ER8 - Providing more car parking in the town centre could encourage more
	people to drive rather than use public transport.
	<b>ER10</b> - Expand tourism outside the Lake District National Park boundaries.
	<b>ER11</b> - Supporting the development of commercial units which meet the needs
	of businesses, encourage start-ups and promote further expansion. Encouraging
	the further development of Research and Development and education and
	training facilities at the Westlakes Science & Technology Park. Enhancing inward
	investment and promoting the diversification of the Borough's economy,
	working with partners to support new and expanding employment sectors
	>>1 - Allocating nousing sites to meet local needs in locations attractive to house huilders
	SC2 Allocating sufficient land for new bausing development to meet identified
	<b>332</b> - Anotating sufficient land for new housing development to meet identified requirements within the Borough. Allocations will be made in accordance with
	the following housing targets:
	i A baseline requirement derived from projected bousehold growth of 220
	dwellings ner vear
	ii. Provision for growth 30% above that, to 300 dwellings per year
	<ul> <li>SS2 - Allocating sufficient land for new housing development to meet identified requirements within the Borough. Allocations will be made in accordance with the following housing targets:</li> <li>i. A baseline requirement, derived from projected household growth, of 230 dwellings per year</li> <li>ii. Provision for growth 30% above that, to 300 dwellings per year.</li> </ul>

	<b>SS3</b> - Establishing a supply of sites suitable for executive and high quality family
	housing, focusing on Whitehaven and its fringes as a priority and also giving
	particular attention to the three smaller towns. Providing housing for specific
	groups where there is housing need, including temporary workforce, agricultural
	workers and key workers
	<b>SS4</b> - increasing the provision of local community facilities, such as community
	centres, local sport and public open space in Local Centres and villages identified
	as needing them
	<b>T1</b> - Priority will be given to improving the accessibility of the Borough's key
	development and regeneration sites, town and village centres, service.
	employment and transport hubs, and rural areas
	<b>ENV2 -</b> Promote the developed coast as a destination for leisure, culture and
	tourism, with strong links to Whitehaven Harbour / town centre in the north and
	to Millom in the south. Maximise opportunities along the undeveloped coast for
	tourism and outdoor recreation through support for the North West Coastal
	Trail and Colourful Coast projects
	<b>ENV6</b> - Identifying opportunities to provide or improve access to the countryside
	on routes and gateways from settlements and to secure the implementation of
	improvement measures with key partners and developers.
Policies that	<b>ST1</b> - Focus development on sites that are at least risk from flooding (thereby
eradicate/lessen	cutting down on the amount of pollution and nutrients that enter the river).
the risk posed	Protect and enhance areas, sites, species and features of nature conservation
	and biodiversity value, landscapes and the undeveloped coast. Ensure
	development minimises air, ground and water pollution.
	ST4 - Development proposals should provide, or contribute to the provision of
	environmental requirements either on or off site, as is reasonable and necessary
	to support and mitigate the impact of the development
	ER1 - In applying this policy the Council will seek to ensure that all investment in
	the nuclear sector is accompanied by appropriate financial or in kind
	contributions to mitigate any potentially detrimental impacts of development.
	ER3 - Ensure that any new energy transmission infrastructure minimises
	potential impacts on the Borough's biodiversity. Explore potential locations for
	accommodation which minimise potential impacts and where sites can be fully
	restored with uses that benefit the Borough;
	<b>ER10</b> - Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there
	is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse
	environmental impacts.
	T1 – improved public transport network.
	<b>T2</b> – reducing the need to travel through supporting the provision of high quality
	broadband connections
	<b>ENV1</b> - Permitting new build development only on sites located outside areas at
	risk of flooding. Ensuring that new development does not contribute to
	increased surface water run-off through measures such as sustainable drainage
	systems, where these are practical. where they are not this should be achieved
	by improvements to drainage capacity.
	<b>EIVVZ</b> - Support energy generating developments that require a coastal location
	along the undeveloped coast, provided that the potential impacts on
	are likely these must be mitigated against and compensated for
	are intervention of internationally nationally and locally
	designated sites: Restrict access and usage where appropriate and personal in
L	designated sites, nestrict access and usage where appropriate and necessary in

	order to conserve an area's biodiversity value. Protect and strengthen
	populations of priority or other protected species.
	<b>DM1</b> - Proposals involving the use, storage or processing of radioactive material
	should include a strategy for the construction and the long term management
	and safety of the site including the management of radioactive material
	<b>DM2</b> – Proposals for renewable energy development must not have
	unacceptable impacts on biodiversity.
	<b>DM5</b> - Proposals for any new facilities are submitted with long term
	management plans to set out how operations will be co-ordinated to minimise
	any harmful effects
	<b>DM11</b> Developments that oncure that surface water is managed appropriately.
	with the inclusion of sustainable drainage systems where nessible will be
	with the inclusion of sustainable drainage systems where possible will be
	supported (subject to other planning considerations of course).
	DM22 – Where necessary the potential transport implications of development
	will be required to be supported by a Transport Assessment and a Travel Plan to
	manage any significant transport implications.
	<b>DM24</b> - Development will not be permitted where it is found that there is an
	unacceptable risk of flooding or the development would increase the risk of
	flooding elsewhere.
	<b>DM25</b> - All development proposals must take into account any likely significant
	effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough and
	within a 20km radius of the borough boundary as well as those that are
	hydrologically linked to the development plan area.
	<b>DM26</b> - Landscaping schemes will have to be submitted with all development
	proposals.
Is There a Risk of	There is the risk of a greater amount of diffuse air pollution. However there are
a Significant	policies in the Core Strategy that encourage a greater amount of green
Effect?	infrastructure and sustainable transport options. It is considered that this
	document does all that it can at a very strategic level. Until more information is
	available i.e. at site allocations or project stage it will be very difficult to carry
	out an appropriate assessment
	Trampling is an important issue when considering policies that encourage more
	noonlo into any given area. ENV/2E doos however allow for planners to add
	conditions that will restrict access and usage of land where that would load to
	transmission and disturbance of consisting behitste and species. This should
	trampling and disturbance of sensitive habitats and species. This should
	significantly lessen the risk of damage.
	A separate HRA screening report will be produced as part of the preparation of
	the Site Allocations DPD.
Possible Impacts	•Increased use of B5278 as a consequence of development at Grange-over-
Arising from	Sands could have air quality implications for the site.
Other Plans and	<ul> <li>Policy W6 advocates tourism development adjacent to National Parks and</li> </ul>
Projects	AONBs – this applies to this site and could lead to increased visitor pressure.
	• Morecambe Bay falls within North West coast area of search for a regional
	park and parts of Morecambe Bay are planned to be part of it. A North West
	Coastal Trail is also planned for the region. Dependent on selection of area,
	and proposed uses (e.g. leisure, tourism) there is potential for increased
	visitor pressure.
	Proposals within West Cumbria Masterplan – Development of the Westlakes
	Research Institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the
	National Nuclear Skills Academy at Lillyhall, the Dalton Institute (lab facilities)at
	Westlakes, further investment in the employment sites at Leconfield and

Bridgend. A 'health campus' on the current hospital site and new University of
Cumbria facilities at Lillyhall. New National Nuclear Laboratory headquarters in
West Cumbria.
North West RSS - Drigg coast falls within North West coast area of search for a
regional park and a planned North West Coastal Trail. There is potential for
increased visitor pressure.
Allerdale LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – additional 267-350 dwellings
per year (equating to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period). Some
limited housing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in more
sustainable locations i.e. Workington, Maryport, Aspatria, Cockermouth, Wigton
etc.
Lake District National Park Core Strategy – 900 additional dwellings in the
period to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 30% in clusters
and the open countryside). There will be an additional 9.2ha of employment
land and it is acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional
nationally significant visitor attractions.
Lake District National Park Site Allocations Preferred Options – All employment
land allocated will be in the Rural Service Centres. Roudsea Wood and Mosses
SAC falls into the South Distinctive Area, which will accommodate 14% of all
development in the LDNP.
Carlisle LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – Currently no policy direction
offered. Carlisle has been designated as a growth point though so it can be
reasonably expected that there will be a significant amount of additional
housing and employment development over the plan period.
Eden Adopted Core Strategy – Focus new build housing in Key and Local Service
Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The
plan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additional dwellings per annum to 2025
(over 3100 units in total). Suna of employment land will be made available to
2025.
to 2021. Additional loigure facilities including marina and heat convising area
Waterfront botel Water sports centre and yery limited amount of retail
Improving access to the operational port from road and sea to support new
apportunities to increase the proportion of freight moved by sea. Development
of Waterfront Business Park as a major new husiness and employment location
(24 5ha site)
South Lakeland LDF Core Strategy – 55% of new housing and employment
development will be in the Principal Service Centres. 13% in Key Service Centres
21% in Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and hamlets.
Housing target is 469 additional dwellings per year equating to nearly 6100 to
2025. 21ha of employment development to be accommodated in Kendal to
2025, 12ha to be accommodated in Ulverston and Furness but overall 4 ha of
employment land will be allocated per annum between 2010 and 2025 equating
to 60ha over the plan period.
<b>Cumbria Local Transport Plan 3</b> – Support for the upgrading of the A595, A590,
A5094 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth in the
low carbon energy sector. Increased bus services in rural areas. Improvement to
the Cumbria West Coast Railway. Carlisle Northern Development Route will be
completed in 2012.
<b>Cumbria Minerals and Waste LDF Core Strategy</b> – no regional waste facilities to
be located in Cumbria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the

	south of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with a preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of facility, for example, a Household Waste Recycling Centre and a Transfer/Bulking
	Station. This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core Strategy Policy for minimising "waste miles".
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste Site Allocations DPD – Allocates sites for mineral
	working and waste facilities. The HRA for this document stated that there were
	13 sites in the whole of the county that would require an Appropriate
	Assessment at project stage but that the policies themselves were unlikely to
	have negative effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The mitigation
	measures that are considered likely to be needed are common place and could
	form the conditions of the planning application.
Is there risk of a	As all of the above plans are planning for a greater amount of development in
significant effect	each of the plan areas it is likely that there could be a significant effect on the
in combination?	integrity of the site. A separate HRA screening report will be prepared in
	tandem with the Site Allocations DPD.



# Subberthwaite, Blawith & Torver Low Commons SAC

Name	Subberthwaite, Blawith & Torver Low Commons
Designation	SAC
Area (ha)	1865.17
Qualifying	<ul> <li>Very wet mires often identified by an unstable 'quaking' surface</li> </ul>
features	• Depressions on peat substrates
SSSIs within the	Subberthwaite, Blawith & Torver Low Commons

site	
Comments on	• This site supports some of the best examples of very wet mires often identified
Nature	by an unstable 'quaking' surface in the UK, with over 200 mires on a broad hilly
Conservation	plateau. Twenty-six NVC types are represented.
Importance and	<ul> <li>The mires are set within an agriculturally improved landscape.</li> </ul>
site vulnerabilities Key	This site comprises a complex mosaic of over 200 discrete mires set within an agriculturally unimproved landscape. The mires are at or near favourable condition and would only be threatened by intensification of land-use on the surrounding commons or by interference with the site hydrology. There is a good liaison with a commoners association over part of the site. Lowland heath is not listed as a SAC feature on the site because of its degraded, unfavourable condition. Heathland may be inhibited from recovery by the livestock management regime but at current livestock levels this is not believed to be affecting the mire interest.
Environmental	<ul> <li>High rainfall and low evapotranspiration</li> </ul>
Conditions to	• Appropriate grazing
Support Site	Control of scrub and bracken
Integrity	<ul> <li>Avoidance of damaging levels of erosion from trampling and vehicles</li> </ul>
	Conditions within Copeland's control
	Minimal atmospheric pollution
	Maintain site hydrology including a high water table
Ain Quality Ianuan	• Maintain nutrient poor and high base status of water
Air Quality issues	However, there are issues with the levels of nitrogen and acid deposition that are both significantly above the critical loads for this type of habitat (see Appendix 1 for details). The levels of ammonia are also very close to the critical levels for the bog habitats. The main roads in the area are the A595, A590, A593, A5092 and A5084. The potential for an increase in traffic will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and planning applications for any nuclear or other major development.
Water Resource	Wastewater – United Utilities have reported that the Millom WwTW will be able
and Wastewater	to accommodate the planned growth in the area.
Treatment Issues	Water Resources – There are no plans to abstract drinking water from South
Possible impacts	• West Cumbria is earmarked for major development in the Cumbria sub
arising from the	• west cumbrid is earmarked for major development in the cumbrid SUD- regional plan. Whitehaven, Egremont and Cleator Moor are Key Services
plan	Centres.
	<ul> <li>Increased tourism and potentially a larger population using the area for leisure</li> </ul>
	could lead to erosion issues.
Source	Encouraging more tourists to the area will increase the amount of vehicular
Pathway	traffic and people walking on and near to the site.
Impact	Physical damage to habitats, erosion, litter accumulation, disturbance to
	sensitive species etc.
	More development Increased tourism and access could lead to increased traffic
	movement in the South Copeland/Mid Copeland area resulting in more air
	<b>pollution</b> that would <i>travel on the prevailing wind towards the site.</i>
Policies that	The required environmental conditions will be affected by an increased
could potentially	population, both resident and visitor and their transport and water
have a negative	requirements. An increased number of people using the area for leisure

impact	purposes will also increase the likelihood of erosion and trampling problems.
	Therefore the following policies have the potential to affect the site negatively.
	ST1 – supporting growth in terms of housing, employment, services and tourism.
	<b>ST2</b> - providing for and facilitating growth in the local economy, particularly in
	the energy sector, accompanied by net growth in jobs and an associated
	increase in demand for housing and services
	<b>ST3</b> – Site adj. to Sellafield, regeneration sites in Whitehaven Cleator Moor,
	Egremont and Millom are priorities for development. Developing the sites
	prioritised for development in the BECMP.
	<b>ER1</b> - Major nuclear energy-related expansion, including new generating
	capacity, at the selected preferred site immediately to the north of the Sellafield
	nuclear complex, is supported in principle. Accommodation of e any new
	reprocessing in the nuclear fuel cycle within existing Sellafield site boundaries
	will be supported in principle subject to a full and satisfactory safety case.
	<b>FR3</b> - Identify potential requirements for temporary accommodation associated
	with the construction of additional energy generating canacity and associated
	infrastructure
	<b>FR4</b> - Allocating land for economic development over the plan period at a rate
	ahead of that implied by projecting past take up rates to allow a flexible
	response to emerging demand
	FR8 - Providing more car parking in the town centre could encourage more
	neonle to drive rather than use nublic transport
	<b>FB10</b> - Expand tourism outside the Lake District National Park boundaries
	<b>EB11</b> - Supporting the development of commercial units which meet the needs
	of husinesses encourage start-uns and promote further expansion. Encouraging
	the further development of Research and Development and education and
	training facilities at the Westlakes Science & Technology Dark, Enhancing inward
	investment and promoting the diversification of the Percurd's economy
	working with partners to support new and expanding employment sectors
	Sc1 Allocating bousing sites to most local pools in locations attractive to bouse
	builders
	SS2 Allocating sufficient land for new bausing development to meet identified
	ssz - Anocating sufficient land for new nousing development to meet identified
	the following housing targets:
	i. A baseline requirement, derived from prejected household growth, of 220
	dwellings per year
	ii. Brovision for growth 20% above that to 200 dwellings per year
	<b>SS2</b> Establishing a supply of sites suitable for executive and high quality family
	bousing focusing on Whiteboven and its fringes as a priority and also giving
	nousing, focusing on whitenaven and its filinges as a phonicy and also giving
	around where there is housing need, including tomorrow workforce, agricultural
	groups where there is housing need, including temporary workforce, agricultural
	<b>SSA</b> increasing the provision of local community facilities, such as community
	<b>554</b> - Increasing the provision of local community facilities, such as community controls local controls and will ages identified
	as needing them
	as neculing ultill <b>T1</b> Driverity will be given to improving the accessibility of the Berouch's law
	development and regeneration sites town and village control convict
	development and regeneration sites, town and village centres, service,
	employment and transport nubs, and rural areas
	<b>EINVZ</b> - Promote the developed coast as a destination for leisure, culture and tourism with strong links to Whitebourg Harbourg (tours a strong to the sector $t$
	tourism, with strong links to whitenaven Harbour / town centre in the north and
	to Milliom in the south. Maximise opportunities along the undeveloped coast for

	tourism and outdoor recreation through support for the North West Coastal
	Trail and Colourful Coast projects
	<b>ENV6</b> - Identifying opportunities to provide or improve access to the countryside
	on routes and gateways from settlements and to secure the implementation of
	improvement measures with key partners and developers.
Policies that	<b>ST1</b> - Focus development on sites that are at least risk from flooding (thereby
eradicate/lessen	cutting down on the amount of pollution and nutrients that enter the river).
the risk posed	Protect and enhance areas, sites, species and features of nature conservation
	and biodiversity value, landscapes and the undeveloped coast. Ensure
	development minimises air, ground and water pollution.
	<b>ST4</b> - Development proposals should provide, or contribute to the provision of
	environmental requirements either on or off site, as is reasonable and necessary
	to support and mitigate the impact of the development
	<b>ER1</b> - In applying this policy the Council will seek to ensure that all investment in
	the nuclear sector is accompanied by appropriate financial or in kind
	contributions to mitigate any potentially detrimental impacts of development.
	<b>ER3</b> - Ensure that any new energy transmission infrastructure minimises
	potential impacts on the Borough's biodiversity. Explore potential locations for
	accommodation which minimise potential impacts and where sites can be fully
	restored with uses that benefit the Borough;
	<b>ER10</b> - Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there
	is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse
	environmental impacts.
	T1 – improved public transport network.
	T2 – reducing the need to travel through supporting the provision of high quality
	broadband connections
	<b>ENVL</b> - Permitting new build development only on sites located outside areas at rich of flooding. Franking that you development does not contribute to
	risk of flooding. Ensuring that new development does not contribute to
	increased surface water run-off through measures such as sustainable drainage
	by improvements to drainage capacity
	<b>ENU2</b> Support energy generating developments that require a coastal location
	<b>ENV2</b> - Support energy generating developments that require a coastal location
	biodiversity is carefully accessed against the banefits. Where pagative impacts
	are likely these must be mitigated against and componented for
	<b>ENV2</b> Improve the condition of internationally nationally and locally
	designated sites: Pestrist assess and usage where appropriate and possessary in
	order to concerve an area's biodiversity value (although in the case of this site
	Concland would have no control over this). Protect and strongthen nonulations
	of priority or other protected species
	<b>DM1</b> - Proposals involving the use storage or processing of radioactive material
	should include a strategy for the construction and the long term management
	and safety of the site including the management of radioactive material
	<b>DM2</b> – Proposals for renewable energy development must not have
	unacceptable impacts on biodiversity.
	DM5 - Proposals for any new facilities are submitted with long term
	management plans to set out how operations will be co-ordinated to minimise
	any harmful effects
	<b>DM11</b> – Developments that ensure that surface water is managed appropriately
	with the inclusion of sustainable drainage systems where possible will be
	supported (subject to other planning considerations of course).

	<b>DM22</b> – Where necessary the potential transport implications of development
	will be required to be supported by a Transport Assessment and a Travel Plan to
	manage any significant transport implications.
	<b>DM24</b> - Development will not be permitted where it is found that there is an
	unacceptable risk of flooding or the development would increase the risk of
	flooding elsewhere.
	<b>DM25</b> - All development proposals must take into account any likely significant
	effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough and
	within a 20km radius of the borough boundary as well as those that are
	hydrologically linked to the development plan area.
Is There a Risk of	There is the risk of a greater amount of diffuse air pollution. However there are
a Significant	nolicies in the Core Strategy that encourage a greater amount of green
Effect?	infrastructure and sustainable transport options. It is considered that this
	document does all that it can at a very strategic level. Until more information is
	available i.e. at site allocations or project stage it will be very difficult to carry
	available i.e. at site allocations of project stage it will be very difficult to carry
	Trampling is an important issue when considering policies that encourage more
	needle into any given area. ENV/2E doos however allow for planners to add
	conditions that will restrict access and usage of land where that would lead to
	trampling and disturbance of consitive babitate and species. This should
	cignificantly lossen the rick of damage
	A concrete HPA corecting report will be produced as part of the proparation of
	the Site Allocations DPD
Possible Impacts	a Improved public transport access to the Lake District National Dark bas
Arising from	• Improved public transport access to the Lake District National Park has
Arising Ironi	Cite line alignment to AFOOA share (s200 s) to AFOO and is present to an and
Drojects	• Site lies adjacent to A5084, close (c300m) to A593 and is crossed by several
Projects	minor roads. It is therefore at risk of air pollution from any increase in traffic
	on these roads, as a consequence of increased visitors to the area and of
	economic growth in Sw Cumbria (e.g. Williom, Ulverston etc).
	Proposals within west cumbria Masterplan – Development of the Westlakes
	Research Institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the
	National Nuclear Skills Academy at Lillynail, the Dalton Institute (lab facilities)at
	Westlakes, further investment in the employment sites at Leconfield and
	Bridgend. A health campus' on the current hospital site and new University of
	Cumbria facilities at Lillyhall. New National Nuclear Laboratory headquarters in
	West Cumbria.
	North West RSS - Drigg coast falls within North West coast area of search for a
	regional park and a planned North West Coastal Trail. There is potential for
	increased visitor pressure.
	Allerdale LDF Core Strategy issues and Options – additional 267-350 dwellings
	per year (equating to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period). Some
	imited nousing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in more
	sustainable locations i.e. workington, Maryport, Aspatria, Cockermouth, Wigton
	Lake District National Park Core Strategy – 900 additional dwellings in the
	period to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 30% in clusters
	and the open countryside). There will be an additional 9.2ha of employment
	and and it is acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional
	nationally significant visitor attractions.
	Lake District National Park Site Allocations Preferred Options – All employment
	land allocated will be in the Rural Service Centres. Subberthwaite, Blawith

	&Torver Low Commons SAC falls into the South Distinctive Area which will
	accommodate 14% of all development in the LDNP.
	Carlisle LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – Currently no policy direction
	offered. Carlisle has been designated as a growth point though so it can be
	reasonably expected that there will be a significant amount of additional
	housing and employment development over the plan period.
	Eden Adopted Core Strategy – Focus new build housing in Key and Local Service
	Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The
	plan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additional dwellings per annum to 2025
	(over 3100 units in total). 50ha of employment land will be made available to
	2025.
	Barrow Port Area Action Plan – 925 additional dwellings in the Action Plan Area
	to 2021. Additional leisure facilities including marina and boat servicing area,
	Waterfront hotel, Water sports centre and very limited amount of retail.
	Improving access to the operational port from road and sea to support new
	opportunities to increase the proportion of freight moved by sea. Development
	of Waterfront Business Park as a major new business and employment location
	(24.5ha site).
	South Lakeland LDF Core Strategy – 55% of new housing and employment
	development will be in the Principal Service Centres, 13% in Key Service Centres,
	21% in Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and hamlets.
	Housing target is 469 additional dwellings per year equating to nearly 6100 to
	2025. 21ha of employment development to be accommodated in Kendal to
	2025, 12ha to be accommodated in Ulverston and Furness but overall 4 ha of
	employment land will be allocated per annum between 2010 and 2025 equating
	to 60ha over the plan period.
	<b>Cumbria Local Transport Plan 3</b> – Support for the upgrading of the A595, A590,
	A5094 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth in the
	low carbon energy sector. Increased bus services in rural areas. Improvement to
	the Cumbria West Coast Railway. Carlisle Northern Development Route will be
	completed in 2012.
	<b>Cumbria Minerals and Waste LDF Core Strategy</b> – no regional waste facilities to
	be located in Cumbria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the
	south of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with a
	preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of facility,
	for example, a Household Waste Recycling Centre and a Transfer/Bulking
	Station. This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core Strategy Policy for
	minimising "waste miles".
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste Site Allocations DPD – Allocates sites for mineral
	working and waste facilities. The HRA for this document stated that there were
	13 sites in the whole of the county that would require an Appropriate
	Assessment at project stage but that the policies themselves were unlikely to
	have negative effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The mitigation
	measures that are considered likely to be needed are common place and could
	form the conditions of the planning application.
Is there risk of a	As all of the above plans are planning for a greater amount of development in
significant effect	each of the plan areas it is likely that there could be a significant effect on the
in combination?	integrity of the site. A separate HRA screening report will be prepared in
	tandem with the Site Allocations DPD.

Wast Water SAC



Name	Wast Water
Designation	SAC
Area (ha)	286.21
Qualifying	Clear-water lakes or lochs with aquatic vegetation and poor to moderate

features	nutrient levels
SSSIs within the	Wast Water
site	
Comments on	• Species such as awlwort and stoneworts (Nitella species) are known to occur.
Nature	Arctic charr occur in the lake
Conservation	• Unusually pristine lake, with a relative lack of anthropogenic influence
Importance and	There are no known threats, human prossures or otherwise, which will adversally
site	affect the water quality of Water Water Sellafield used to abstract water from
vulnerabilities	the lake but the site is being decommissioned now. It is not known whether any
	new reactors on the site will abstract water from the same source or have a
	closed system whereby water is cooled in a network of cooling nines running
	from the plant out to sea and back.
Kev	Conditions <b>not</b> within Coneland's control
Environmental	Poor to moderate nutrient levels
Conditions to	Absence of lakeshore modifications
Support Site	
Integrity	Conditions within Copeland's control
0 /	Absence of water pollution
	Absence of atmospheric pollution
	• Maintain current range of fluctuations in lake levels (in particular avoiding
	excessive drawdown in summer months)
Air Quality Issues	As this is an aquatic environment there is no critical load/level data available for
	air pollutants for this habitat. Current readings for several pollutants are
	available in Appendix 1. Arctic Charr are sensitive to acidification of the water.
	Acidification arises as a result of acid and nitrogen deposition, both of which are
	constituents of vehicle emissions so there will be a need to ensure that this is
	controlled. The main roads in the area are the AS95 and AS91. Both roads are
	The majority of nitrogen and acid denosition in Cumbria occurs as the result of
	air pollutants generated in the heavily urban areas to the south of the region
	(needs referencing) However, more locally the notential for an increase in
	traffic will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports for the
	Site Allocations DPD and planning applications for any nuclear or other major
	development
Water Resource	Wastewater – the topography between the site and the plan area would not
and Wastewater	allow the site to become contaminated with raw sewage generated here.
Treatment Issues	<i>Water Resources</i> – the nuclear generating plant at Sellafield used water
	abstracted from the site for cooling purposes. It is not clear whether this will be
	the case with regards to the Moorside nuclear new build project. The HRA that
	accompanies the planning application for this proposal will need to address this
	issue.
Possible impacts	• Development within the LDF may result in increased water abstraction from
arising from the	Wast Water, for industrial as well as domestic supply. The River Irt is short of
plan	water.
	• There are concerns over the ability for existing WwTW(s) discharging in to the
	site to provide adequate capacity.
	• Development generally leads to a greater instance of air pollution
Source	More development Increased tourism and access could lead to increased traffic
Pathway	movement in the West Cumbria area resulting in more air pollution that would
Impact	travel on the prevailing wind towards the site.
	More development and the need to supply more water to domestic and

	commercial properties could lead to more water abstraction from Wast Water
	meaning that the level of the lake drops in the summer time. This would have
	a negative impact on some of the sensitive plant species living on the water's
	edge.
	Increased amount of development leading to greater air pollutants which could
	travel on the prevailing wind towards the site Rain falling through polluted air
	could lead to a small amount of water pollution affecting the health of
	important species
Policies that	The required environmental conditions will be affected by an increased
could notentially	nonulation, both resident and visitor and their transport and water
have a negative	requirements. Therefore the following policies have the potential to affect the
impact	site negatively
impact	STL – supporting growth in terms of housing employment services and tourism
	<b>ST1</b> – supporting for and facilitating growth in the local economy particularly in
	<b>512 -</b> providing for and facilitating growth in the local economy, particularly in
	increase in demand for boucing and convises
	<b>ST2</b> Site adjute Sellafield, regeneration sites in Whitehaven Cleater Meer
	Sis – Site auj. to Senaneiu, regeneration sites in whitehaven cleator woor,
	regremont and willion are provides for development. Developing the sites
	<b>PR1</b> Major nuclear energy related expansion including new generating
	canacity at the selected preferred site immediately to the parth of the Sellafield
	nuclear complex is supported in principle. Accommodation of a any new
	representing in the nuclear fuel cucle within existing Callefield site boundaries
	will be supported in principle subject to a full and satisfactory safety case
	<b>FP2</b> Identify notantial requirements for temporary accommodation accosisted
	<b>ERS -</b> Identify potential requirements for temporary accommodation associated
	infractructure
	<b>FPA</b> Allocating land for economic development over the plan period at a rate
	about of that implied by projecting past take up rates, to allow a flexible
	anead of that implied by projecting past take up rates, to allow a nexible
	<b>FP9</b> Droviding more car parking in the town centre could encourage more
	needle te drive rather than use public transport
	<b>EP10</b> Expand tourism outside the Lake District National Park boundaries
	<b>EP11</b> Supporting the development of commercial units which must the pools
	of husinesses, encourage start ups and promote further expansion. Encouraging
	the further development of Research and Development and education and
	training facilities at the Westlakes Science & Technology Dark, Enhancing inward
	invoctment and promoting the diversification of the Percurd's economy
	working with partners to support new and expanding employment sectors
	<b>Sc1</b> Allocating bousing sites to most local pools in locations attractive to bouse
	builders
	<b>SS2</b> - Allocating sufficient land for new bausing development to meet identified
	requirements within the Borough. Allocations will be made in accordance with
	the following housing targets:
	i A baseline requirement derived from projected bousehold growth of 220
	dwellings ner vear
	ii. Provision for growth 30% above that to 300 dwellings per year
	<b>SS3</b> - Establishing a sunnly of sites suitable for executive and high quality family
	housing focusing on Whitehaven and its fringes as a priority and also giving
	narticular attention to the three smaller towns. Providing housing for specific
	groups where there is housing need, including temporary workforce, agricultural
	Broups where there is housing need, meading temporary workforce, agricultural

	workers and key workers
	<b>SS4</b> - increasing the provision of local community facilities, such as community
	centres, local sport and public open space in Local Centres and villages identified
	as needing them
	<b>T1</b> - Priority will be given to improving the accessibility of the Borough's key
	development and regeneration sites, town and village centres, service,
	employment and transport hubs, and rural areas
	<b>ENV2</b> - Promote the developed coast as a destination for tourism, with strong
	links to Whitehaven Harbour / town centre in the north and to Millom in the
	south.
Policies that	<b>ST1</b> - Focus development on sites that are at least risk from flooding (thereby
eradicate/lessen	cutting down on the amount of pollution and nutrients that enter the river).
the risk posed	Protect and enhance areas, sites, species and features of nature conservation
	and biodiversity value, landscapes and the undeveloped coast. Ensure
	development minimises air, ground and water pollution.
	<b>ST4</b> - Development proposals should provide or contribute to the provision of
	environmental requirements either on or off site as is reasonable and necessary
	to support and mitigate the impact of the development
	<b>FR1</b> - In applying this policy the Council will seek to ensure that all investment in
	the nuclear sector is accompanied by appropriate financial or in kind
	contributions to mitigate any notentially detrimental impacts of development
	<b>FR3</b> - Ensure that any new energy transmission infrastructure minimises
	notential impacts on the Borough's biodiversity. Explore notential locations for
	accommodation which minimise notential impacts and where sites can be fully
	restored with uses that benefit the Borough:
	<b>FR10</b> - Locate new tourist accommodation facilities and attractions where there
	is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse
	environmental impacts.
	T1 - improved public transport network.
	$\mathbf{T2}$ – reducing the need to travel through supporting the provision of high quality
	broadband connections
	<b>ENV1 -</b> Permitting new build development only on sites located outside areas at
	risk of flooding. Ensuring that new development does not contribute to
	increased surface water run-off through measures such as sustainable drainage
	systems, where these are practical. Where they are not this should be achieved
	by improvements to drainage capacity.
	<b>ENV2</b> - Support energy generating developments that require a coastal location
	along the undeveloped coast, provided that the potential impacts on
	biodiversity is carefully assessed against the benefits. Where negative impacts
	are likely these must be mitigated against and compensated for
	<b>ENV3</b> - Improve the condition of internationally, nationally and locally
	designated sites: Restrict access and usage where appropriate and necessary in
	order to conserve an area's biodiversity value. Protect and strengthen
	populations of priority or other protected species.
	<b>DM1 -</b> Proposals involving the use, storage or processing of radioactive material
	should include a strategy for the construction and the long term management
	and safety of the site including the management of radioactive material
	<b>DM2</b> – Proposals for renewable energy development must not have
	unacceptable impacts on biodiversity.
	DM5 - Proposals for any new facilities are submitted with long term
	management plans to set out how operations will be co-ordinated to minimise

	any harmful effects
	<b>DM11</b> – Developments that ensure that surface water is managed appropriately, with the inclusion of sustainable drainage systems where possible will be
	supported (subject to other planning considerations of course).
	<b>DM22</b> – Where necessary the potential transport implications of development
	will be required to be supported by a Transport Assessment and a Travel Plan to
	manage any significant transport implications.
	<b>DM24</b> - Development will not be permitted where it is found that there is an
	unacceptable risk of flooding or the development would increase the risk of
	flooding elsewhere.
	<b>DM25</b> - All development proposals must take into account any likely significant
	effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough and
	within a 20km radius of the borough boundary as well as those that are
	hydrologically linked to the development plan area.
Is There a Risk of	There is the risk of a greater amount of diffuse air pollution. However there are
a Significant	policies in the Core Strategy that encourage a greater amount of green
Effect?	Infrastructure and sustainable transport options.
Dessibly with	Inere is a risk that wastewater Treatment works will not be able to cope with
Possibly with	the increased requirement but it is considered that policy \$14A deals adequately
to air pollution	there is scene to include the word (sustainably) so that the text save (or there is
	a reliable mechanism in place to ensure that it will be provided sustainably
	when and where required. This would make it clear that the abstraction of
	drinking water should not have harmful effects on the environment. DM25 will
	support this (see DM25 text above)
	It is considered that this document does all that it can at this very strategic
	level Until more information is available i.e. at site allocations or project stage
	it will be very difficult to carry out an appropriate assessment. A separate HRA
	screening report will be produced as part of the preparation of the Site
	Allocations DPD.
Possible Impacts	Improved public transport access to the Lake District National Park has potential
Arising from	to increase tourism and recreational use of the area.
Other Plans and	Proposals within West Cumbria Masterplan – Development of the Westlakes
Projects	Research Institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the
	National Nuclear Skills Academy at Lillyhall, the Dalton Institute (lab facilities)at
	Westlakes, further investment in the employment sites at Leconfield and
	Bridgend. A 'health campus' on the current hospital site and new University of
	Cumbria facilities at Lillyhall. New National Nuclear Laboratory headquarters in
	West Cumbria.
	North West RSS - Drigg coast falls within North West coast area of search for a
	regional park and a planned North West Coastal Trail. There is potential for
	increased visitor pressure.
	Allerdale LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – additional 267-350 dwellings
	per year (equating to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period). Some
	limited housing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in more
	sustainable locations i.e. Workington, Maryport, Aspatria, Cockermouth, Wigton
	etc.
	Lake District National Park Core Strategy – 900 additional dwellings in the
	period to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 30% in clusters
	and the open countryside). There will be an additional 9.2ha of employment
	land and it is acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional

nationally significant visitor attractions.
Lake District National Park Site Allocations Preferred Options – All employment
land allocated will be in the Rural Service Centres. Wast Water SAC falls into the
West Distinctive Area which will accommodate 10% of all development in the
LDNP.
Carlisle LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – Currently no policy direction
offered. Carlisle has been designated as a growth point though so it can be
reasonably expected that there will be a significant amount of additional
housing and employment development over the plan period.
Eden Adopted Core Strategy – Focus new build housing in Key and Local Service
Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The
nlan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additional dwellings ner annum to 2025
(over 3100 units in total) 50ha of employment land will be made available to
2025
Barrow Port Area Action Plan – 925 additional dwellings in the Action Plan Area
to 2021 Additional leisure facilities including marina and host servicing area
Waterfront hotel Water sports centre and yory limited amount of retail
Improving access to the operational port from read and sea to support new
apportunities to increase the properties of freight moved by see Development
of Waterfront Purchase Dark as a major new business and amplement leasting
(24 Eba cito)
(24.50d Site).
South Lakeland LDF Core Strategy – 55% of new housing and employment
development will be in the Principal Service Centres, 13% in Key Service Centres, 21% in Local Carrier Contrast and 11% in the smaller villages and hermlets
21% In Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and namiets.
Housing target is 469 additional dwellings per year equating to hearly 6100 to
2025. 21ha of employment development to be accommodated in Kendal to
2025, 12ha to be accommodated in Diversion and Furness but overall 4 ha of
employment land will be allocated per annum between 2010 and 2025 equating
to 60na over the plan period.
<b>Cumbria Local Transport Plan 3</b> – Support for the upgrading of the A595, A590,
A5094 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth in the
low carbon energy sector. Increased bus services in rural areas. Improvement to
the Cumbria West Coast Railway. Carlisle Northern Development Route will be
completed in 2012.
<b>Cumbria Minerals and Waste LDF Core Strategy</b> – no regional waste facilities to
be located in Cumbria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the
south of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with a
preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of facility,
tor example, a Household Waste Recycling Centre and a Transfer/Bulking
Station. This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core Strategy Policy for
minimising "waste miles".
Cumbria Minerals and Waste Site Allocations DPD – Allocates sites for mineral
working and waste facilities. The HRA for this document stated that there were
13 sites in the whole of the county that would require an Appropriate
Assessment at project stage but that the policies themselves were unlikely to
have negative effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The mitigation
measures that are considered likely to be needed are common place and could
form the conditions of the planning application.
Shoreline Management Plan 2 – In the Duddon Estuary area the approach is to
maintain the line, where there are assets to protect, and to let the shore
continue to erode where there are limited assets.

Is there risk of a	As all of the above plans are planning for a greater amount of development in
significant effect	each of the plan areas it is likely that there could be a significant effect on the
in combination?	integrity of the site. A separate HRA screening report will be prepared in
	tandem with the Site Allocations DPD.

#### Yewbarrow Woods SAC



Name	Yewbarrow Woods
Designation	SAC
Area (ha)	112.89
Qualifying	Yew-dominated woodland
features	<ul> <li>Juniper on heaths or calcareous grasslands</li> </ul>
	Western acidic oak woodlands
SSSIs within the	Yewbarrow Woods

site	
Comments on	Although lack of regeneration at Yewbarrow is a problem resulting from
Nature	browsing by deer, woodland grants have been given in recent years to
Conservation	encourage regeneration of native trees, together with funding for stockproof
Importance and	fencing. Estimates of areas covered by yew, juniper and heath will be checked
site vulnerability	the next time the site is surveyed.
Кеу	Conditions <i>not</i> within Copeland's control
Environmental	<ul> <li>Moderately high or high rainfall</li> </ul>
Conditions to	• Base-poor soils
Support Site	• Control of grazing (especially by deer) to allow regeneration
Integrity	• Control of any disease outbreaks
	Conditions within Concland's control
	Control of invasive non-native species
Air Quality Iacura	• Control of Invasive non-native species
Air Quality Issues	The levels of $SO_2$ , ozone and $NOB$ sampled at the site do not cause any concern.
	However, there are issues with the levels of hitrogen and acid deposition that
	are both significantly above the critical loads for the woodland habitats (see
	Appendix 1 for details). The levels of antifornia are also very close to the critical
	levels for the oak wood habitat because of the presence of lichens and
	bryophytes.
water Resource	<i>Wastewater</i> – United Utilities report that there will be no problems
	accommodating the planned growth in the South Copeland locality. The site is
Treatment Issues	15km from the plan area boundary and the topography between the two areas
	would make it very difficult for the site to become contaminated with raw
	sewage. This is not considered to be a risk to the integrity of the site in any
	CdSe.
	<i>Water Resources</i> – There are no plans to abstract drinking water from the South
Dessible immente	
Possible impacts	• Invasive species could be a problem if proper controls are not in place to
	ensure that planting is of native, non-invasive species
pian	Increased amount of development in the plan area come of which will have
<u>Source</u>	increased amount of development in the plan area some of which will have
Pathway	planting schemes
Impact	Creeping of non-native species across land towards the sensitive site.
Delision that	Competition with sensitive species leading to decline or extinction on the site.
Policies that	The following policies could have a negative impact on this site.
could potentially	<b>ENVS</b> - ensuring that the impact of the development on the landscape is
nave a negative	minimised through adequate mitigation, preferably on-site
impact	<b>Divize</b> - Development proposals, where necessary, will be required to include
	landscaping schemes that retain existing landscape reatures, reinforce local
Dell'standard	landscape character and mitigate against any adverse visual impact.
Policies that	<b>DIVI25</b> - All development proposals should: Protect the biodiversity value of land
eradicate/lessen	and buildings; All development proposals must take into account any likely
the risk posed	significant effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough
	and within a 20km radius of the borough boundary as well as those that are
la Thomas Distant	There is need by a risk of needbird investigation area.
is There a Risk of	I nere is possibly a risk of negative impact on this site arising from non-native
a Significant	species. However, it is proposed that this risk could be lessened to an
ETTECT ?	acceptable level if words were added to the policy DM26 that allowed planning
Possibly – but	conditions to stipulate that only plants native to the particular landscape in
this could be	question are used in landscaping schemes.

managed with additional wording in policy	
Possible Impacts Arising from Other Plans and Projects	<ul> <li>Proposals within West Cumbria Masterplan – Development of the Westlakes</li> <li>Research Institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the</li> <li>National Nuclear Skills Academy at Lillyhall, the Dalton Institute (lab facilities)at</li> <li>Westlakes, further investment in the employment sites at Leconfield and</li> <li>Bridgend. A 'health campus' on the current hospital site and new University of</li> <li>Cumbria facilities at Lillyhall. New National Nuclear Laboratory headquarters in</li> <li>West Cumbria.</li> <li>North West RSS - Drigg coast falls within North West coast area of search for a</li> <li>regional park and a planned North West Coastal Trail. There is potential for</li> <li>increased visitor pressure.</li> </ul>
	per year (equating to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period). Some limited housing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in more sustainable locations i.e. Workington, Maryport, Aspatria, Cockermouth, Wigton etc
	<ul> <li>Lake District National Park Core Strategy – 900 additional dwellings in the period to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 30% in clusters and the open countryside). There will be an additional 9.2ha of employment land and it is acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional nationally significant visitor attractions.</li> <li>Lake District National Park Site Allocations Preferred Options – All employment land allocated will be in the Rural Service Centres. Yewbarrow Woods SAC falls into the South Distinctive Area which will accommodate 14% of all development in the LDNP.</li> <li>Carlisle LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – Currently no policy direction offered. Carlisle has been designated as a growth point though so it can be reasonably expected that there will be a significant amount of additional housing and employment development over the plan period.</li> <li>Eden Adopted Core Strategy – Focus new build housing in Key and Local Service Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The plan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additional dwellings per annum to 2025 (over 3100 units in total). 50ha of employment land will be made available to 2025.</li> <li>Barrow Port Area Action Plan – 925 additional dwellings in the Action Plan Area to 2021. Additional leisure facilities including marina and boat servicing area, Waterfront hotel, Water sports centre and very limited amount of retail. Improving access to the operational port from road and sea to support new opportunities to increase the proportion of freight moved by sea. Development of Waterfront Business Park as a major new business and employment location (24.5ha site).</li> <li>South Lakeland LDF Core Strategy – 55% of new housing and employment development will be in the Principal Service Centres, 13% in Key Service Centres, 21% in Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and hamlets. Housing target is 469 additional dwellings per year equating to nearly 6100 to 2025, 12ha to be accommodated in Ulverston and Furness but overall 4 ha of employment land will be allocated per annum between 2010 and 2025 equating</li> </ul>

	to 60ha over the plan period.
	Cumbria Local Transport Plan 3 – Support for the upgrading of the A595, A590,
	A5094 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth in the
	low carbon energy sector. Increased bus services in rural areas. Improvement to
	the Cumbria West Coast Railway. Carlisle Northern Development Route will be
	completed in 2012.
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste LDF Core Strategy – no regional waste facilities to
	be located in Cumbria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the
	south of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with a
	preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of facility,
	for example, a Household Waste Recycling Centre and a Transfer/Bulking
	Station. This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core Strategy Policy for
	minimising "waste miles".
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste Site Allocations DPD – Allocates sites for mineral
	working and waste facilities. The HRA for this document stated that there were
	13 sites in the whole of the county that would require an Appropriate
	Assessment at project stage but that the policies themselves were unlikely to
	have negative effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The mitigation
	measures that are considered likely to be needed are common place and could
	form the conditions of the planning application.
Is there risk of a	Possibly – a separate HRA Screening Report will have to accompany the site
significant effect	Allocations DPD for Copeland.
in combination?	

# Duddon Estuary SPA & Ramsar Site



Name	Duddon Estuary
Designation	SPA & Ramsar Site
Area (ha)	6806.3
Qualifying	Nationally important breeding population of sandwich tern. Internationally
features	significant numbers of passage ringed plover and sanderling. Internationally

	important numbers of wintering red knot, northern pintail and common redshank. Total wintering waterfowl numbers are of international importance.Natterjack toads are also present and are listed on the Ramsar Information sheet as a qualifying feature for that designation.
SSSIs within the site	Duddon Estuary SSSI
Comments on Nature Conservation Importance and site vulnerabilities	'The Duddon Estuary is a diverse estuarine system dependent on the physical processes that dominate the natural system: consequently the vulnerability of habitats is linked to changes in the physical environment. The intertidal zone is being threatened by coastal squeeze as a result of land claim and coastal defence works as well as sea level rise and storm surges. Many of the saltmarshes are grazed by agricultural stock, sometimes at a high level. These issues are being addressed through the Shoreline Management Plan and more locally, Site Management Statements/Positive Management Schemes. Waterfowl wintering on estuaries are vulnerable to loss of feeding areas through disturbance, land claim and development. The Duddon Estuary partnership is addressing some of the threats arising from recreational pressure and bait digging. Feasibility studies are being carried out for a bridge across the estuary, any such proposals will be subject to assessment under the Habitats Regulations, 1994. There are various developments for housing, amenity and industry adjacent to the site, however to date there has been no significant effect on the nature conservation interest of the estuary.' – Statement taken from Standard Natura 2000 data form prepared in 2006.
	Threats recorded on the Ramsar site database are: Industrial waste pollution Fertilizer pollution Tourism-based /recreational disturbance (unspecified) Domestic sewage pollution Erosion Overgrazing by domestic livestock
Key Environmental Conditions to Support Site Integrity	Conditions <b>not</b> within Copeland's control • Management of saltmarsh grazing • Control of bait digging, dredging and fishing • Maintain hydrology of wet grassland (for waders). • Maintenance of natural sedimentation patterns
	<ul> <li>Conditions within Copeland's control</li> <li>Control of non-native species</li> <li>No physical constraints to natural migration of mobile habitats</li> <li>Avoidance of pollution</li> <li>Maintenance of uninterrupted views</li> <li>Open ground for nesting terns and other species feeding and roosting, year round</li> <li>Avoidance of disturbance (land and water-based)</li> <li>No physical constraints to managed realignment if required in response to coastal squeeze</li> </ul>
Air Quality Issues	Air pollution is not so critical for this designation as the qualifying features are bird species and they are less sensitive to most air pollutants. The exceptions are acid deposition and some organic pesticides (that are no longer in use but persist in the environment e.g. DDT). The acid deposition rate for Morecambe Bay (another SPA close to the site) is 1.76 keq/ha/year. Natterjack toads, a

	qualifying feature for Ramsar, are affected by acidification during the larval stage. One of the many anthropogenic sources of acidification is vehicle emissions. There are a number of A roads near to the site. These are A590, A595, A5093, A5092 and A593. The potential for an increase in traffic will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and planning applications for any nuclear or other major development.
Water Resource and Wastewater Treatment Issues	Wastewater – United Utilities state that they expect that the Millom Treatment Works will be able to accommodate the planned growth in South Copeland. Works are currently being carried out to improve the capacity of the works and it is intended that this will improve the quality of the treated water flowing into the Duddon Estuary.
	Water Resources – there are no plans to abstract drinking water from the South Copeland locality.
Possible impacts arising from the plan	• There are concerns over the ability for existing WwTW(s) discharging in to the site to provide the increased capacity required to support the growth proposed in the NWP.
	<ul> <li>Coastal squeeze.</li> <li>The planned North West Coastal Trail would pass nearby.</li> <li>Proposed leisure and tourism uses means there is potential for increased visitor pressure.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Flood defence measures</li> <li>Air, water and ground pollution</li> <li>Introduction of non-native plant species in landscaping schemes</li> <li>There will be some development in the Key Service Centre of Millom and a limited amount of development in the Local centre of Haverigg.</li> </ul>
<u>Source</u> Pathway Impact	Increased amount of development in the plan area some of which will have planting schemes Creeping of non-native species across land towards the sensitive site. Competition with sensitive species leading to decline or extinction on the site.
	Encouraging more tourists to the area will increase the amount of vehicular traffic and people walking on and near to the site.
	sensitive species etc. <u>Development immediately behind the coast</u> leading to the need to stop thenatural movement of the dunes, loss of open ground and uninterrupted views.
	Increased tourism and access could lead to increased traffic movement in the West Cumbria area resulting in <b>more air pollution</b> that would <i>travel on the prevailing wind towards the site</i> .
	Extra housing leading to an increase in amount of sewage Existing Wastewater treatment plants discharging untreated sewage into Morecambe Bay Decline in water quality posing risk to plant and animal species and contaminating land.
	Development on land claim areaswould decrease the amount of intertidal habitat available
Policies that could potentially have a negative	The following policies could have a negative effect on the Duddon Estuary: <b>ST1</b> – Support energy, economic and housing development as well as services and recreational facilities.

impact	ST2 - facilitate growth in the local economy and associated growth in demand
	for housing and services. Support for new nuclear generating capacity and
	essential infrastructure.
	<b>ST3</b> – In pursuit of economic regeneration and growth.
	ER1 – Support for nuclear new build – whilst the operational phase should be
	reasonably clean with regards to emissions, the construction phase has the
	potential to have a negative impact.
	ER2 – Support for renewable energy developments
	<b>ER3</b> – Identify sites for NNB construction workers accommodation, encourage
	development of new educational facilities.
	<b>ER4</b> – Allocating land for economic development over the plan period at a rate
	exceeding the take up rate of the past.
	<b>ER7</b> – Supporting the continued growth of Whitehaven. Encourage evening and
	night time uses.
	<b>ER8</b> – Enhancing the retail function of the town centre and improving the
	tourism offer. Developments should provide parking both for the development
	and the town centre. Conversion of vacant floors over shops into residential
	accommodation. Redrawing the town centre boundary to reflect the anticipated growth and development in the area.
	<b>ER9</b> – Town centre improvements will be encouraged in the Key Service Centres
	to attract more visitors.
	ER10 – Expand tourism outside the Lake District boundaries.
	ER11 – Supporting new and expanding employment sectors. Supporting the
	development of commercial units.
	<b>SS1</b> – Allocation of housing sites, renovation and improvement of existing
	housing stock, demolition and redevelopment schemes.
	<b>SS2</b> – Housing allocations to meet a baseline requirement of 230-300 dwellings per year.
	SS4 - Encouraging the provision of good quality services and facilities
	T1 – Transport improvements including new Pow Beck Spine Road, new Eastern
	relief road, improvements to A595 and A5086. Better connections will be sought
	to the A66, M6, A595 etc. Parking strategy will set out guidance for
	incorporating car parking in new developments.
	ENV1 - Support for new flood defence measures to protect against both tidal
	and fluvial flooding in the borough, including appropriate land management as
	part of a catchment wide approach.
	<b>ENV2</b> – Support for energy generating developments which require a coastal
	location.
	ENV4 – Supporting proposals for heritage led regeneration.
	<b>ENV5</b> - Development proposals, where necessary, will be required to include
	landscaping schemes that retain existing landscape features, reinforce local
Delicies that	landscape character and mitigate against any adverse visual impact.
Policies that	<b>SIL</b> – Protect and enhance sites of nature conservation and biodiversity value.
the rick posed	minimises air, ground and water pollution
the lisk posed	ST2 – Growth should be concentrated in the settlements focussing the largest
	scale development in sustainable locations
	<b>ST4 -</b> Development proposals should provide or contribute to the provision of
	environmental requirements on or off site.
	<b>ER1</b> – The Council will work with partners to identify whether a high-level waste
	repository can be justified and that there are no negative impacts on, inter alia,

<ul> <li>nuclear sector is accompanied by financial or in-kind contributions to mitigate any potentially detrimental impacts.</li> <li>ER2 – Support for renewable energy generating developments at locations which minimise environmental impacts so that they are within acceptable limits.</li> <li>ER3 – Ensure that any new energy infrastructure minimises potential impacts on biodiversity.</li> <li>ER6 – Presumption in favour of employment sites in sustainable locations.</li> <li>ER10 - Wherever possible tourism providers will be required to ensure that accommodation and attractions are well connected to other tourist destinations and amenities, particularly by public transport, walking and cycling. Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse environmental or amenity impacts.</li> <li>T1 - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape. Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impacts of the development. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The C</li></ul>
<ul> <li>any potentially detrimental impacts.</li> <li>ER2 – Support for renewable energy generating developments at locations which minimise environmental impacts so that they are within acceptable limits.</li> <li>ER3 – Ensure that any new energy infrastructure minimises potential impacts on biodiversity.</li> <li>ER6 – Presumption in favour of employment sites in sustainable locations.</li> <li>ER10 - Wherever possible tourism providers will be required to ensure that accommodation and attractions are well connected to other tourist destinations and amenities, particularly by public transport, walking and cycling. Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse environmental or amenity impacts.</li> <li>T1 - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 - Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 - On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 - On site mitigation to take place where the positive impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 - Identifying p</li></ul>
<ul> <li>FR2 – Support for renewable energy generating developments at locations which minimise environmental impacts so that they are within acceptable limits.</li> <li>ER3 – Ensure that any new energy infrastructure minimises potential impacts on biodiversity.</li> <li>ER6 – Presumption in favour of employment sites in sustainable locations.</li> <li>ER10 - Wherever possible tourism providers will be required to ensure that accommodation and attractions are well connected to other tourist destinations and amenities, particularly by public transport, walking and cycling. Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse environmental or amenity impacts.</li> <li>T1 - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safegurds) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 - Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 - On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longe term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term. The Council will seek an antorvity levends to appropriate safesured to the south and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an antorvity berge to community th</li></ul>
<ul> <li>which minimise environmental impacts so that they are within acceptable limits.</li> <li>ER3 – Ensure that any new energy infrastructure minimises potential impacts on biodiversity.</li> <li>ER6 – Presumption in favour of employment sites in sustainable locations.</li> <li>ER10 - Wherever possible tourism providers will be required to ensure that accommodation and attractions are well connected to other tourist destinations and amenities, particularly by public transport, walking and cycling. Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse environmental or amenity impacts.</li> <li>T1 - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 - Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV3 - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 - On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. T</li></ul>
<ul> <li>ER3 – Ensure that any new energy infrastructure minimises potential impacts on biodiversity.</li> <li>ER6 – Presumption in favour of employment sites in sustainable locations.</li> <li>ER10 - Wherever possible tourism providers will be required to ensure that accommodation and attractions are well connected to other tourist destinations and amenities, particularly by public transport, walking and cycling. Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there is proven capacitly for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse environmental or amenity impacts.</li> <li>T1 - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV3 - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped scales and phased package of community benefits to part of the set and appropriate scales of place and phased package of community benefits to phase package.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>biodiversity.</li> <li>ER6 – Presumption in favour of employment sites in sustainable locations.</li> <li>ER10 - Wherever possible tourism providers will be required to ensure that accommodation and attractions are well connected to other tourist destinations and amenities, particularly by public transport, walking and cycling. Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse environmental or amenity impacts.</li> <li>T1 - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longe term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped scales and phased package of community benefits to provide the appropriate safeguard of the set and material.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>ER6 – Presumption in favour of employment sites in sustainable locations.</li> <li>ER10 - Wherever possible tourism providers will be required to ensure that accommodation and attractions are well connected to other tourist destinations and amenities, particularly by public transport, walking and cycling. Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse environmental or amenity impacts.</li> <li>T1 - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV3 - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and ther Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an antropriately scoped scales and hazed package of community benefits to positive impact in the antropriately scoped scales and package of community benefits to positive</li></ul>
<ul> <li>ER10 - Wherever possible tourism provinces will be required to ensure that accommodation and attractions are well connected to other tourist destinations and amenities, particularly by public transport, walking and cycling. Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse environmental or amenity impacts.</li> <li>T1 - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 - Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV3 - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 - On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an anoronitately scoped scales and hased package of community henefits to appropriate large package of community henefits to appropriate large package of community henefits to appropriate large package of community for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council walle seek an appropriately scoped scales and ph</li></ul>
<ul> <li>accommodation and attractions are well connected to other tourist destinations and amenities, particularly by public transport, walking and cycling. Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse environmental or amenity impacts.</li> <li>T1 - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 - Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 - On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>and amenities, particularly by public transport, walking and cycling. Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse environmental or amenity impacts.</li> <li>T1 - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 - On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scored scales and hased package of community benefits to the south and west of the site and material.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>total antended, particularly by posite transport, walking and eyeling, bedde new toturist accommodation, facilities and attractions where there is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse environmental or amenity impacts.</li> <li>T1 - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality</li> <li>ENV3 - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped scales and phased package of community benefits to appropriate and safety and the store and package of community benefits to appropriate and package of community benefits to appropriate scales and phased package of community benefits to appropriate scales and phased package of community benefits to appropriate scales and phased package of community benefits to appropriate scales a</li></ul>
<ul> <li>for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse environmental or amenity impacts.</li> <li>T1 - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality</li> <li>ENV3 - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped scales and phased package of community benefits to positive interesting of the site and material.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>amenity impacts.</li> <li>T1 - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 - Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality</li> <li>ENV3 - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 - On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped scales and pased package of community benefits to positive intervention.</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>T1 - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality</li> <li>ENV3 - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped scales and phased package of community benefits to</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.</li> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 - Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality</li> <li>ENV3 - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 - On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped scales and phased package of community benefits to</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>T2 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality</li> <li>ENV3 - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped scales and phased package of community benefits to</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>ENVE - Developments which seek to extend of improve connectivity through existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality</li> <li>ENV3 - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped scales and phased package of community benefits to</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Existing and enterging telecommunications in an parts of the borough win be supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.</li> <li>ENV1 – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality</li> <li>ENV3 - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>ENV1 – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air quality</li> <li>ENV3 - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped scales and phased package of community benefits to</li> </ul>
<ul> <li><b>ENV1</b> – Planting trees to control flood fisk with have a positive impact of all quality</li> <li><b>ENV3</b> - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li><b>ENV5</b> – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li><b>ENV6</b> - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li><b>DM1</b> - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>ENV3 - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 - On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>child and extending woodland habitat with have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV5 – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>ENV5 – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.</li> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on the failuscape.</li> <li>Envogene infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to</li> </ul>
<ul> <li>Encodiaging green inhastructure with have a positive impact on an quarty.</li> <li>ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.</li> <li>DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to</li> </ul>
Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term. <b>DM1</b> - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to
the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term. <b>DM1</b> - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to
<b>DM1</b> - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to
material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to
the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to
involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to
appropriately scoped scales and phased package of community benefits to
minimize the environmental impacts of the nuclear development
<b>DM2</b> Penewable energy development will have no adverse impact on
biodiversity. Proposals should be developed with key stakeholders (which will
biodiversity. Proposals should be developed with key stakeholders (which will include biodiversity ergenisations)
$\mathbf{DME}$ - Droposals for any new nuclear facilities should be submitted with long
term management plans that will minimice any harmful effects
<b>DM22</b> Where necessary the netential transport implications of development
will be required to be supported by a Transport Assessment and a Travel Plan to
manage any significant transport implications
<b>DM2E</b> All development proposals must take into account any likely significant
effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough and
within a 20km radius of the borough boundary as well as those that are
hydrologically linked to the development plan area
Is There a Pick of Personalize the matter of the provention of the introduction of nen-investive
a Significant species – there is probably scope for adding some words to the policy DM26
a significant species – there is probably scope for dualing some words to the policy DM26
species used in landscaping schemes must use plants that are pative to that

	particular landscape. There is the risk of a greater amount of diffuse air pollution. However, there are a significant number of policies within the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies DPD that highlight the importance of minimising carbon emissions and increasing the amount and quality of green infrastructure which will help to control air pollution. There is a risk that Wastewater Treatment Works will not be able to cope with the increased requirement but it is considered that policy ST4A deals adequately with this threat. Trampling is an important issue when considering policies that encourage more people into any given area. ENV3F does, however, allow for planners to add conditions that will restrict access and usage of land where that would lead to trampling and disturbance of sensitive habitats and species. This should significantly lessen the risk of damage. A separate HRA Screening Report will be submitted with the Site Allocations DPD.
Possible Impacts	Proposals within West Cumbria Masterplan- Development of the Westlakes
Arising from Other Plans and Projects	<ul> <li>Research Institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the Nestlakes</li> <li>Research Institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the National Nuclear Skills Academy at Lillyhall, the Dalton Institute (lab facilities)at</li> <li>Westlakes, further investment in the employment sites at Leconfield and Bridgend. A 'health campus' on the current hospital site and new University of Cumbria facilities at Lillyhall. New National Nuclear Laboratory headquarters in West Cumbria.</li> <li>North West RSS - Drigg coast falls within North West coast area of search for a regional park and a planned North West Coastal Trail. There is potential for increased visitor pressure.</li> <li>Allerdale LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – additional 267-350 dwellings per year (equating to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period). Some limited housing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in more sustainable locations i.e. Workington, Maryport, Aspatria, Cockermouth, Wigton etc.</li> <li>Lake District National Park Core Strategy – 900 additional dwellings in the period to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 30% in clusters and the open countryside). There will be an additional 9.2ha of employment land and it is acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional nationally significant visitor attractions.</li> <li>Lake District National Park Site Allocations Preferred Options – All employment land allocated will be in the Rural Service Centres.</li> <li>Carlisle LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – Currently no policy direction offered. Carlisle has been designated as a growth point though so it can be reasonably expected that there will be a significant amount of additional housing and employment development over the plan period.</li> <li>Eden Adopted Core Strategy – Focus new build housing in Key and Local Service Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The plan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additi</li></ul>
	2025.
	Barrow Port Area Action Plan – 925 additional dwellings in the Action Plan Area to 2021. Additional leisure facilities including marina and boat servicing area, Waterfront hotel, Water sports centre and very limited amount of retail. Improving access to the operational port from road and sea to support new

	opportunities to increase the proportion of freight moved by sea. Development
	of Waterfront Business Park as a major new business and employment location
	(24.5ha site).
	South Lakeland LDF Core Strategy – 55% of new housing and employment
	development will be in the Principal Service Centres, 13% in Key Service Centres,
	21% in Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and hamlets.
	Housing target is 469 additional dwellings per year equating to nearly 6100 to
	2025. 21ha of employment development to be accommodated in Kendal to
	2025, 12ha to be accommodated in Ulverston and Furness but overall 4 ha of
	employment land will be allocated per annum between 2010 and 2025 equating
	to 60ha over the plan period.
	<b>Cumbria Local Transport Plan 3</b> – Support for the upgrading of the A595, A590,
	A5094 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth in the
	low carbon energy sector. Increased bus services in rural areas. Improvement to
	the Cumbria West Coast Railway. Carlisle Northern Development Route will be
	completed in 2012.
	<b>Cumbria Minerals and Waste LDF Core Strategy</b> – no regional waste facilities to
	be located in Cumbria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the
	south of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with a
	preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of facility,
	for example, a Household Waste Recycling Centre and a Transfer/Bulking
	Station. This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core Strategy Policy for
	minimising "waste miles".
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste Site Allocations DPD – Allocates sites for mineral
	working and waste facilities. The HRA for this document stated that there were
	13 sites in the whole of the county that would require an Appropriate
	Assessment at project stage but that the policies themselves were unlikely to
	have negative effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The mitigation
	measures that are considered likely to be needed are common place and could
	form the conditions of the planning application.
	Shoreline Management Plan 2 – In the Duddon Estuary area the approach is to
	maintain the line, where there are assets to protect, and to let the shore
	continue to erode where there are limited assets.
Is there risk of a	As all of the above plans are planning for a greater amount of development in
significant effect	each of the plan areas it is likely that there could be a significant effect on the
in combination?	integrity of the site. A separate HRA screening report will be prepared along
	with the Site Allocations DPD.

### Morecambe Bay SPA & Ramsar Site



Name	Morecambe Bay
Designation	SPA & Ramsar Site
Area (ha)	37404.6
Qualifying features	<ul> <li>Nationally important breeding population of sandwich tern and little tern.</li> <li>Nationally important over-wintering population of bar-tailed godwit and European golden plover.</li> <li>Internationally significant numbers of lesser black-backed and herring gull in breeding season.</li> <li>Internationally important numbers of ringed plover and sanderling on passage.</li> </ul>

	<ul> <li>Eurasian curlew, grey plover, red knot, pink footed goose, northern pintail, common redshank, common shelduck, turnstone and dunlin over-winter in internationally significant numbers.</li> <li>Total wintering waterfowl numbers are of international importance as are total numbers of breeding seabirds.</li> </ul>
SSSIs within the site	South Walney and Piel Channel SSSI Morecambe Bay SSSI Leighton Moss SSSI
Comments on Nature Conservation Importance and site vulnerabilities	The site is subject to a wide range of pressures such as land-claim for agriculture, overgrazing, dredging, overfishing, industrial uses and unspecified pollution. However, overall the site is relatively robust and many of those pressures have only slight to local effects and are being addressed through Management Plans. The breeding tern interest is very vulnerable and the colony has recently moved to the adjacent Duddon Estuary. Positive management is being secured through management plans for non-governmental organisation reserves, English Nature Site Management Statements, European Marine Site Management Scheme, and the Morecambe Bay Partnership.
Key Environmental Conditions to Support Site Integrity	<ul> <li>Conditions <i>not</i> within Copeland's control</li> <li>Maintain morphological equilibrium of the estuary, including sedimentation patterns</li> <li>Appropriate grazing of saltmarsh communities</li> <li>Maintain minimal impact of fishing, bait digging and dredging</li> <li>High enough water table for dune slacks</li> <li>Control of bracken/scrub</li> <li>GCN require suitable foraging and refuge habitat; ponds of roughly neutral pH; some ponds with water throughout the breeding/tadpole development season</li> </ul>
	Conditions within Copeland's control Maintain temperature and salinity levels within natural range Avoidance of pollution Avoidance of nutrient enrichment No physical constraints to natural migration of mobile habitats such as dunes Avoidance of damaging levels of erosion from human activities No increase in organic matter in sediments No physical constraints to managed realignment if required in response to coastal squeeze Control of invasive and/or non-native species GCN require ponds with relatively unpolluted water
Air Quality Issues	Air pollution is not so critical for this designation as the qualifying features are bird species and they are less sensitive to most air pollutants. The exceptions are acid deposition and some organic pesticides (that are no longer in use but persist in the environment e.g. DDT). Great Crested Newts are also sensitive to acidification. As this is an aquatic environment there are no critical loads and levels data for the various air pollutants. Current levels/loads readings are available in Appendix 1. One of the many anthropogenic sources of acidification is vehicle emissions. There are a number of A roads near to the site. These are
Water Resource	A590, A595, A5093, A5092 and A593. The potential for an increase in traffic will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports for the Site Allocations DPD and planning applications for any nuclear or other major development. Wastewater–United Utilities has reported that the Wastewater Treatment Plant
and Wastewater	at Millom will be able to accommodate the planned growth in South Copeland.
-------------------	----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Treatment Issues	Any untreated water would flow into the Duddon Estuary and not Morecambe
	Bay in any case.
	Water Resources – There are no plans to abstract drinking water from the South
Dessible immede	Copeiand area.
arising from the	• There are concerns over the ability for existing wwTw(s) discharging in to the site to provide the increased capacity required. However, given the distance between Morecambe Bay and the Copeland Plan area, this is unlikely to pose a significant threat.
	• The nominated site for nuclear activity is Sellafield and therefore cooling water will be piped out some distance away from the Morecambe Bay site i.e. changes to temperature and salinity at this distance should be minimal.
	Potentially significant negative effects
	Proposed leisure and tourism uses means there is potential for increased visitor pressure.
	<ul> <li>Tidal and wave energy developments could have a significant negative impact.</li> <li>Flood defence measures</li> </ul>
	• Air, water and ground pollution
	Introduction of non-native plant species in landscaping schemes
	Water contamination can result from rain water falling through air
	contaminated with car fumes or industrial emissions and therefore any
	increase in these particulates/gases could cause an increase in water pollution.
Source	Extra housing leading to an increase in amount of sewage
Pathway	Existing Wastewater treatment plants discharging untreated sewage into
Impact	Morecambe Bay
	contaminating land
	Encouraging more tourists to the area will increase the amount of vehicular
	Physical damage to plants and babitats erosion litter accumulation pollution
	etc.
	Increased tourism and access could lead to increased traffic movement in the South Copeland/Mid Copeland area resulting in <b>more air pollution</b> that would travel on the prevailing wind towards the site.
	Rain falling through polluted air could lead to a small amount of water pollution possibly affecting the health of important species.
	Increased amount of development in the plan area some of which will have planting schemes
	Creeping of non-native species across and towards the sensitive site. Competition with sensitive species leading to decline or extinction on the site.
Policies that	An increase in housing and employment development anywhere in the borough
could potentially	could contribute to an increase in air pollution over Morecambe Bay so the
impact	following policies could have a negative impact on the site:
μηματι	and recreational facilities.
	<b>ST2</b> - facilitate growth in the local economy and associated growth in demand
	for housing and services. Support for new nuclear generating capacity and
	essential infrastructure.
	<b>ST3</b> – In pursuit of economic regeneration and growth.

	ER1 – Support for nuclear new build – whilst the operational phase should be
	reasonably clean with regards to emissions, the construction phase has the
	potential to have a negative impact.
	ER2 – Support for renewable energy developments
	<b>ER3</b> – Identify sites for NNB construction workers accommodation, encourage
	development of new educational facilities.
	<b>ER4</b> – Allocating land for economic development over the plan period at a rate
	exceeding the take up rate of the past.
	<b>ER7</b> – Supporting the continued growth of Whitehaven. Encourage evening and
	night time uses.
	<b>ER8</b> – Enhancing the retail function of the town centre and improving the
	tourism offer. Developments should provide parking both for the development
	and the town centre. Conversion of vacant floors over shops into residential
	accommodation. Redrawing the town centre boundary to reflect the anticipated
	growth and development in the area
	<b>ER9</b> – Town centre improvements will be encouraged in the Key Service Centres
	to attract more visitors.
	<b>FR10</b> – Expand tourism outside the Lake District boundaries
	<b>ER11</b> – Supporting new and expanding employment sectors. Supporting the
	development of commercial units
	<b>SS1</b> – Allocation of housing sites, renovation and improvement of existing
	housing stock demolition and redevelopment schemes
	<b>SS2</b> – Housing allocations to meet a baseline requirement of 230-300 dwellings
	per vear
	<b>SS4</b> - Encouraging the provision of good quality services and facilities
	<b>T1</b> – Transport improvements including new Pow Beck Spine Road, new Fastern
	relief road improvements to A595 and A5086. Better connections will be sought
	to the A66 M6 A595 etc. Parking strategy will set out guidance for
	incorporating car parking in new developments.
	<b>ENV1 -</b> Support for new flood defence measures to protect against both tidal
	and fluvial flooding in the borough including appropriate land management as
	part of a catchment wide approach.
	<b>ENV2</b> – Support for energy generating developments which require a coastal
	location.
	<b>ENV4</b> – Supporting proposals for heritage led regeneration.
	<b>ENV5</b> - Development proposals, where necessary, will be required to include
	landscaping schemes that retain existing landscape features, reinforce local
	landscape character and mitigate against any adverse visual impact.
Policies that	<b>ST1</b> – Protect and enhance sites of nature conservation and biodiversity value.
eradicate/lessen	Encourage creation of new areas of green infrastructure. Ensure development
the risk posed	minimises air. ground and water pollution.
	<b>ST2</b> – Growth should be concentrated in the settlements focussing the largest
	scale development in sustainable locations.
	<b>ST4</b> - Development proposals should provide, or contribute to the provision of
	environmental requirements on or off site.
	<b>ER1</b> – The Council will work with partners to identify whether a high-level waste
	repository can be justified and that there are no negative impacts on, inter alia.
	the environment. The Council will seek to ensure that all investment in the
	nuclear sector is accompanied by financial or in-kind contributions to mitigate
	any potentially detrimental impacts.
	<b>ER2</b> – Support for renewable energy generating developments at locations

	which minimise environmental impacts so that they are within acceptable limits.
	<b>ER3</b> – Ensure that any new energy infrastructure minimises potential impacts on
	biodiversity.
	<b>FR6</b> – Presumption in favour of employment sites in sustainable locations
	<b>FR10</b> - Wherever possible tourism providers will be required to ensure that
	accommodation and attractions are well connected to other tourist destinations
	and amenities particularly by public transport walking and cycling Locate new
	tourist accommodation facilities and attractions where there is proven capacity
	for additional visitors to be accommodated without adverse environmental or
	ancinty impacts.
	for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport
	To all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public transport.
	12 - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through
	existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be
	supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.
	<b>ENV1</b> – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air
	quality
	<b>ENV3</b> - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact on air quality.
	<b>ENV5</b> – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the
	development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.
	Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.
	ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of
	Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to lower
	the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.
	<b>DM1</b> - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive
	material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of
	the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully
	involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek an
	appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to
	minimise the environmental impacts of the nuclear development.
	<b>DM2</b> – Renewable energy development will have no adverse impact on
	biodiversity. Proposals should be developed with key stakeholders (which will
	include biodiversity organisations).
	<b>DM5</b> – Proposals for any new nuclear facilities should be submitted with long
	term management plans that will minimise any harmful effects.
	<b>DM22</b> - Where necessary the potential transport implications of development
	will be required to be supported by a Transport Assessment and a Travel Plan to
	manage any significant transport implications
	<b>DM25</b> - All development proposals must take into account any likely significant
	effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough and
	within a 20km radius of the borough boundary as well as those that are
	hydrologically linked to the development plan area.
Is There a Risk of	There is the risk of a greater amount of diffuse air pollution. However, there are
a Significant	policies in the Core Strategy that encourage a greater amount of green
Effect?	infrastructure and sustainable transport options. It is considered that this
	document does all that it can at a very strategic level. Until more information is
	available i.e. at site allocations or project stage it will be very difficult to carry
	out an appropriate assessment.
	There is a risk that Wastewater Treatment Works will not be able to cope with
	the increased requirement but it is considered that policy ST4A deals adequately

	with this threat.
	Regarding the prevention of introduction of non-invasive species – there is
	probably scope for adding some words to the policy DM26 that allow conditions
	to be put on planning permissions that states that all species used in landscaping
	schemes must use plants that are native to that particular landscape.
	Trampling is an important issue when considering policies that encourage more
	people into any given area. ENV3F does, however, allow for planners to add
	conditions that will restrict access and usage of land where that would lead to
	trampling and disturbance of sensitive habitats and species. This should
	significantly lessen the risk of damage.
	A separate HRA screening report will be produced as part of the preparation of
	the Site Allocations DPD.
Possible Impacts	• Gas exploration.
Arising from	Morecambe Bridge proposals
Other Plans and	<ul> <li>Channel widening at Fleetwood associated with port development</li> </ul>
Projects	• ABP cruise terminal
	• BAE Systems aircraft carrier development at Barrow
	• Underground gas storage at Wyre Estuary (disposal of brine)
	• Windfarm cabling
	• Gateway gas storage (offshore)
	• Fleetwood Pier regeneration
	• BNFL shipping movements
	• Contamination from coastal collarse exposing estuarine waste sites
	Shell Elats (Cirrus Array) windfarm_off Cleveleys
	• Stronger regulation of cockle and mussel fisheries
	Coastal access proposals
	• Coastal access proposals
	• White Whit
	Pogoporation of waterfront Parrow is a priority. Lancaster is also a main
	development locations: Ulwersten, Grange over Sands Militherne and
	Cornforth are Key Services Contros where development will also be focused
	There are concerns over the ability for existing W/wTW/s) discharging in to the
	• There are concerns over the ability for existing www.w(s) discharging in to the
	in the draft PSS
	Morecombo Boy falls within North West coast area of search for a regional
	nork and parts of Morocambo Bay are planned to be part of it. A planned
	North West Coastal Trail would also pass nearby. Dependent on selection of
	area and proposed uses (o.g. loisure, tourism) there is notential for increased
	visitor prossure
	• Completion of the Hoysham to M6 link read will mean increased traffic, and
	notantial development leading to risk of air pollution and water pollution
	potential development leading to risk of all politicion and water politicion
	Policy W6 advocates tourism development adjacent to National parks and
	AONBs – this applies to this site and could lead to increased vicitor pressure
	• Port development at Electwood or Heysham and associated freight transport
	could create disturbance land take air and water pollution problems
	• Tidal and wave energy proposals
	• Coastal squeeze
	Elood defence schemes
	Expansion of activity at Blackpool Airport is unlikely to have a significant effect
	on the site.

Proposals within West Cumbria Masterplan – Development of the Westlakes
Research Institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the
National Nuclear Skills Academy at Lillyhall, the Dalton Institute (lab facilities)at
Westlakes, further investment in the employment sites at Leconfield and
Bridgend. A 'health campus' on the current hospital site and new University of
Cumbria facilities at Lillyhall. New National Nuclear Laboratory headquarters in
West Cumbria.
North West RSS - Drigg coast falls within North West coast area of search for a
regional park and a planned North West Coastal Trail. There is potential for
increased visitor pressure.
Allerdale LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – additional 267-350 dwellings
ner year (equating to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period). Some
limited housing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in more
sustainable locations i e Workington Marynort Aspatria Cockermouth Wigton
etr
Lake District National Park Core Strategy – 900 additional dwellings in the
pariod to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 20% in clusters
and the open countrycide). There will be an additional Q 2ba of employment
land and it is acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional
nationally significant visitor attractions
Lake District National Dark Site Allocations Proferred Options - All employment
Lake District National Park Site Anotations Preferred Options – An employment
Carlicle LDE Core Strategy Issues and Ontions - Currently no policy direction
offered. Carlisle has been designated as a growth point though so it can be
offered. Carliste has been designated as a growth point though so it can be
reasonably expected that there will be a significant amount of additional
nousing and employment development over the plan period.
Eden Adopted Core Strategy – Focus new build nousing in Key and Local Service
Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller settlements. The
plan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additional dwellings per annum to 2025
(over 3100 units in total). Sona of employment land will be made available to
2025. De la Resta de
Barrow Port Area Action Plan – 925 additional dwellings in the Action Plan Area
to 2021. Additional leisure facilities including marina and boat servicing area,
waterfront notel, water sports centre and very limited amount of retail.
Improving access to the operational port from road and sea to support new
opportunities to increase the proportion of freight moved by sea. Development
of Waterfront Business Park as a major new business and employment location
(24.5ha site).
South Lakeland LDF Core Strategy – 55% of new housing and employment
development will be in the Principal Service Centres, 13% in Key Service Centres,
21% in Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and hamlets.
Housing target is 469 additional dwellings per year equating to nearly 6100 to
2025. 21ha of employment development to be accommodated in Kendal to
2025, 12ha to be accommodated in Ulverston and Furness but overall 4 ha of
employment land will be allocated per annum between 2010 and 2025 equating
to 60ha over the plan period.
Cumbria Local Transport Plan 3 – Support for the upgrading of the A595, A590,
A5094 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth in the
low carbon energy sector. Increased bus services in rural areas. Improvement to
the Cumbria West Coast Railway. Carlisle Northern Development Route will be
completed in 2012.

	Cumbria Minerals and Waste LDF Core Strategy – no regional waste facilities to
	be located in Cumbria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the
	south of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with a
	preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of facility,
	for example, a Household Waste Recycling Centre and a Transfer/Bulking
	Station. This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core Strategy Policy for
	minimising "waste miles".
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste Site Allocations DPD – Allocates sites for mineral
	working and waste facilities. The HRA for this document stated that there were
	13 sites in the whole of the county that would require an Appropriate
	Assessment at project stage but that the policies themselves were unlikely to
	have negative effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The mitigation
	measures that are considered likely to be needed are common place and could
	form the conditions of the planning application.
Is there risk of a	As all of the above plans are planning for a greater amount of development in
significant effect	each of the plan areas it is likely that there could be a significant effect on the
in combination?	integrity of the site. A separate HRA screening report will be prepared in
	tandem with the Site Allocations DPD.

## **Esthwaite Water Ramsar Site**



Name	Esthwaite Water
Designation	Ramsar Site
Area (ha)	137.4
Qualifying features	A good example of a mesotrophic lake, with a well-developed hydrosere. Important for aquatic invertebrates and pondweed species, and is the only known site for slender naiad in England and Wales
SSSIs within the site	Esthwaite Water SSSI
Comments on Nature	Eutrophication, particularly as a result of aquaculture, has been a problem. This is being addressed.

Conservation	Threats recorded on the Ramsar site database are:
Importance	Unspecified agricultural runoff
	Unspecified pollution
	Domestic sewage pollution
	Eutrophication
Key Environmental	Conditions <i>not</i> within Copeland's control
Conditions to	•Establishment of suitable water quality
Support Site	Prevention of further nutrient enrichment
Integrity	•Maintenance of appropriate water levels
U ,	Conditions within Concland's control
	Minimal pollution
Air Quality Issues	This is an aquatic environment so there are no critical levels or loads for air
	pollutants. Atmospheric nitrogen can cause eutrophication and an increase in
	nitrogen deposition on the water would exacerbate the existing problem. The
	aquatic plant, Slender naiad, is sensitive to eutrophication and acidification of
	the lake water so there will be a need to ensure than minimal nitrogen and
	acid deposition arises from the plan area. Atmospheric acid and nitrogen are
	constituents of vehicle emissions. The main roads in the area are the A591,
	A590, A593 and A592. The potential for an increase in traffic on these roads
	will have to be taken into account in the HRA Screening Reports for the Site
	Allocations DPD and planning applications for any nuclear or other major
	development.
Water Resource	Wastewater – The wastewater treatment works in Millom is said to be able to
and Wastewater	accommodate the growth anticipated in the Core Strategy. In addition,
Treatment Issues	contamination with raw sewage from the plan is unlikely to occur due to the
	topography between the plan are and the site.
	Water Resources – There are no plans to source drinking water from the South
	Copeland area. A drop in the water table is not listed as a threat to the
	integrity of the site.
Possible impacts	The topography between Esthwaite Water and Copeland means that over
arising from the	capacity Wastewater Treatment Works in the plan area are unlikely to
plan	threaten the water quality of this lake.
	Potentially significant negative impacts
	Air, water and ground pollution as the result of an increase in development.
	Pollution deposited from the air could reach the water body through being
	deposited directly onto the surface of the water or deposition onto the
	surrounding land and carried to the lake.
Source	Increased tourism and access could lead to increased traffic movement in the
Pathway	South Copeland/Mid Copeland area resulting in <b>more air pollution</b> that would
Impact	travel on the prevailing wind towards the site.
Policies that could	An increase in housing and employment development anywhere in the
potentially have a	borough could contribute to an increase in air pollution over the so the
negative impact	following policies could have a negative impact on the site:
	ST1 – Support energy, economic and housing development as well as services
	and recreational facilities.
	ST2 - facilitate growth in the local economy and associated growth in demand
	for housing and services. Support for new nuclear generating capacity and
	essential infrastructure.
	<b>ST3</b> – In pursuit of economic regeneration and growth.
	ER1 – Support for nuclear new build – whilst the operational phase should be

	reasonably clean with regards to emissions, the construction phase has the
	potential to have a negative impact.
	<b>ER2</b> – Support for renewable energy developments
	<b>ER3</b> – Identify sites for NNB construction workers accommodation, encourage
	development of new educational facilities
	<b>FR4</b> – Allocating land for economic development over the plan period at a rate
	exceeding the take up rate of the pact
	<b>ED7</b> Comparing the continued growth of Wikitahavan Encourage evening
	<b>EK7</b> – Supporting the continued growth of whitehaven. Encourage evening
	and night time uses.
	<b>ER8</b> – Enhancing the retail function of the town centre and improving the
	tourism offer. Developments should provide parking both for the development
	and the town centre. Conversion of vacant floors over shops into residential
	accommodation. Redrawing the town centre boundary to reflect the
	anticipated growth and development in the area.
	<b>ER9</b> – Town centre improvements will be encouraged in the Key Service
	Centres to attract more visitors.
	<b>ER10</b> – Expand tourism outside the Lake District boundaries.
	<b>ER11</b> – Supporting new and expanding employment sectors. Supporting the
	development of commercial units.
	<b>SS1</b> – Allocation of housing sites, renovation and improvement of existing
	housing stock demolition and redevelopment schemes
	<b>SS2</b> – Housing allocations to meet a baseline requirement of 230-300 dwellings
	ner ver
	<b>SSA</b> – Encouraging the provision of good quality services and facilities
	<b>T1</b> - Transport improvements including new Dew Pock Spine Pood new
	Eastorn relief read improvements to ASOS and ASOS6. Botter connections will
	he sought to the AGE ME AEOE atc. Darking strategy will get out guidance for
	incorporating car parking in new developments
	<b>ENV</b> <i>1</i> Support for new flood defense measures to protect against both tidal
	<b>ENVI</b> - Support for new flood defence measures to protect against both tidal
	and fluvial flooding in the borough, including appropriate land management as
	part of a catchment wide approach.
	<b>ENV2</b> – Support for energy generating developments which require a coastal
	location.
	<b>ENV4</b> – Supporting proposals for heritage led regeneration.
	<b>ENV5</b> - Development proposals, where necessary, will be required to include
	landscaping schemes that retain existing landscape features, reinforce local
	landscape character and mitigate against any adverse visual impact.
Policies that	<b>ST1</b> – Protect and enhance sites of nature conservation and biodiversity value.
eradicate/lessen	Encourage creation of new areas of green infrastructure. Ensure development
the risk posed	minimises air, ground and water pollution.
	<b>ST2</b> – Growth should be concentrated in the settlements focussing the largest
	scale development in sustainable locations.
	<b>ST4</b> - Development proposals should provide, or contribute to the provision of
	environmental requirements on or off site.
	<b>ER1</b> – The Council will work with partners to identify whether a high-level
	waste repository can be justified and that there are no negative impacts on.
	inter alia, the environment. The Council will seek to ensure that all investment
	in the nuclear sector is accompanied by financial or in-kind contributions to
	mitigate any notentially detrimental impacts
	<b>FR2</b> – Support for renewable energy generating developments at locations
	which minimize environmental impacts so that they are within accontable

	limits.
	ER3 – Ensure that any new energy infrastructure minimises potential impacts
	on biodiversity.
	<b>ER6</b> – Presumption in favour of employment sites in sustainable locations.
	ER10 - Wherever possible tourism providers will be required to ensure that
	accommodation and attractions are well connected to other tourist
	destinations and amenities, particularly by public transport, walking and
	cycling. Locate new tourist accommodation, facilities and attractions where
	there is proven capacity for additional visitors to be accommodated without
	adverse environmental or amenity impacts.
	<b>T1</b> - The Council will support transport improvements that maximise
	accessibility for all modes of transport but particularly by foot, cycle and public
	transport.
	<b>T2</b> - Developments which seek to extend or improve connectivity through
	existing and emerging telecommunications in all parts of the Borough will be
	supported (subject to appropriate safeguards) – minimising the need to travel.
	ENV1 – Planting trees to control flood risk will have a positive impact on air
	quality
	<b>ENV3</b> - Protecting and extending woodland habitat will have a positive impact
	on air quality.
	ENV5 – On site mitigation to take place where the positive impacts of the
	development clearly outweigh the negative impact on the landscape.
	Encouraging green infrastructure will have a positive impact on air quality.
	ENV6 - Identifying potential for a community forest to the South and West of
	Egremont. A large number of trees planted in the borough would help to
	lower the levels of pollution in the air over the longer term.
	DM1 - Proposals involving the use, storage and processing of radioactive
	material should include a strategy for the long term management and safety of
	the site and material. The Council and other Key stakeholders should be fully
	involved in any Environmental Assessment undertaken. The Council will seek
	an appropriately scoped, scales and phased package of community benefits to
	minimise the environmental impacts of the nuclear development.
	DM2 – Renewable energy development will have no adverse impact on
	biodiversity. Proposals should be developed with key stakeholders (which will
	include biodiversity organisations).
	DM5 – Proposals for any new nuclear facilities should be submitted with long
	term management plans that will minimise any harmful effects.
	DM22 - Where necessary the potential transport implications of development
	will be required to be supported by a Transport Assessment and a Travel Plan
	to manage any significant transport implications.
	DM25 - All development proposals must take into account any likely significant
	effects on the internationally important sites both within the borough and
	within a 20km radius of the borough boundary as well as those that are
	hydrologically linked to the development plan area.
Is There a Risk of a	There is the risk of a greater amount of diffuse air pollution. However, there
Significant Effect?	are policies in the Core Strategy that encourage a greater amount of green
	infrastructure and sustainable transport options. It is considered that this
	document does all that it can at a very strategic level. Until more information
	is available i.e. at site allocations or project stage it will be very difficult to
	carry out an appropriate assessment.
Possible Impacts	The planned North West Coastal Trail would pass nearby.

Arising from Other	Proposals within West Cumbria Masterplan – Development of the Westlakes
Plans and Projects	Research Institute at the Science and Technology Park. Development of the
	National Nuclear Skills Academy at Lillyhall, the Dalton Institute (lab
	facilities)at Westlakes, further investment in the employment sites at
	Leconfield and Bridgend. A 'health campus' on the current hospital site and
	new University of Cumbria facilities at Lillyhall. New National Nuclear
	Laboratory headquarters in West Cumbria.
	North West RSS - Drigg coast falls within North West coast area of search for a
	regional park and a planned North West Coastal Trail. There is potential for
	increased visitor pressure.
	Allerdale LDF Core Strategy Issues and Options – additional 267-350 dwellings
	per year (equating to an extra 4000-5250 dwellings over the plan period).
	Some limited housing development in rural local centres but mainly focused in
	more sustainable locations i.e. Workington, Maryport, Aspatria, Cockermouth,
	Wigton etc.
	Lake District National Park Core Strategy – 900 additional dwellings in the
	period to 2025 (50% in rural service centres, 20% in villages and 30% in clusters
	and the open countryside). There will be an additional 9.2ha of employment
	land and it is acknowledged that the Park needs one or more additional
	nationally significant visitor attractions.
	Lake District National Park Site Allocations Preferred Options – All
	employment land allocated will be in the Rural Service Centres. Esthwaite
	water Ramsar Site fails into the South Distinctive Area which will
	accommodate 14% of all development in the LDNP.
	Carlisle LDF Core Strategy issues and Options – Currently no policy direction
	offered. Carriste has been designated as a growth point though so it can be
	heusing and employment development over the plan period
	Eden Adented Core Strategy – Eacus new build bousing in Key and Local
	Service Centres whilst allowing for meeting essential needs in smaller
	settlements. The plan takes the RSS housing target of 239 additional dwallings
	ner annum to 2025 (over 3100 units in total) 50ha of employment land will be
	made available to 2025
	Barrow Port Area Action Plan – 925 additional dwellings in the Action Plan
	Area to 2021. Additional leisure facilities including marina and boat servicing
	area. Waterfront hotel. Water sports centre and very limited amount of retail.
	Improving access to the operational port from road and sea to support new
	opportunities to increase the proportion of freight moved by sea.
	Development of Waterfront Business Park as a major new business and
	employment location (24.5ha site).
	South Lakeland LDF Core Strategy – 55% of new housing and employment
	development will be in the Principal Service Centres, 13% in Key Service
	Centres, 21% in Local Service Centres and 11% in the smaller villages and
	hamlets. Housing target is 469 additional dwellings per year equating to nearly
	6100 to 2025. 21ha of employment development to be accommodated in
	Kendal to 2025, 12ha to be accommodated in Ulverston and Furness but
	overall 4 ha of employment land will be allocated per annum between 2010
	and 2025 equating to 60ha over the plan period.
	Cumbria Local Transport Plan 3 – Support for the upgrading of the A595,
	A590, A5094 and A66 as well as any improvements needed to support growth
	in the low carbon energy sector. Increased bus services in rural areas.

	Improvement to the Cumbria West Coast Railway. Carlisle Northern
	Development Route will be completed in 2012.
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste LDF Core Strategy – no regional waste facilities
	to be located in Cumbria. At least one new waste facility will be needed in the
	south of the county. Proposes a decentralised network of waste facilities with
	a preference for sites which could accommodate more than one type of
	facility, for example, a Household Waste Recycling Centre and a
	Transfer/Bulking Station. This relates well to the Overall Strategy and Core
	Strategy Policy for minimising "waste miles".
	Cumbria Minerals and Waste Site Allocations DPD – Allocates sites for
	mineral working and waste facilities. The HRA for this document stated that
	there were 13 sites in the whole of the county that would require an
	Appropriate Assessment at project stage but that the policies themselves were
	unlikely to have negative effects on the integrity of any of the sites. The
	mitigation measures that are considered likely to be needed are common
	place and could form the conditions of the planning application.
	Shoreline Management Plan 2 – In the Duddon Estuary area the approach is to
	maintain the line, where there are assets to protect, and to let the shore
	continue to erode where there are limited assets.
Is there risk of a	As all of the above plans are planning for a greater amount of development in
significant effect in	each of the plan areas it is likely that there could be a significant effect on the
combination?	integrity of the site. A separate HRA screening report will be prepared in
	tandem with the Site Allocations DPD.

## Conclusion

Any development that could adversely affect the integrity of a European Wildlife Site, directly or indirectly, would not be in accordance with the Core Strategy or Development Control policies. Sites will be identified in the subsequent Site Allocations Policies and Proposals Maps Development Plan Documents. These will be subordinate to the Core Strategy and will, themselves, require Habitats Regulations Assessment.

The assessment has not identified any likely significant effects that the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies would have on the integrity of any of the European sites. It does, however, identify where further Habitats Regulations Assessment and possibly Appropriate Assessments are likely to be needed when the Site Allocations Policies and associated maps are prepared. Site by site Assessments will need to be considered when planning application proposals come forward. The Development Management Policies document makes it clear that any development that would be likely to have an adverse impact on the integrity of a European Wildlife Site would not be supported.

New nuclear development and the construction of some energy related infrastructure could have a negative impact on any or all of the sites. However, the Council will not be the planning authority for this type of development. An appropriate assessment will have to be carried out at planning application stage with consideration given to the matter in the Local Impact Report.

A significant amount of housing development will take place over the plan period but the preferred sites for that development have not been allocated yet. The Council will prepare for a Site Allocations DPD and this document will be accompanied by its own HRA Screening Report.

## **APPENDIX 1 – AIR POLLUTANTS**

Pollutant	Sou	rces	Environmental Effects						
	Natural	Anthropogenic							
Ammonia (NH <sub>3</sub> )	<ul> <li>Decomposition and volatisation of farm animal wastes and wastes from wild animals and seabirds.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Decomposition and volatilisation of farm animal wastes.</li> <li>Increased concentrations with the intensification of farming.</li> <li>Direct volatilisation from mineral fertilisers, agricultural crops, sewage and industrial processes.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Soil and freshwater acidification</li> <li>Eutrophication of oligotrophic ecosystems</li> <li>Increases the effectiveness of nitrous oxides and methane as greenhouse gases</li> <li>Modifies the deposition patterns of SO<sub>2</sub> and NO<sup>[2]</sup>.</li> </ul>						
Sulphur Dioxide (SO <sub>2</sub> )	<ul> <li>Releases from volcanoes, oceans, biological decay and forest fires.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Domestic fuel combustion</li> <li>Industry</li> <li>Electricity generation</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Soil and freshwater acidification on higher ground, having been transported from urban areas.</li> </ul>						
Nitrogen Oxides (NOI)	<ul> <li>Lightning</li> <li>Microbial processes in soils (to a small extent)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Power stations</li> <li>Motor vehicles</li> <li>Industrial combustion</li> <li>Domestic fuel combustion</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Eutrophication of oligotrophic ecosystems</li> </ul>						
Heavy Metals	<ul> <li>Volcanic emissions</li> <li>Forest fires</li> <li>Sea salt</li> <li>Evaporation from the sea surface</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Electronic components, machinery and materials</li> <li>Power generation</li> <li>Smelting</li> <li>Incineration</li> <li>Internal combustion engines</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Toxic to organisms at low levels</li> <li>Inhibition of growth</li> <li>Suppression of oxygen consumption</li> <li>Impairment of reproduction</li> <li>Impairment of tissue repair</li> </ul>						
Halogens (HCl and HF)	<ul> <li>Sea salt</li> <li>Marine microbiological processes</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Industrial processes</li> <li>Fertiliser production</li> <li>Coal burning</li> <li>Glass, ceramics and brick manufacture</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Distortion of leaf shape, yellowing and death of tissues in sensitive species</li> <li>Leaf drop</li> <li>Fluorosis in mammals and possibly in invertebrates</li> <li>Contributes to acid deposition</li> </ul>						
Persistent Organic Pollutants (DDT, PCBs, PAHs etc.)		<ul> <li>DDT – pesticide use</li> <li>PCBs – incineration and landfill of waste containing transformers in older electrical equipment</li> <li>PAHs – burning of coal</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>DDT - Lethality in birds along with egg shell thinning</li> <li>PAHs toxic to aquatic organisms and invertebrates and it is thought that the breeding success of fish can be affected</li> </ul>						

		and wood, coke and diesel.	<ul> <li>PCBs – inhibit growth in some plant species</li> </ul>
Particulates	<ul> <li>Erosion of soils</li> <li>Volcanoes</li> <li>Sea salt</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Combustion processes (fly-ash and soot)</li> <li>Heavy metal particles from industrial and transport processes</li> <li>Wear of tyres and brakes</li> <li>Quarrying</li> <li>Construction and demolition</li> <li>Cement manufacture</li> <li>Fertilisers</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Dusts covering vegetation, occluding stomata and stopping photosynthesis</li> <li>Deposition of regional pollutants on clean sites causing acidification and eutrophication</li> </ul>
Nitrogen Deposition	<ul> <li>Decomposition and volatisation of wastes from wild animals and seabirds.</li> <li>Lightning</li> <li>Microbial processes in soils (to a small extent)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Decomposition and volatilisation of farm animal wastes.</li> <li>Increased concentrations with the intensification of farming.</li> <li>Direct volatilisation from mineral fertilisers, agricultural crops, sewage and industrial processes.</li> <li>Power stations</li> <li>Motor vehicles</li> <li>Industrial combustion</li> <li>Domestic fuel combustion</li> </ul>	Acidification of soils and water Eutrophication of oligotrophic ecosystems Damage to bryophyte communities
Acid Deposition	<ul> <li>Decomposition and volatisation of farm animal wastes and wastes from wild animals and seabirds.</li> <li>Releases from volcanoes, oceans, biological decay and forest fires.</li> <li>Lightning</li> <li>Microbial processes in soils (to a small extent)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Decomposition and volatilisation of farm animal wastes.</li> <li>Increased concentrations with the intensification of farming.</li> <li>Direct volatilisation from mineral fertilisers, agricultural crops, sewage and industrial processes.</li> <li>Domestic fuel combustion</li> <li>Industry</li> <li>Electricity generation</li> <li>Motor vehicles</li> <li>Industrial combustion</li> <li>Domestic fuel</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Reproduction in both birds and plants is sensitive to acidification. In birds the egg shell can thin and become unviable. In plants, seed production and hence germination suffers.</li> <li>Crustaceans do not survive in acidified waters</li> <li>Bryophytes and lichens are also sensitive</li> </ul>

	combustion	
Ozone	Secondary pollutant	There is evidence to show that
	formed by the action of	a wide variety of plant species
	sunlight on oxides of	in a wide variety of habitats are
	nitrogen and volatile	sensitive to ozone. Effects
	organic compounds	include visible injury to the
	(mainly from vehicles,	plant, early senescence of
	solvents and industry).	leaves and reduction of
		biomass.

Air Pollution Readings – To be added separately (see separate spreadsheet)

## Appendix 1 - Pollution Evidence Base

														Persis	stant Organic								
				Amı	monia	Sulphu	ır Dioxide	Nitrog	en Oxides	Heav	vy Metals	Halogens (H	HCL HF)	Р	ollutants	Parti	culates	Nitrogen	Deposition	Acid De	eposition	0	zone
Site	Site	Grid Reference	Annex I/II Habitats/Species Present													Critical		Critical		Critical			
Site	Designation		Annex if it habitats/species i resent	Critical		Critical		Critical		Critical		Critical		Critical		Load		Load	Current	Load	Current	Critical	Current
				Level	Current	Level	Current	Load	Current	Load	Current load	Level Cu	urrent	Level	Current Level	(kg/ha/	Current	(kg/ha/	load (kg/	(keq/ha/	load (keq/	Load (ppt	load (ppb
-				(µg/m³)	load (µg)	(µg/m³)	load (µg)	(µg/m³)	load (µg)	(µg/L)	(µg/L)	(μg/m³) Le	evel (µg)	(µg/m³)	(µg)	year)	load (µg)	year)	ha/year)	year)	ha/year)	hours)	hours)
Borrowdale Woodland	SAC	NY235129	Old Sessile Oak Woods with Iley and							There is cu	urrently only	There is curr	ently no	DDT, DDE	and DDD are	Particulat	es are						
Complex			Blechnum in the British Isles (91A0)	1	1 05	5 20	0 07	7 3	0 63	critical loa	d data for	critcial level of	data for	organic pe	esticides and	dusts and	Include	10-20	40.	7 24:	3 3 65	500	0 2250
			Bog Woodland (91D0)	1	1 0.5	5 20	0 0.7	7 3	0 6.3		A website	these compo	Junus.	thinning	f orgeholls	duarry du	iy asii, st and	10-20	40.	7 2.43	3 3.65	500	0 2250
			Siliceous rocky slopes with chasmophytic	с						nrovides r	eadings on the	Estimates for	r	resulting	in problems	soot All	si anu Husts		-				
			vegetation. (8220)	1	1 0.5	5 20	0.7	7 3	0 6.3	levels of th	he various	Hydrogen Flu	uoride	reproduci	ng. There is a	settling of	n a plant	5-10	2	7 0.35	2.53 ز	300	J 1897
Clints Quarry (Moota)	SAC	NY161357	Ponds hosting Great Crested Newts	N/A	2.2	2 N/A	0.6	5 N/A	7.6	heavy met	tals present at	that will caus	se harm	lack of inf	ormation on the	will hav th	ne direct	N/A	22.0	) N/A	1.81	N/A	1955
Drigg Coast	SAC	SD071960	Estuaries	N/A	1.2	2 N/A	0.7	7 N/A	6.4	one site in	the Lake	to plants are	:	effects of	these	effect of r	educing	N/A	15.4	1 N/A	1.35	N/A	N/A
			Atlantic decalcified fixed dunes (Calluno	-						District (Co	ockley Beck -	<5µg/m³ ove	er 1 day	complour	ds on plant life.	the light a	vailable						
			Ulicetea) (2150)	3	3 1.2	2 20	0 0.7	7 3	0 6.4	NY247015	5).	period		The envir	onmental criteria	for photo	synthesis	N/A	15.4	1 3.17	/ 1.35	N/A	N/A
			Dunes with Salix repens ssp. Argentea									<0.5µg/m³ ov	ver 1	states tha	t levels of	and the o	cclusion of	0.45	45				
			(Salicion arenariae) (2170)		3 1.2	2 20	0 0.7	/ 3	0 6.4	Arsenic - 0	).22µg/L	week period		2mg/dry l	kg of earth is	stomata,	eading to	8-15	15.4	4 3.17	1.35	N/A	N/A
			Mudflats and sandflats not covered by		1 1 2		0-		6.4	Cadmium	- 0.03µg/L	<0.2-0.3µg/n	n³ over	likely to c	ause damage to	interferer	ice with		15		1.25		
			Salicornia and other annuals colonising	N/A	1.2	IN/A	0.7	/ IN/A	0.4	Chromium	n - 0.17µg/L	1 month peri	iod	the ecosy	stem. For	respiratio	n and	N/A	15.4	+IN/A	1.55	IN/A	IN/A
			the mud and sand	N/A	17	N/A	0.7	7 N/A	6.4	Copper - 1	L.02μg/L	<0.2-0.3µg/n	n° over	estuarine	and aqautic	levels of w	vater	N/A	15	4 N/A	1 35	N/A	N/A
			Atlantic Salt Meadows (Glauco-		1.1		0.7	, , , , , ,	0.1	Nickel 58 -	- 0.22µg/L	3 month peri	iod.	environm	ents the	evaporati	on from	14/7	13.		1.55		
			Puccinellietalia maritimae) (1330)	3	3 1.2	2 20	0.7	7 3	0 6.4	NICKEI 60 -	- 0.30µg/L	the come for	ates are	threshold	arops	the leaves		20-30	15.4	4 C	1.35	N/A	N/A
			Embryonic Shifting Dunes (2110)	3	3 1.2	2 20	0 0.7	7 3	0 6.4	Selenium	2μg/L - 0.16μg/l	habitat type	dii c		itre because of	and limes	y, cement	10-20	15.4	4 3.17	/ 1.35	, N/A	N/A
			Shifting dunes along the shoreline with							Vanadium	- 0.10µg/L	Bird species	s. are not	the increa	sed sensitivity o	f quarry du	cts are				-		<u> </u>
			Ammophila arenaria (white dunes)							7  inc = 7.49	ι υ.42μg/L λισ/Ι	affected by H	HE HOL	aquatic sr	becies to these	strongly a	lkaline						
			(2120)	3	3 1.2	2 20	0.7	7 3	0 6.4	21110 7.45	/μ6/ L	deposition.	Small	pollutante	The use of	which wil	have a	10-20	15.4	4 3.17	/ 1.35	N/A	N/A
			Fixed dunes with herbaceous vegetation	1						Readings t	taken in July	mammals are	e	these con	nounds has	direct effe	ect on acid						
			(2130)	3	3 1.2	2 20	0.7	7 3	0 6.4	2011	cancerr mouly	affected but	there	been ban	ned but they do	soils and	on the pH	N/A	15.4	4 3.17	/ 1.35	N/A	N/A
			Humid dune slacks (2190)	3	3 1.2	2 20	0 0.7	7 3	0 6.4			are no intern	national	not degra	, de easily and are	of aquation	;	10-20	15.4	4 3.17	/ 1.35	N/A	N/A
Duddon Mosses	SAC	SD223853	Active Raised Bogs (7110)	1	1 1.3	3 20	0.0	3 3	0 7.4			sites with sm	nall	therefore	still present in	environm	ents.	5-10	19.f	5 0.72	2 1.73	300	) 1599
			Degraded Raised Bogs still capable of									mammal qua	alifying	the enviro	onment,	Bryophyte	es and						
			natural regeneration (7120)	1	1 1.3	3 20	0.0	3 3	0 7.4			features with	hin the	although	concentrations	lichens ar	e	5-10	19.6	0.72 ز	2 1.73	300	) 1599
Lake District High Fells	SAC	NY303318	Oligotrophic to mesotrophic standing									plan areea o	r within	should no	t increase .	particular	ly sensitive						
			Litterelletes unifleres and /or of the									20km of the	plan	The use o	f PCBs has also	to change	s in pH.						
			Littorenetea uninorae and/or or the		0.0		0.6		6.7			area bounda	iry.	been ban	ned but these	Soot adhe	eres to		20		2.65		2262
			Northern Atlantic wet heaths with Frica	IN/A	0.5		0.0		0.7					compoun	ds are still	leaves be	cause of its	IN/A	23.5		2.03	IN/A	2203
			tetralix (4010)	-	3 0.9	2	0.6	5 3	0 6.7					present ir	i sewage sludge,	organic co	ontent and	5-15	29.'	5 0.7	7 2.65	300	0 2263
			European Dry Heaths (4030)	3	3 0.9	) 20	0 0.6	5 3	0 6.7					old electr	ical equipment	can conta	IN TOXIC	5-15	29.	5 0.7	/ 2.65	300	0 2263
			Alpine and Boreal Heaths (4060)	3	3 0.9	) 20	0.0	5 3	0 6.7					anu scrap		Drocontly	udis.	5-15	29.5	5 0.7	/ 2.65	300	J 2263
			Juniperus communis formations on												Bs have been	comes fro	m deisel						
			heaths or calcareous grasslands	3	3 0.9	) 20	0 0.6	5 3	0 6.7					measured	l in the air close	combusti	nn engines	5-15	29.5	0.7 ز	2.65	300	) 2263
			Siliceous alpine and boreal grasslands	3	3 0.5	20	0 0.6	5 3	0 6.7					to hazard	ous waste sites.			5-15	29.5	<u> </u>	2.65	300	2263
			communities of plains and of the											Levels of	over 0.51mg/dry	For ceme	nt and						
			montane to alpine levels	-	3 00	20	0.6	5 3	0 67					jkg of soil	are likely to	flyash effe	ects have	5-15	29 '	5 07	7 2 65	300	0 2263
			Blanket bogs (7130)	1	1 0.9	20	0 0.6	5 3	0 6.7					cause eco	system damage.	been dete	ected at	5-10	29.	5 1.19	2.65	300	0 2263
			Siliceous scree of the montane to snow											PCB have	the potential to	depositio	n levels of				-		-
			levels (Androsacetalia alpinae and											damage a	quatic species	0.5g/m2/	day and						
			Galeopsietalia ladani) (8110)	3	3 0.9	9 20	0.0	5 3	0 6.7					but this va	aries according to	o above . T	here are	5-10	29.5	5		300	J 2263
			Siliceous rocky slopes with chasmophytic	C			_							PAHs are	acutely toxic to a	no estima	tes for the				_		
			vegetation (8220)		3 0.9	20	0.6	5 3	0 6.7							other dus	ts	5-10	29.5	<u>v 0.35</u>	, 2.65	300	J 2263
			Old Sessile Oak Woods with liex and						0 07							mentione	d here.	10.20	45.0	0 27	1 2.00	500	0 2725
			Biechnum in the British Isles (91AU)		1 0.9	2	0 0.6	5 3	0 6.7									10-20	45.9	<u>) 2.71</u>	. 3.98	500	2725
			substrates in mountain areas (and																				
			submountain areas in continental																				
			Europe) (6230)	3	3 0.9	20	0.6	5 3	0 6.7									5-15	29.'	5 0.7	7 2.65	300	0 2263
			Alkaline fens (7230)	3	3 0.9	) 20	0.0	5 3	0 6.7									10-15	29.!	5 0.35	2.65 ز	300	ງ 2263
			Calcareous rocky slopes with																				1
			chasmophytic vegetation (8210)	3	3 0.9	9 20	0.6	5 3	0 6.7									5-10	29.5	5 0.35	j 2.65	300	J 2263
			Slender green feather-moss				1																
			Drepanocladus (Hamatocaulis)																	_			
		00000	vernicosus - SPECIES	1	1 0.9	20	0.6	30?	6.7?									5-10	29.5	<u>الماري</u>	2.65	300	2263
Morecambe Bay	SAC	SD371697	Estuaries	N/A	1.7	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8									N/A	20.6	N/A	1.76	N/A	1626
			iviudiats and sandflats not covered by			7												NI/A				NI/A	
			seawater at low tide	N/A	1.7	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8									N/A	20.6	DIN/A	1.76	N/A	1626
			Large shallow inlets and have	N/A	1 -		0.0		0 0									N/A	20	6 N/A	1 76	N/A	1676
			Perennial vegetation of stony banks		3 1 7	7 21	0 0.5	2 2	0.0 0 8 9							Particulat	es are	5-10	20.0	54.0	1.70	300	1626
			Salicornia and other annuals colonising			20	0.3		- 0.0	There is cu	urrently only	There is curr	ently no			dusts and	include		20.0	1	1.70	500	1020
			the mud and sand	N/A	1.7	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8	critical loa	id data for	critcial level	data for			cement. f	ly ash,	N/A	20.0	6 N/A	1.76	N/A	1626
1	1	,	L				-							•		, .	. ,						

											Persistant Organic									
				Amn	nonia Sulp	hur Dioxid	de Nitrog	en Oxides	Heavy Metals	Halogens (HCL HF)	Pollutants	Particul	lates	Nitrogen	Deposition	Acid De	position	Oz	one	
Site	Site	Grid Reference	Annex I/II Habitats/Species Present									Critical		Critical		Critical				
	Designation		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Critical	Critical		Critical		Critical	Critical	Critical	Load		Load	Current	Load	Current	Critical	Current	
				Level	Current Level	Curre	nt Load	Current	Load Current load	Level Current	Level Current Level	(kg/ha/ C	Current	(kg/ha/	load (kg/	(keq/ha/	load (keq/	Load (ppb	load (ppb	
				(µg/m³)	load (μg) (μg/m <sup>3</sup>	) load (	μg) (μg/m³)	load (µg)	(μg/L) (μg/L)	(μg/m³) Level (μg)	) (μg/m³) (μg)	year) lo	oad (μg)	year)	ha/year)	year)	ha/year)	hours)	hours)	
			Atlantic Salt Meadows (Glauco-	_					human health impacts.	these compounds.		quarry dust	and							
			Puccinellietalia maritimae) (1330)	3	1.7	20	0.9 3	80 8.	8 The DEFRA website			soot. All du	sts	20-30	20.6	4.0	1.76	3000	1626	
			Shifting dunes along the shoreline with						provides readings on the	e Estimates for		settling on a	i plant							
			Ammophila arenaria (white dunes)	2	1 7	20			levels of the various	Hydrogen Fluoride		will nav the	airect	10.20	20.0	4 70	4 70	2000	1000	
			(2120) Fixed dupes with herbaceous vegetation	3	1.7	20	0.9 3	80 8.	8 neavy metals present at	that will cause narm		effect of red	lucing	10-20	20.6	4.79	1.76	3000	1626	
			(grow dunes) (2120)	2	1 7	20	0.0		One site in the Lake	to plants are:		the light ava	illable	0 1 5	20.6	4 70	1 76	2000	1626	
			(grey dunes) (2130) Humid duno slocks (2190)	3	1.7	20	0.9 3	80 8.	8 DISTRICT (COCKIEV BECK -	<5µg/m° over 1 day		for photosyn	ntnesis	8-15 10.20	20.0	4.79	1.70	3000	1620	
			Sandbanks which are slightly covered by	5	1.7	20	0.9 3	ou o.	o NT24/015). This uala is	$\rho = 100$		and the occi	ding to	10-20	20.0	4.79	1.70	5000	1020	
			seguater all of the time	N/A	1 7 N/A			8	8 table in Appendix 2	veek period		interference	with	N/A	20.6	N/A	1 76	Ν/Λ	1626	
				N/A	1.7 N/A		0.9 N/A	8		$< 0.2 - 0.3 \mu g/m^3 over$		respiration	and	N/A	20.0	N/A	1.70	N/A	1620	
			Reefs	N/A	1.7 N/A		0.9 N/A	8	8 Arsenic - 0 22ug/l	1 month period		levels of wat	tor		20.0		1.70	N/A	1626	
			Embryonic Shifting Dunes (2110)	3	1.7	20	0.9 3	80 8	8 Cadmium - 0 03ug/l	$< 0.2 - 0.3 \mu g/m^3$ over		evanoration	from	10-20	20.0	4 79	1.70	3000	1626	
			Atlantic decalcified fixed dunes (Calluno-	5	1.7	20	0.5 3	.0 0.	Chromium - 0.17ug/l	3 month period.		the leaves.	nom	10 20	20.0	4.75	1.70	5000	1020	
			Ulicetea) (2150)	3	1.7	20	0.9 3	80 8	8 Copper - 1.02ug/l	These estimates are		Chemically	cement	8-10	20.6	4.79	1.76	3000	1626	
			Dunes with Salix repens ssp. Argentea	3	1.7	20	0.5		Nickel 58 - 0.22µg/l	the same for all		and limestor	ne	0 10	20.0	4.75	1.70	5000	1020	
			(Salicion arenariae) (2170)	3	1.7	20	0.9 3	80 8.	8 Nickel 60 - 0.30µg/L	habitat types.		quarry dusts	sare	8-15	20.6	4.79	1.76	3000	1626	
			Great Crested Newt	N/A	1.7 N/A		0.9 N/A	8.	8 Lead - 0.82ug/L	Bird species are not		strongly alka	aline.	N/A	20.6	N/A	1.76	N/A	1626	
North Pennines Dales	SAC	NY931256	Mountain Hay Meadows (6520)	, 3	0.8	20	0.8 3	30 7.	1 Selenium - 0.16µg/L	affected by HF		which will ha	ave a	, 10-20	23.1	4.76	2.07	, 3000	1849	
Meadows	0,10		Molinia meadows on calcareous, peaty						Vanadium 0.42µg/L	deposition. Small		direct effect	on acid							
			or clayey-silt-laden soils (Molinion						Zinc - 7.49µg/L	mammals are		soils and on	the pH							
			caeruleae)	3	0.8	20	0.8 3	30 7.	1	affected but there		of aquatic	•	20-30	23.1	4.76	2.07	3000	1849	
River Derwent and	SAC	NY262207	Oligotrophic to mesotrophic standing						Readings taken in July	are no international		environmen	ts.							
Bassenthwaite Lake			waters with vegetation of the						2011	sites with small		Bryophytes	and							
			Littorelletea uniflorae and/or of the							mammal qualifying		lichens are								
			Isoeto-Nanojuncetea (3130)	N/A	1.6 N/A		0.6 N/A	7.	7	features within the		particularly	sensitive	N/A	19.6	N/A	1.68	N/A	1775	
			Water courses of plain to montane levels							plan areea or within		to changes i	n pH.							
			with the Ranunculion fluitantis and							20km of the plan		Soot adhere	s to							
			Callitricho-Batrachion vegetation	N/A	1.6 N/A		0.6 N/A	7.	7	area boundary.		leaves becau	use of its	N/A	19.6	N/A	1.68	N/A	1775	
			Marsh Fritillary butterfly	N/A	1.6 N/A		0.6 N/A	7.	7			organic cont	tent and	N/A	19.6	N/A	1.68	N/A	1775	
			Sea Lamprey								Endocrine disruption can	can contain	toxic			Acidificatic	on can			
				N/A	1.6 N/A		0.6 N/A	7.	7		be caused by the presenc	e heavy metal	ls.	N/A	19.6	affect fish i	in the early	N/A	1775	
			Brook Lamprey	,			,				of Organochlorine	Presently m	ost soot			stages of th	heir lives.	,		
											pesticides and PCBs. No	comes from	deisel			Reading fo	or			
				N/A	1.6 N/A		0.6 N/A	/.	/		data is available for these	combustion	engines.	N/A	19.6	acidificatio	on is 3.11.	N/A	1//5	
			River Lamprey								types of pollutants.									
				N/A	1.6 N/A		0.6 N/A	7.	7			For cement	and	N/A	19.6			N/A	1775	
			Atlantic Salmon									flyash effect	s have			ĺ				
					1 6 11/4			7	7			been detect	ed at	NI / A	10.6				1775	
			Ottor	N/A	1.0 N/A		0.0 N/A	7.	7			deposition le	evels of	N/A	19.0	Thoro is ou	idanca ta	N/A	1//5	
			Otter									0.5g/m2/da	y and			show that	nuence to			
												above. The	re are			acidificatio	n may be a			
												no estimate	s for the			cause of re	aduced			
												other dusts				otter noni	lations in			
												mentioned i	iere.			some part	s of the UK.			
																Reading of	3.11 taken			
																in this loca	tion			
																in this loca				
				N/A	1.6 N/A		0.6 N/A	7.	7					N/A	19.6			N/A	1775	
			Floating water plantain	N/A	1.6 N/A		0.6 N/A	7.	7					N/A	19.6	N/A	1.68	N/A	1775	
River Ehen	SAC	NY031144	Freshwater pearl mussels	N/A	1.5 N/A		0.7 N/A	7.	6					N/A	16.5	N/A	1.39	N/A	1737	
			Atlantic Salmon	N/A	1.5 N/A		0.7 N/A	7.	6					N/A	16.5	N/A	1.39	N/A	1737	
Roudsea Wood and Mosses	SAC	SD347807	Active Raised Bogs (7110)	3	1.0	20	0.8 3	9.	3					5-10	17.4	0.66	1.55	N/A	N/A	
			Degraded Raised Bogs still capable of						1											
			natural regeneration (7120)	3	1.0	20	0.8 3	9.	3					5-10	17.4	0.66	1.55	N/A	N/A	
			Tilio-Acerion forests of slopes, screes and																	
			ravines (9180)	3	1.0	20	0.8 3	9.	3					10-20	27.2	4.41	2.28	N/A	N/A	
															Γ					
			Taxus baccata woods of the British Isles	3	1.0	20	0.8 3	9.	3					5-15	27.2	4.41	2.28	N/A	N/A	
Subberthwaite, Blawith and	SAC	SD269896							7											
Torver Low Commons			Transition mires and quaking bogs (7140)	1	0.9	20	0.8 3	30 7.	3					5-10	17.9	0.92	1.61	3000	1752	
			Rhynchosporion		0.0	20	0.0		There is currently only	There is currently no	)	Particulates	are	E 10	17.0	0.03	1 (1	2000	1753	
			таунспоэронон	1	0.9	20	0.0	J. 7.	critical load data for	Icritcial level data for	.1	dusts and in	clude	2-10	17.9	0.92	1.61	3000	1/52	

													Persi	stant Organic										
				Amı	monia	Sulphu	ır Dioxide	Nitroge	n Oxides	Heavy	Metals	Halogens (HCL HF)	F	ollutants	Partic	culates	Nitrogen	Deposition	Acid De	position	Oz	zone		
Site	Site	Grid Reference	Annex I/II Habitats/Species Present														Critical		Critical					
	Designation			Critical		Critical		Critical	Criti	ical		Critical	Critical		Load		Load	Current	Load	Current	Critical	Current		
				Level	Current	Level	Current	Load	Current Load	d Cı	urrent load	Level Current	Level	Current Level	(kg/ha/	Current	(kg/ha/	load (kg/	(keq/ha/	load (keq/	Load (ppb	Joad (ppb		
				(µg/m³)	load (µg)	(µg/m³)	load (µg)	(µg/m³)	load (µg) (µg/	/L) (μ	g/L)	(μg/m³) Level (μg)	(µg/m³)	(µg)	year)	load (µg)	year)	ha/year)	year)	ha/year)	hours)	hours)		
Wast Water	SAC	NY164062	Oligotrophic to mesotrophic standing						hum	nan healt	h impacts.	these compounds.			cement, fl	y ash,		· · · ·						
			waters with vegetation of the						The	DEFRA w	vebsite				quarry du	st and	1	· · · ·						
			Littorelletea uniflorae and/or of the						prov	vides read	dings on the	Estimates for			soot. All o	dusts	1	· · · ·						
			Isoeto-Nanojuncetea (3130)	N/A	0.5	N/A	0.7	N/A	6.2 leve	els of the	various	Hydrogen Fluoride			settling or	n a plant	N/A	17.2	N/A	N/A	N/A	1803		
Yewbarrow Woods	SAC	SD347872							heav	vy metals	present at	that will cause harm			will hav th	e direct								
			Taxus baccata woods of the British Isles	3	3 1.0	20	0.8	30 30	) 7.6 one	e site in th	e Lake	to plants are:			effect of r	educing	5-15	30.8	1.42	2.63	5000	0 1993		
			Juniperus communis formations on						Disti	trict (Cock	ley Beck -	<5µg/m³ over 1 day			the light a	vailable								
			heaths or calcareous grasslands	3	3 1.0	20	0.8	30	) 7.6 NY2	247015).	This data is	period			for photos	synthesis	15-25	21	4.73	1.9	3000	J 1630		
									prov	vided in a	separate	<0.5µg/m³ over 1			and the or	cclusion of								
			Old Sessile Oak Woods with Ilex and						table	le in Appe	endix 2.	week period			stomata, l	eading to								
			Blechnum in the British Isles (91A0)	1	1 1.0	20	0.0	3 30	7.6			<0.2-0.3µg/m³ over			interferen	ce with	10-20	30.8	1.42	2.63	5000	J 1993		
Morecambe Bay	SPA	337200, 475400	Sandwich Tern (Strena Sandvicensis) - 3%						Arse	enic - 0.22	2μg/L	1 month period	There is e	vidence of	respiration	n and		· · · ·	Increase in	acidity				
			of GB breeding population	N/A	1.7	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8 Cadı	lmium - 0	.03µg/L	<0.2-0.3µg/m³ over	reproduc	tive impairment	levels of w	vater	N/A	20.6	increases h	uman	N/A	1626		
			Northern Pintail (Anas Acuta) 4.7% of						Chro	omium - (	).17μg/L	3 month period.	in birds e	ating fish that ar	e evaporatio	on from	1	· · · ·	exposure to	o toxic				
			NW European population	N/A	1.7	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8 Cop	oper - 1.02	2μg/L	These estimates are	contamin	ated with	the leaves	i.	N/A	20.6	metals. Th	ere is no	N/A	1626		
			Pink footed goose (Anser						Nick	kel 58 - 0.	22µg/L	the same for all	organoch	lorine pesticides	. Chemicall	y, cement	1	· · · ·	evidence as	s yet to				
			branchyrhynchus) - 1.1% of the global						Nick	kel 60 - 0.	30µg/L	habitat types.	These po	lutants are also	and limest	tone	1	· · · ·	suggest that	it this is				
			population	N/A	1.7	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8 Lead	d - 0.82µĮ	g/L	Bird species are not	known to	cause egg shell	quarry du	sts are	N/A	20.6	the same ir	n birds but	N/A	1626		
			Ruddy Turnstone (Areanaria interpres) -						Sele	enium - 0.	16µg/L	affected by HF	thinning	n birds of prey.	strongly a	lkaline,	1	· · · ·	equally the	re is none				
			2.4% of the East Atlantic flyway						Vana	adium 0.4	42µg/L	deposition. Small	There ma	y be similar	which will	have a	1	· · · ·	to suggest	that it				
			population	N/A	1.7	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8 Zinc	c - 7.49μg	/L	mammals are	effects fo	r these birds	direct effe	ect on acid	N/A	20.6	isn't.		N/A	1626		
			Dunlin (Calidris alpina) - 3.8% of the East									affected but there	although	there is no	soils and o	on the pH	1	· · · ·	There is evi	idence to				
			Atlantic flyway population	N/A	1.7	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8 Read	dings tak	en in July	are no international	evidence	as yet to suppor	t of aquatic		N/A	20.6	suggest that	it	N/A	1626		
			Red Knot (Calidris canutus) - 8.5% of the						2013	.1		sites with small	or contra	dict this.	environme	ents.	1	· · · ·	acidificatio	n could				
			East Atlantic flyway population	N/A	1.7	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8			mammal qualifying			Bryophyte	es and	N/A	20.6	lead to the	thinning	N/A	1626		
			Eurasian Oystercatcher (Haematopus									features within the			lichens are	е	1	· · · ·	of egg shell	s, which				
			ostralegus) - 5.4% of the East Atlantic									plan areea or within			particular	ly sensitive	1	· · · ·	may reduce	9				
			flyway population	N/A	1.7	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8			20km of the plan			to change	s in pH.	N/A	20.6	reproductiv	e success.	N/A	1626		
			Bar-tailed Godwit (Limosa lapponica) -									area boundary.			Soot adhe	res to	1	· · · ·	Current Loa	ad for				
			2.6% of the East Atlantic flyway												leaves bed	cause of its	· . /		Morecamb	e Bay -				
			population	N/A	1.7	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8						organic co	ontent and	N/A	20.6	1.76		N/A	1626		
			Curlew (Numenius arquata) - 3.9% of the												can conta	in toxic								
			East Atlantic flyway population	N/A	1.7	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8						heavy me	tals.	N/A	20.6	+		N/A	1626		
			Black Bellied plover or Grey Plover												Presently	most soot	1	· · · ·						
			(Pluvialis squatarola) 1.1% of the East												comes fro	m deisel								
			Atlantic flyway population	N/A	1.7	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8						combustic	on engines.	. N/A	20.6	+		N/A	1626		
			Shelduck (Tadorna tadorna) - 2.1% of the												_									
			East Atlantic flyway population	N/A	1./	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8						For cemer	nt and	N/A	20.6	+		N/A	1626		
			Redshank (Tringa totanus) - 3.6% of the	N1/A	17	N1/A		N1 / A							flyash effe	ects have	N1/0	20.0			N1/A	1626		
			East Atlantic flyway population	N/A	1./	N/A	0.9	N/A	8.8						been dete	ected at	N/A	20.6	+		N/A	1626		
			1.5% of the East Atlantic fluway													1 levels of	1	· · · ·						
			nonulation		17		0.0		0 0						0.5g/m2/0	bay and		20.6				1626		
Duddon Estuany	CDA.	E41020NL 021E24W/	Northern Dintail (Anac Acuta) 4.7% of	IN/A	1.7	IN/A	0.5	N/A	0.0				Thoro is a	vidanca of	above . II	toc for the	N/A	20.0	Incroaco in	acidity	N/A	1020		
Duddon Estuary	SFA	34103910 03132400	Northern Finitali (Anas Acuta) 4.7% of										roproduc	tive impairment	othor duct		1	· · · ·	increase in	uman				
													in hirds o	ating fish that an	mentione	d hara	1	· · · ·	avnosure to					
													contamin	ating fish that an	ementione	u nere.	1	· · · ·	motals Th	oro is no				
													organoch	lorino nosticidos			1	· · · ·	ovidonco a					
				N/A	0.7	N/A	0.8	N/A	7.4				These no	lutants are also	•		N/A	13.2	current the	t this is	N/A	N/A		
			Redshank (Tringa totanus) - 3.6% of the										known to				1	· · · · ·	the same in	hirds but				
			East Atlantic flyway population										thinning	n birds of nrev				1 '	equally the	re is none				
													There ma	v he similar				1 '		that it				
													effects fo	r these hirds				1 '	isn't.					
					-								although	there is no				· · · · ·	There is evi	idence to				
				N/A	0.7	N/A	0.8	N/A	7.4				evidence	as vet to suppor			NA	13.2	suggest the	it	N/A	N/A		
			Sandwich Tern (Strena Sandvicensis) - 3%										or contra	dict this.	-			1 '	acidification	n could				
			of GB preeding population															1 '	lead to the	thinning				
																		1 '	of egg shell	s, which				
																		1 '	may reduce	2				
				N/A	0.7	N/A	0.8	N/A	7.4								NA	13.2	reproductiv	e success.	N/A	N/A		

														Persis	tant Organic								
				Ammonia		Sulphur Dioxide		Nitroge	n Oxides He		ivy Metals	Halogen	Halogens (HCL HF)		ollutants	Partic	ulates	Nitrogen Deposition		Acid Deposition		Ozone	
Site	Site	Grid Reference	Annex I/II Habitats/Species Present													Critical		Critical		Critical			
	Designation		,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	Critical		Critical		Critical		Critical		Critical		Critical		Load		Load	Current	Load	Current	Critical	Current
				Level	Current	Level	Current	Load	Current	Load	Current load	Level	Current	Level	Current Level	(kg/ha/	Current	(kg/ha/	load (kg/	(keq/ha/	load (keq/	Load (ppb	load (ppb
				(µg/m³)	load (µg)	(µg/m³)	load (µg)	(µg/m³)	load (µg)	(µg/L)	(µg/L)	(µg/m³)	Level (µg)	(µg/m³)	(µg)	year)	load (µg)	year)	ha/year)	year)	ha/year)	hours)	hours)
			Red Knot (Calidris canutus) - 8.5% of the							There is c	urrently only	There is c	urrently no							Current Loa	ad for		
			East Atlantic flyway population							critical lo	ad data for	critcial lev	el data for							Morecamb	e Bay -		
										numan ne	ealth impacts.	these com	ipounas.							1.18			
										The DEFR	A website	Ectimator	for										
										levels of t	be various	Hydrogen	Fluorido										
										heavy me	tals present at	that will c	ause harm										
										one site i	n the Lake	to plants a	are:										
										District (	Cocklev Beck -	<5µg/m <sup>3</sup> (	over 1 dav										
										NY24701	5). See data	period	,										
										above.		<0.5μg/m	³ over 1										
												week peri	od										
												<0.2-0.3µ	g/m³ over										
												1 month p	eriod										
												<0.2-0.3µ	g/m³ over										
												3 month p	eriod.										
				N/A	0.7	N/A	0.8	N/A	7.4							N/A		N/A	13.2		1	N/A	N/A
										-		1		1									